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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOC&H
May 24, 2019
10:00 AM, Philippine Time

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of HOLCIM
PHILIPPINES, INC. (the “Company”) which will be held on May 24, 2019 at Marquis Events Place
Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City, 1634, at 10:00 am, Philippine time. The Agenda of the
meeting is as follows:

1.
2,
3.

o o

~

o © ®

Call to Order

Proof of Notice and Determination of existence of quorum

Approval of the minutes of the previous annual stockholders’ meeting held on May 18,
2018

Approval of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for
the period ended December 31, 2018

Approval of Amendment to Article Second of the Company'’s Articles of Incorporation
Approval and Ratification of all acts, contracts, investments and resolutions of the Board,
Committees and Management since the last annual stockholders’ meeting

Election of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Other Matters

Adjournment

These items are fully discussed in the Information Statement, which will be sent to you
together with this Notice. Only stockholders of record in the books of the Company at the close of
business on April 24, 2019 will be entitled to notice of, and to vote, at the meeting. A list of
stockholders entitled to vote will be available for inspection at the office of the Company, 7" Floor,
Venice Corporate Center, 8 Turin Street, McKinley Town Center, McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig
City 1634, Metro Manila, Philippines fifteen (15) days prior to the Annual Meeting.

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
By:

BELINDA E. DUGAN
Corporate Secretary

REGISTRATION OF STOCKHOLDERS WILL START AT 9:00 AM.

Strength. Performance. Passion.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION //

SEC FORM 20-IS % 5 é Y
Py ©

A S
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20%4 (=
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE /

Check the appropriate box: &

[. 1 Preliminary Information Statement
[v] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter:  Holcim Philippines, Inc.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization: Manila, Philippines

SEC Identification Number: 026126

BIR Tax Identification Code: 000-121-507-000

Address of Principal Office/Postal Code: 7th Floor, Two World Square

McKiniey Hill, Fort Bonifacio
Taguig City 1634, Philippines
Registrant’s telephone number,
including area code: (632) 459-3333

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders:

May 24, 2019, Friday, at 10:00 A.M.
Marquis Events Place
Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global City
Taguig City, 1634

Approximate date on which the
Information Statement is first to be sent
or given to security holders: April 30, 2019
Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Securities Regulation Code or
Sections 4 and 8 of the Revised Securities Act (information on number of shares and
amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):
Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding or Amount of Debt
Outstanding
Common Shares 6,452,099,144
Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes X No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed
therein: Philippine Stock Exchange — Common Shares



HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

INFORMATION STATEMENT

WE ARE NOT ASKING FOR A PROXY AND
YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. DATE, Time AND PLACE OF AMNUAL MEETING
OF SECURITY HOLDERS {THE ANNuBAL MEETING)

fa} Date: May 24, 2015, Friday
Time: 10:00 a.m,
Place: Marquis Events Place

Rizal Drive, Bonifacic Gichal City
Taguig City, 1634

Principal office; 7th Floor, Two Warld Square
McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacia
Taguig City 1634, Philipplnes

{t}  Approximate date on which copies of the Information Statement are first to be sent or
given to Security Holders:

April 30, 2019

ITEM 2. [DHSSENTERS' RIGHT OF APPRAISAL

Pursuant to Section 80 of the Revised Corporation Code, (1) in case of amendment to the
articles of incorporation that has the effect of changing or restricting the rights of any
stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect supstior to those of
outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence,
{2} in case of lease, exchange, transfer, morigage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially aii of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Revised Corporation
Code, {3} in case of merger or consolidation, and {4} in case of investment of carporate funds
for any purpose ather than the primary purpose of the Company, any stockhotder of the
Company shafl have the right to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares.

As provided in Section 81 of the Revised Corporation Code, this appraisal right may be
exercised by any stockholder who shalt have dissented to such corporate action, by making a
wittien demand on the Company within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote wag
taken, for payment of the fair vaiue of his shares. Failure to make the demand within such
period shakt be deemed g wakver of the appraisal right

Within ten {10) days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockhalder shal
submit to the Company the certificate(s} of stock representing his shares for notation thereon
that such shares are dissenting shares. His failure to do so shal, at the option of the Corpany,
ierminate his appraisal rights. No demand for payment as aforesaid may be withdrawn by the
dissenting stockholder unless the Company cansents thereto.



if the corporate action & imptemented, the Company shall pay 1o the stockholder, upon
surrender of the cerntificate or centificates of stock representing the stockholder's shares, the
fair value thersof as of the day before the vote was taken, excluding any appraciation or
depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action.

it within a period of sbay (6G) days from the date the corporate action was approved hy the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the Company canncot agree on the fair valpe of
the shares, # shall be determined and appraised by three (3} disinterested persons, ane of
whom shall be named by the stockholder, another by the Company, and the third by the two
{2) thus chosen. The findings of the majority of the appraisers shalt be final, and their award
shall be paid by the Gompany within thirty (30} days after such award is made, No payment
shadl be made 10 any dissenting stockholder unless the Gompany has unrestricted retained
earnings in its books 10 covear such payment. Upon payment by the Cempany of the agreed or
awarded price, the stockholder shal forthwith transfer his shares to the Company.

Az of the date of this Information Staterment, no matter will be presentad for stockholders'
approval during the Annual Mesting that may occasion the exercise of the right of appraisal.

frfEM 3. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

No directar or officer of the Company since the beginning of the last fiscal year, or any
nomines for election as director, or any of thelr associates, has any substantial interest, direct
or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the Annual
Meeting, other than election to office.

No director ¢of the Gompany has informed the Company in writing that he intends to oppose
any action to be taken by the Company at the Annual Meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM 4.  VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREGF

(@)  Voling securitios entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting

As of Aprit 24, 2119, there are B5,452,009,144 shares of the Company's commen stock
outstanding and entitted o vote at the Annual Meeting. Cne share is agquivalent 1o one vate
except in the election of directars where one share is entitied 1o as many votes as there are
direciors to be glected.

(b  Record Date

Onty stockholders of record at the close of business on Aprll 24, 2019 (the Hecord Date)
acting i person or by proxy on the day of the Annual Meeting are entitled to notice of, and to
vole at, the Annual Meeting.

{c}  Election of directors and voting rights [Cumulative Voting)

Cumulative voting is allowed for election of members of the Board. Pleass refer to item 19(h)
{Yoting Procadures),

()  Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Mananement
1) Security Ownership of Cenain Record and Boneficial Owners
The table beiow shows persons or groups known to the Company as of Aprit 24, 2018 to

be directly or indirectly the record or bensficial owner of more than 5% of the Gompany's
woting securities:



The respective Board of Directors of each of UCHC, Halderfin, Sumitomo and Cemco
has the power {0 decide how their shares in the Company are to be voted. The
Company only has common shares ouistanding. As of Aprit 24, 2019, the Company's

foreign stockholders hokd 29.37% of the common shares.

2} Security Cwnership of Management

The table below shows the securities beneficially owned by ak directors and executive
officers of the Company as of April 24, 2019:

S S
SR i) R :
R
Comemon | Union Cement Holdings  © Union Gement 3.906,425506 | 60.55%
Corporation ("UCHC"} * Holdings Corp.
7th Floor, Two World i {same as record
Square, MeKindey Hilt ownar)
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City
{Filiping}
: Stockholder
Gommon | Helderfin B.Y. Holderfin B.V. 1,168,450,995 | 18.11%
: {"Holderfin™ {same as record
i De bawessestraat 120Hs | owner)
1075 HJ Amsterdam
Tha Netharlands
{Dutch)
Stockholder
: Common | Sumitomo Osaka Cement | Sumitoms Osaka 594,952,725 0.27%
: Co, Ltd. {"Sumitomo") Cememn Co., Lid.
i 1, kanda Mitoshiro-cho {same as record
¢ Chivoda-ku, Tekyo oWher)
101-8677 Japan
{lapanese}
" Stackhoider e
. Commen i Cemco Holdings, Inc. Cemco Holdings, Inc. 4586 689,560 07.08%
i "Cermco™) {same as record
815/816 Tower One & Crwner)
Exchange Plara ;
Ayala Avenue, Makati Gity
{Filigino)
Stgckhoider
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__Commen | Tomas |. Aicantara Filiping _

. Common _ | Martin Kriegner D) | Austrian R 0.00%
Common | John William Stwl 140} | American H 0.00%
Common : Rajani¥esari 1D lndian H 2.00%

- I 1} B

...Q.q.r.jmon ; Simeon V. Marcein [ Bz Filping H 0.00%

. _Common _:YasuoKtamota | 1(D}]| Japaresg | R 0.00%

L ... rotal il S4268: 0.00%

Directors and officers as & group hold a total of 54,268 cormmon shares, equivalent to
approximately 0.00% of the Company's issued and cutstanding capital stock.

(8]  Waoting Trust Holders of 5% or mora

No person holds 5% or more of the issued and outstanding shares of stock of the Company
under a voting trust or simitar agresmeant.

(i Charges in Control

There were no material changes in the control of the Company since the beginning of the
Company's last calendar year. UCHG stilt holds the controlling interest in the Company.

ITEM 5. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE (OFFICERS

{a) The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the overall management and direction of the Company. The
Board meets regufarly every quarter, of as often as required, fo review and monitor the
Campany's financial position and operations. Each Board member serves for a term of ane
yedr or until his successor is duly elected and qualified. None of the members of the Board

owns more than 2% of the totat outstanding shares of the Company.

The fotwing are the members of the Board,

: )

; Chairman o Tomas {. Alcantara 72 Filiping

| Vice Chairme-a-ﬁ“m o Martin Krie:g.n.ér. T - “a;l.umrian
Direm-t.}.rw.m John Wllham Studl : i 58 o American
Director - Rajani Kesari e, mden
”!ﬁt-:l-é-pender;t Director B Simi;ﬂﬂ V. Marcelo o 65 Filipino
Endependent Director . YE,SLIIE!. k&éﬁo‘m ) EE- ] Japanese 5




Set forth below are the business experience of the Board during the last five yoars:

Tomas ). Alcantara, 72, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from
Atenec de Manila University, a Masters in Business Administration degree from
Colurnbia University, LISA and attended the Advance Management Program of the
Harvard Business School He is presently the Chaitman and President of Alsons
Consolidated Resources, inc, and of several power and property development
companies in the Alcamtara Group. He is Chairman of the Eagle Ridge Gobf &
Country Club, Inc. and FPhilweb Corporation, Mr. Alcantars was Undersecratary for
the Industry & Investment Group of the Department of Trade and Industry and the Vice
Chairman and Managing Head of the Board of Investments from July 1986 to March
1895, He was also Special Envay of the Philipgine President to APEC in 1996. He was
elected Director of the Company on July 4, 2003,

Martin Kriegner, 57, holds an MBA fram the University of Economics in Vienna
and & Boctorate degree from Vienna University Law Cendre. Me joined the Lafarge
Group in 1890. In 1895, Mr, Krggner was appainted as Chief Financiat Officer of
Lafarge Perlmocser AG, Ausiria. He served as Country CEQ of Lafarge Austria from
1998 to 2001 and Lafarge India from 2002 to 2005 and 2012 to 2015, Mr, Kriggnar
was Lafarge Regional Prasident, Asia and South West Asia, and was a member of the
Lafarge Executive Committes from 20058 to 2M2. My, Kriegnar served as
LafargeHoleim Area Manager for Central Europe from 2015 1o 2018, Ha is presently
LafargeHolcim Group's Head of India and Scuth East Asia and 2 member of the
LafargeHolcim Group Executive Committes. He was elected as director of the
Company on August 18, 2016,

John William Stull 58, is an accomplished leader with deep knowledge of the building
materials mdustry. Prior to being assigned to Holcim Philippines, Inc. in Aprt 2018, he
was the CEQ for LafargeMuolcim's Cement Operations in the United States from 2015
Before that ha served in various positions across the Group including responsihiity for
the LIS as welt as markets in sub-Saharan Africa and Latin America. Mr. Stulf received
his Bachelor of Soience in chemical sngineering from the University of Akron in Ohio
and earned an Advance Managemsnt Degree from Marvard University in
Massachusetts.

Rajani Kesari, 47, is a Certified Public Accountant ficensed in the USA. She iz a
senior management and finance professional with more than 30 years’ experience.
Prior 1o joining the LafargeHolcim Group, she worked for Schneider Electric for
years during which she led the Finance teams of East Asia & Japan Zons and
Greater India Zone. During her tenure she has supported significant growth in India
and strong profitability in East Asia & Japan. Ms. Rajani was with Dr. Reddy's for
more than 10 years where she held roles of Strategic Planning Head & CFO for
European business, CFD of AP| business, Chief internal Auditor of the Group
reporting to the Audit Committee Chairman and Head of Global tax, Ma, Kesari also
worked with KPMG in Dubai handiing both manufacturing and banking clients.

Simeon V. Marcelo, 65, graduated among the top of his class at the University
of the Philippines - Coflege of Law and placed Bth in the 1979 bar examination.
He served as Solicitor General from February 2001 to October 2003 and was
Ombudsman from October 2003 to November 2005, From 2007 to 2010, Mr. Marcelo
served as Execidive Secretary of the Asian Development Bank Administrative
Tribunat and from 2008 0 June 2014, was a member of the World Banic's
Independent Advisory Board {on good governance and anbi- corruption matters}.
Mr. Marcelo was alse elecied as the President of the Philippine Bar Association
from 200% to 2010. During its Centennial Year 2113, the University of the
Fhilippines Alumni Association conferred upon him the Distinguished Alumni Award in
Fublic Service. He is the Chief Execitive Officer of Crur Marcelo & Tenefrancia
taw Offices. Mr. Marcelo was elected as independent director of the Company in 2014,



Yasuo Kitamofo, 58, holds a Bachelor of Laws degres from the Doshisha
University i Kyoto, Japan. He s currently General Manager responsible for
International Business of Sumitomo Osaka .Cement Co., Ltd. prior to his current
pasition, he was Depuly General Manager, General AMairs Department in 2005
and Gerneral Manager, Corporate Planning Department in 2008 of Sumitomo Osaka
Cement Co., Lid.

Directorshigs in other reporting companies

The fullowing are directorships held by the Company's dirsctors in other reporting companies
during the past five years:

Name of Director Mams of Heporting Company
Tomas |. Alcamtara Adsons Consolidated Resources, Ing,

Eagle Ridge Golf & Country Club, the,

Nomination of Directors for 2018-2020

The directors of the Company efected at the Annual Meeting shalt hold office for one year and
untt thelr respective successors have been elected and quaiified.

The following are the nomineas to the Board of Directors:

Tomas i. Alcantara

Martin Kriegner

John William Stul

Rajani Kesari

Yasuo Kitamoto {Indepandsnt Director)
Thomas G. Aguiro (Independent Diractor)
Leandra David Javier {independant Directon

RSB

The Company has no reasen 1o belisve that any nominess to the Board of Directors will be
unwilling or unable to serve if elected as a director,

Mr. Benjamin De Guzman nominated Messrs, Yasuo Kitamoto, Leandro David Javier, and
Thomas G. Aguine as independent Directors of the Company. Mr. Benjamin De Guzman is not
refated 1o any of Messrs. Kitamoto, Javier, and Aguino by consanguinity or affinity, and has no
professional or business dealings with any of them, Messrs. Kitamoto,Javier, and Aquine are
neither officers nor substantial sharshoiders of the Company.

The nominzes for independent directors possess the qualifications and none of the
dizqualifications of independent directors under refevant riles of the Securities Begulation
Cade (the "S5RC") and its implementing rules and regulations {the *SRC Rules")

The matter of the nomination and election of indepandent Directars form paft of a set of
guidelings from the Corporate Governance Committes. These guidelines define the
qualifications, disqualifications, and procedurss for the screening and short listing of
candidates nominated o the Board.

The members of the Corporate Governance Committes are as follows:

1. hartin Kriegner - Chairman

2. Tomas |. Alcantara - Member _

3 Simeon V. Marcalo - Member (Independent Directar)
4, Yasuo Kitamoto - Member {independent Director)



For this Annual Meeting, the Corporate Governance Committee shalt sereen and eveluaie the
candigates for Independent Directors, using the committes's guidelines, pertinent provisions of
the Company's Manual on Good Corporate Gavernance, its By-Laws and refevant issuances

under the SRC and the SRC Rules,

On June 15, 2012, the SEC approved the amendments to the Company's By-laws
incorporating the procedures for the nomination and election of independent diractors in
accordance with SRC Rule 38, a5 amended.

{b}  The Expcutive (Hficers

The Company's executive officers are likewise elected annually by the Board and serve for
one year and entil their respective successors have been elected. None of the officers of the
Company own more than 22 of the total outstanding shares of the Company.

The Company's executive officers are set forth below:

e au_,f

e .’.ﬂ.
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Premdentf’ Chisf Executive Officer

S‘-JF’ Chief Financial Dﬁrcere‘ Treasurer

SWP, Haad of Sales

SV, Head of Cement Indyustrial
Performance

SVP, Head of Marketing

SVP, Head of Organizational Human
fAesources

VP, Head of Aggregates, Construction
Materials, and Infrastructure

WYP, Head of Corporate Communications

VP, Head of Heakth. Safety & Sacunw

VF - Head of Siraiegy

Wi, Ganeral Counsal/ Cc’:rpnrate
; Secretarw Compllance Crificer

WP, Head of Geoeycle and Head of
CAPEX

WE, Plant Manager — Lugalt

W, Plant Manager — Davac

: Savarmuthu

John Williarm Stull 58 American
Joesusa Natividad L. Bojas 52 Filipino
P William G, Sumatineg 49 Fifiping
Neils Ledingk 48 Austrian
Ramakrishna Magant 49 indian
Bernadette Tansingco 44 Eiliping
Frederic Fabign 47 French
: Anng Claire M. Ramirer 40 FI|IpIﬂG
Michard . Cruz 38 Filipina
Zne Verna M. Sbala a4 Filiping
Belinda E. Dugan 50 Filiping
: Frederic Vailat 59 French
Bobby Garza &1 Frttpmo
Xavier dsul Kennedy 55 Indian
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WP, Plant Manager — La Union Erafio Santos B Filipino
WP, Plant Man;ger — Bulacan Goert KLFi;]E'.-!.'". - L Australian
VP, Head of Salas (GMA) IEd;ur.in -":'idiias 45 "...Frt.r;r;od_-
WP, Head of Sales (M||_'r_dana.t;_t]md Allan Valencia o 54 Filipina
VP, Head_ _of Bales (CPA) _ Ernestm -};-‘aulu Tan L4z FIHDIH_O
VP, He-ad of Sales :' Ajm::rTILIE;l.nr.'u.r.:;rés 5 Filipino

The business experience of Mr. Juhn William Stull during the iast five years is provided
above Below sels forth the business expenence of the Company's other executive
officers during the last five years:

Jesusa Natividad L. Rofas is the Companys Chief Financial Officer. She holds a
degree in Accounting from Xavier University and obtained her Masters degres in
Development Finance and Banking from American University in Washington, DC as a
Fultbright-Hurmphrey Fellow. Ms. Rofas is a Cerified Public Accountant and &
Cartified Management Accouniant, She held various positions in Finance i Del Monte
Pacific Ltd from 20003 to 2007, Ms. Rejas then served as Chisf Financiat Qtficer of S&w
Fing Foods international Lid. from 2008 to 2010, Prior to joining the Company in
September 2016, she also served as Chief Financial Officer of Bal Monte Phikppines,
Ine,

William C. Sumalinog is the Senior Vice Prasident, Head of Sales. William holds a
Bacheior of Science degree in Computer Enginesring from the University of Cebu
where he graduated with leadership honors in 1882, Prior to his current role, Mr.
Sumalinog was the Company's Regional Cperating Head for various aress in
Mindanao and Visayas. He jpined Alsons Cement Corporation in 1998 whsre he
ocoiied various key positions in sales.

Nells Ledinek, iz the Senior Vice President, Head of Cement Industrial Performance.

- Mr. Ledinek has a diploma in Ing. from Montan Universitaet Leoaben, Austria and has

sarned a degree in Master of Science in Engineeting Management from Oakland
University in year 2000. Mr. Ledinek has worked for Lafarge since October 1958 and
has served as Cement Plant Manager of Lafarge Cement, Cizvoke Plant, Czech
Republic from September 2008- June 2013 and of LafargeMoloim, Ferzikovo Plant,
HAussia from July 2013 to March 2016, In Aprit 2016, Mr. Ledingk was named Head of
Transformation of APAC based in Singapore responsible for managing sight senior
managers and subject matter experts inclding former plant managers, plant
production and maintenance marnagers, and technical experts. As Head of
Transformation. he successfully completed a global pilot project resulting 1o a net
benefit of severat million USD in an underperdorming, solout cement plart in
Southeast Asia in 2017,

Aamakrishng Maganii, is the Senior Vice President, HMead for Marketing &
Innovation. He holds a degree in Mechanical Engineering, MBA in Marketing from the
Indian Institute of Management and a degres in Strategic Marketing Management from
Harvard Business School. Mr. Magantt brings mare than 20 years of combined
experience in giobal marketing, brand development, digital transformation, and project
management. Prior 1o joining Holcim Philippines, Ine. he held various ieadership and




management positions in LafargeHolcim India, Malaysia, France and the most recently
in Singapore as Head of Sales and Marketing for Asia Pacific Region. Mr. Maganti
worked for Philips NV a globat consumer lifestyle and healthcare firm before joining the
LafargeHolcim Group in 20086,

Bernadette Tansingco is the Senior Vice President, Head of Organization and Human
Resouwrces. She has 25 years of experience in the Company's human resources
devision with key roles heading tatent management and organization development. [n
2014, she helped in transforming Holeim Philippines' business support functions into the
Holcim East Asia Dusiness Service Centre, lafargeMolcim Asia Pacific's shared
services where she was appointed human resource head. Ms. Tansingco holds a
Psycholagy degree from the De La Salle University and has completed ieadership and
management programs from the IMD Business School of Switzerland, Penn State
|tniversity in the LISA and the Asian institute of Management.

Frederic Fabien is the Senior Vice President, Head for Aggregates and Gonstruction
Materials and Infrastructure. He holds a degree of M3 Engineering from Ecola Centrale
Paris, France. Betore joining the Company, Mr. Fabien sarved as Head of Ready-Mix
Concrete Business Unit of Holcim Indonesia. Mr, Fabien also served as Sales Director,
Building Segment of LafargeHolcim Maraceo from July 2011 to July 2015,

Ann Claire M. Ramirer is the Vice Prasident, Head of Corporate Communications, She
was the Head for Marketing when she joined Holeim Philippines, inc. in January 2015.
She first joined a loca!l food company, SAFRUFC (now known as NutriAsial in 1898,
focusing on brand management of catsup brands. Prior 1o joining Holcim, she worked
for Energizer Phiippines, Inc. where she managed the Company's Marketing
Department. WMs. Ramirez has a degree of Bachelor of Science in Economics from the
University of the Philippines, Difiman.

Richard C. Cruz is the Vice President, Head of Health & Safety. Mr. Richard Cruz
joined Holcim Philippines, nc. in May 2008 as Labaratory Enginesr for AFR. In March
2010 he was appainted as Safety Officer responsible for delivering and maintaining
safety systems and inftiatives across afl plants.  From 20190 until his nomination for
appointment as Head of Corporate Occupational Heahth and Safety, he served as
Safety Manager for HPI's Commercial ang Other Sites. '

Zoe Verna M. Sibala is the Vice President, Head of Strategy. Ms. Sibala holds a
mastars degree in Business Administration from the Graduate School of Business, De
ta Salle University and a degres in Ecanamics from the University of the Philippines. In
January 2010, she joined Lafarge as a Finance Manager of Batong Angono
Aggregates Corporafion and later on became the commercial comtroier of the
tafarge’s cement product line — Lafarge Cement Service Philippings, [ne. Prior to being
appointed as Head of Strategy of Holoim Phifippines, Inc. she served Lafarge Repubhic
Aggregates, Ing. as Project Managser from July 244 to Decamber 20%4 and as
Strategy and Business Development Manager from January to Decemnber 20H5.

Belinda E. Dugan is the General Counsel, Vice President - Corporate Secretary and
Compiiance Officer of the Company. She obtained her Juris Doctor degres from Ateneo
Law School and has over 23 years of experience with various multinational firms and a
consulting company. Prior to joining Molcim Philippings, nc. she was Vice President for
Legal Management Services of Aboltiz Equity Ventures, inc. (AEV) from October 2015
to October 2017, She served as Assistant Vice-president for Legal and Compliance of
SN Aboitiz Power from May 2008 1o October 2015,

Frederic Vallat has vast experience in business development and waste managament.
He jnined Latarge Chongqging — Peopls's Republic of China in June 2006 and served as
the Chine-Japan-Korea Industrial Ecology Vice President until Aprit 2011, From Apri
2011 to December 2012, he served as industry Ecology Technicat Director of Lafarge
Shui On, People's Republic of China and as West Asia and South East Asia Industrial

EL



Ecology Technical Chirsctor of Lafarge Asia, Malaysia from January 2013 to October
2015 where he supported the business development of seven countries. Prior 1o joining
Holein Philippines, nc., he served as Geocycle APAC Head of Investment and
Operation of LafargeHolcim - Singapore.

Bobby Garza is the Vice Fresident, Plant Manager of Lugait. Prior to being appointed
as Plant Manager in 2012, he previously served as production manager of the Holcim 1.5
Union plant from 2010 and Area Coach for Manufacturing Excettence of the Bulacan
plant, He joined the Company in 15995 as GQuarty Manager of La Union plant. Mr. Garza
is a registered Mining Engineer and a graduate of the Mapua institute of Technalagy,
Manila.

Xawvler Aruf Kennedy Savarimiathu is the Vice President, Plant Manager of Davao.
He holds a bachelor's degree from the Indian Institute of Ceramics and an MBA from
Alagappa University, Institute of Ceramic Technology., Prior to joining Holeim
Philippines, Inc. as Plant Manager of Bulacan Plant in 2017, he was the Asia Pacific
Begianat Head for Praduction, Process and Automation of Holgim Technology based in
Singapore. He also served as team leader for Process, Operations and Automation of
Lafarge Asia Sdn Bhd in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and Beijing, China in 2015 after the
merger of Latarge and Holeim,

Erafo Santos is the Vice President, Plant Manager of La Union Flart. Mr. Santos
setved In various leadership capacities across several Holoim Philippines faciities. He
joined the Company in November 1987 as Superintendent-Electrical.  In Septembear
2008, he was promoted as a manager and served 88 such until his prometion as Plant
Manrager of the La Union Flant,

Geert Kuiper is the Vice President, Plant Manager of Bulacan. Prior to his current role,
he was the Maintenance Expert for Asia Pacific Cament Industrial Perfarmance of
LatargeHoteim Singapors.  Mr. Kuiper was the Head of Maintenance, Ragional
Manutacturing Services of Holckm Technology-Singapore from October 2014 to January
2016, Prior to joining the Molcim Group in 2014, he held various lsadership roles in
Cement Australia. Mr. Kuiper has over 20 years of expetience in maintenance and
production managament and project engineering in heavy industrial operation. He holds
d Bachelors' degree in Engineering from the University of Prastoria in South Afriga.

Egwin Villas is the Vice President, Head of Sales for Greater Manita Region. Hs joined
the Company in September 18997 as Strategic Sourcing Specialist. He served as the
Company's Procurement Manager from Cctober 2007 to August 2010 and was laterally
transforred as Area Sales Manager for South Luzon in August 2011, Prior to his
appointment as Head of Instifutional Sales in May 2016, he served as the Head of
tnstiftional Sates i May 2016 and thersafter as Manager, Mational Sales, Bulk
nstitutional Sales. He is a certified Information Systerns Auditor and a cerified
Professional for Supply Management. He has a degree in Computer Scisnce from the
Philippine Christian University.

Aftarr Valondcia is the Vice President, Head of Sales for Mindanan. He has more than
twar tecades of experience in cement sales, technical services and ready mix concrete
operations.  His career highlights include the development and market launch of the
Hotoim Philippines’ blended and masonry cemend lines and the sstablishment of its
ready-mix concrete business, Mr, Valencia is a licensed civil engineer and receivad his
degree in this field from the Mindanao State University. He joined the Company in
October 1891 as Product Manager for Visayas and Mindanao regions, Prior to his
appointment as Vice President, he served as the Head of Regional Sales Channal
[Visrmin.

Ernesto Pawlo Tan is the Vice President, Head of Sales (CPR). He joihed the

Company in December 2015 as Head-Regional Commercial Sales of Nonh Luzon. He
served as the Zone Manager of JT international Philippines, inc. from February 2012 to
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November 2015 where he was responsible for overalt Luzon general trade performance,
and as Sales and Marketing Head and Acting Market Manager from January 2011 to
Becember 2011 He holdz a Bachelor of Scignce in Busmess Administration from the
University of the Philippines.

Albert Lecveras is the Vice President, Mead of Sales. He has 15 years of expsrience
in managing Sales Team, Distributors and key accounts sales. Prior to joining the
Company, he was the Fisld Operations Manager and Ragional Manager of Japan
Tobacco Internationat from 2012 1o August 2015 and Sales Division Head of the Non-
food Division of Wills International Sates Corporation.

fc}  Family Relationships

None of the members of the Beard of Directars nof any Executive Officer of the Company is
related by affinity or consanguinity.

(dy Independent Directors

Messrs, Simeon V. Marcelo and Yasuo Kitamote are the Campany's Independent Directors.
They are neither officers nor substantial sharehoiders of the Company.

ey  Warrants and Options Outstanding

Therg are no warrants or options granted by the Company to any of its directors or executive
officers.

{f  Involvement of Directors and Officers in Legat Proceadings

To the knowledge andior information of the Company, the present members of the Board of
Directors or the Executive Qfficers are not, presently, or during the iast five {5 years, involved
of have been involved in criminal, bankrupicy or insolvency investigations or proceedings,
except for the pending legal proceedings described in Annex A hereot,

fa} Cenain Aelationships and Belated Transactions

For a detalled discussion of other material related parly transactions, please see Note 20 -
Retated Party Transactions 10 the accompanying consofidated financial staternents in ftem 11.

Except for the transactions discussed in Note 29 — Relatsd Party Transdctions to the
accompanying consolidated financial staternents in Hem 11, there were ng other material
related party transactions during the last three financial years, nor are there any
material fransactions currently proposed between the Company and any: {i} diractor, officer,
diract or ndirect owner of 10% or more of the outstanding shares in the Company; {i)) close
family member of such director, officer or owner, {ii) associates of the Company {iv)
enterprises controfling, controffad by or under commeon control with the Company; or (v
erterpnses in which & substantial interest in the voting power is owned, directly or
indirectly, by any director. officer or owner of 10% or more of the cutstandipg shares in
the Company or any ciose family member of such director, key officer or owner, or
collectively, the Related Parties.

There was no outstanding indebtedness at any time during the last three (3) financial years
that was owed to the Company and/or s subsidiaries by any Related Party.

{h}  Eisagreement with a Director
Mo director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election 1o the Board since the date of the

last annual stockholders' meeling because of 2 disagreement with the Company on any maﬁer
relating to the Company's operations, policies or practices. .
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ITEM B. COMPENSATION GF DIHECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Campany has locat and expatriate executives. Expatriates are holding positions that are
technical and adwisory in nature. The compensation of local exsoutives is benchmarked
against the established Focus Group (FG*. At 100% performance attainment of the
Company's financial and business goats, the executive compensation is targeted to be at
median (P50} of the FG and atf the 3™ guartile for performance attainment of 110% and above.
Expatriates are paid in accordance with the Intermational Assignment compensation guidelines
of LafargeMolcim.

The compensation received by the Executive Officers represents salaries, bonuses and
benefits,

* The Cempany's Focus Group (FG) s composed of local and multF-national companies with
annual gross revenugs of PHP 5 - 50 biffion and 500 to 5,000 employess.

The following table shows the compensation of the Company’'s Execufive Officers serving as of
Decembear 31, 2018.

Executlve Compensation {in Php)

Mame and Principal Position

The GEQ and five most highly 20M9* | 80,553,915 | 6,738,560 59,810,061
compensated Exscutive Officers:

= John William Stull - President and
Chief Executive Oficer

" Frederick Fabien — SWP — Head,
ACK & infrastructure | .

=  Ramakrishna Maganti - SVP - ¢ 2018 | 60,553,810 | 6,738,560 59,810,061
Head, Marketing & Innovations :

= Jesusa Matividad L. Rojas — SVP -~
Head, Chief Finance Officer

*  William C. Sumakinog - VP —
Head, Saiss

«  Bermadette b Tansingeo — SVP - : _ :
Head, Grganization & Human 2017 | 600682851 12,871,846 34,004,724
Resourses

2019% | §7152,715 | 14,794,950 112,184,358
2018 Q¥ 183,715 | 14,704 950 112,184,355

2017 | 40,436,702 | 26,720,525 | 144,183,160
Benefits of the CEQ and five (5) most highly compensated Executive Officers include
retirement sarvice cost

Alf other Executive Officers and Directors as a group unnamed in 2018 include all incumbents
in the Leadership Team with the rank of Vice President. This also includes the pro-rate
safaries, bonuses and benefits of nther repafriaied expatriatas.

*Estimated compensation of executive officers for the ensuing year is assurmed {0 approximate
the 2018 level. Bonuses given are driven by actual performance of the compary: hence,
gstimate may vary from actual

* Bensfits of All Other Executive OQfficers and Directors include retirement and separation
benefits of Executives,

Al other Executive Officers and
Directors 85 a group unnamed

Other than difectors’ per diem, the directors of the Company do not receve any other
compensation from the Company, including any of the following arrengements:

&. Standard arrangement and any other material arrangements;
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b. Employment contract {between the Company and named executive officers):
c. Compensatory plan or arrangement;

d. Qutstanding warrants or options; and

e. Adiustments or amendments on the price of stock warrants or options.

ITEM T. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

For yaar 2019, the accounting firm of Navarro, Amper & Co. {Deloltte), with Mr, Oliver C.
Bucao as the Principal Accountant, s being recormmended by the Audit Cornmittee for
reappointment by the stockholders at the Annual Mesting. Deloitte has accepted the
Company’s invitation to stand for appainiment this year.

Deloitte, wih Mr. Oliver C. Bucao as the Principal Accountant, has been the Company's
independent public accountant/external auditer starting 20H7. Represantatives of said firm are
expectad to he present at the Annual Meeting. They will have the opportunity to make a
statement f they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to appropriate
guestions. .

The Company complies with SRC Bule 68, Part |, item 3(B)(WHix) on the S-year rotation of the
External Auditor and the two-year codling-off period on the re-engagement of the same signing
partnar o7 individual auditor. The Company engaged Deloitte for the examination of the
Company's financial statements starting the year 2017, Previously, the Company engaged Mr.
Gemio San Fedro of SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (8GY) for the examination of the Company's
financial statements for the years 2009 to 2011, He was replaced by Ms. Catherine E. Lopez,
for the years 2012 to 2015, and, Mr. Bogl E. Lucas, for the year 2016,

Audit and Audit-Related Foes

The aggregate fees biled for professional services rendered by Delditte in 2018 and 2017
were FhPR.0 miflion and PhPE.7 million. These fees, inclusive of cut-of-pocket expenses,
cowver services rendered by the external auditor for audit of the finansial statements of the
Company and other services in connection with stahutory and regulatory filings for years 2018
and 2017, :

Tax Fegs & Cher Feas

The Company did not engage Deloitte for tax and other services in 2018 and 2017,

There was no event in the past five years where Deloitte or its predecessor, SGV, and the
Company had any disagresment with regard to any matter reiating to accounting principies or
practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.

Tre audit findings are presented to the Company's Audit Committes, which reviews and
makes recommendations to the Board on actions to be taken thereon. The Board passes upon
and approves the Audit Committes's recommendations.

The members of the Audit Committee of the Company are as follows:
1. Yasuo Kitamoto - Chairman (Indapendent Diractor)

2. Simeon V. Marcelo - Member {indepandent Director)
3.  Hajani Kesar - Meamber



s

-,

ITem 8.  COMPENSATION PLANS

Mo action is 1o be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid ar distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ITEM S,  AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR EXCHANGE

Not applicable.

ITEM 10. MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Mot applicable.

Item 11, FinanCGiaL AND OTHER INFORMATION

The consolidated audited financial statements of the Company for the period ended on
December 31, 2018 is attached as Annex 8. Managements Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Resulls of Operations are incorporated in the Management Report.
Representatives of the Company's external auditor, Deloitta, are expectad to be present at the
Annual Meeting, and they will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so
and are expected to be available to respond 1o approprisle guestions from the stockholders.
The Company has had no matarial disagreement with Deloitte on any matter of acsounting
principte or practices or disclosures in the Company's financial statements.

ITEM 12. MERGERS, CONSDOLIDATIONS, ACQUISITIONS AND SiMi AR MATTERS

Mot applicable.

ITEM 13. AcQuUisiTiON R DHSROSTION GF PROPERTY

Mot appticable,

ITEM 14. RESTATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Company is not taking any action, which involves the restatement of any of its assets,
capital or surplus account. :

D. OTHER MATTERS

ITEM 15. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS AND QTHER PROROSED AGTION

There is no action t0 be taken weth respect to any repert of the Company or of its directors,
officers or committeas, excapt the approval of the minutes of the previous annual stockholders'
megting, and the Annual Report of the Company for 201 E,

Other proposed actions include ratification of all acls, investments, proceedings and
resolutions of the Board, the Board Committees and the acts of the officers and management
since the date of the last annual meeting. The matters for stockholders” ratification are acts of
the Board, the Board Committees, officers and management from the pravious stockholders'
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meeting 4 to the date of the Annual Meeting which were entered into or made in the ardinary
course of business and transactions and the following transactions, covered by apprﬂprlatﬁ
digclogures with the PSE and BEC:

=

e

7

T T,

o

March 1, 2018

Aprit 8, 2018

April 25, 2018

An advisory on the following matters approved in the regular
meeting of the Board of Directors held on Fabrsary 27, 2018

fa) Postponement of the Company's annual stockholders’ meeting
fram the second Thursday of May to May 18, 2018, and setting of
the record date at Aprd 18, 2018; :

{b} Mommation of MNavarro Amper & Co. as external auditor for 201 B, |
and

{c) Approval of audited financial statemants for fiscal year 2017,

An advisory un the notice, agenda, venue, and time of the annual
stockholders’ meeting t0 be held on May 18, 2018,

An advisory on the following matters:

{8} Hesignation of Ms. Sapna Sood as director, President, and Chief
Exscutive Officer of the Company, and Mr. Daniel Bach as director;

(b} Election of Mr. John Wiliam Stulf and Mr. Mare Gross as
diractors to serve the unexpired term of Ms. Sood and Mr. Bach;

{ch Appointrent of Mr, Stull as President and Chief Executive Officer;

{d) Appointment of Mr. Richard Cruz as Head of Comporate Health,
Safety, and Security; and

(&) Appraval of the retirement of Ms, Carmela Dolores Calimbas
{Head of Organizationat Health, Safety and Security),

May 18,2018

dune 7, 2018

An athasory on the results of the Company's regular meeting of the
Board of Directors, annual stockholders” meesting, and organizational
mesling of the Board of Directors held on May 18, 2014,

An advisory on the attendance of the Company's directors and key
officers tn a corporate governance seminar conducted by the Risks
Opportunities Assessment and Management, Ing. in compliance with
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"Y Memorandum Circular
Mo, 20, Series of 2013,

June 25, 2018

: Ms. Mary Grace Sanchez, as Data Privacy Officer and the
¢ appointment of Ms. Ramakrishna Magantt as Senior Vice President,

i E. Dugan as interim Data Privacy Officer.

An advisory on the results of special meeting of the Board of
Directors haeld on June 22, 2018 accepting the resignation of Me.
Roman Menz as Senior Vice President, Head of Manufacturing, and

Head of Markating and |nnovation, Mr. Frederick Vallat as Vice
Prasident, Head of Geooyele and Head of CAPEX, and Ms. Belinda
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Algust 31, 2018

Cictoher 9, 2(H8

An advisary an the order given by the Deparment of Trade and
industry — Bureau of Product Standards directing: (8) the forfeiture of
the surety bonds in the {otat amount of Php B,145,920.50 nosted by
the Company in connection with #is applicetion for issuence of
Statements of Confirmation {SOCY for Type 1 cement covered by
B#is of Lading No. HPPH 152-1, HPFPH 163-1, HPFPD 1554-1 and
HPPH 158-1, and (b} issuance of product recalt for the
aforementioned goods.

An advisory on the order of the Department of Environment and
Matural Resources {"DENR" — Pollution Adjudication Board ("PAB"}
requiring the Company to fuif#t its emvironmentat compliance
cbligation in the amount of Php 3,000.000.00 in connection with
OENR FAB Case MNo- NCR FO1008-18 entitled "In the Matter of tha
Water/ A Poliution Control and Abatement Case wversus Holcim
Phiippines, In¢., - Bicutan Batching Plant, Bolcim Philippines, Ine.”

QOctober 18, 2018

Qctober 14, 2018

Qctober 18, 2018

An advisory on the payment 1o the SEC of the penalty incurred in
connection with the Company's non-compliance with the SEC

prescnbed website termplate for publichy fisted companies.

An advisory on the order of the DENR - PAB requiring the Company
to satisfy an environments! compliance obligation under Republic Act
Mo, 82¥E5 in the amount of Php 3,600, 00000 in connection with the
17,400 MT of coal that wers washad out to the Bagbag shoreling, La
Union on July 13, 2018 after the embankment at the stockpile area
was breached by torrential rains.

An advisory an the Company's receipt of (i) the petition for interim
prafection filed by Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. ("Seasia™) under
AM. No 07-11-08 SC or the Special Rules of Court on Altemative
Dispute Resolution with Branch 85 of the Aegionat Trial Court at
Mariveles, Bataan {"Bataan RTC"}: and (i) an Crder dated 11
October 2018 issued by Bataan RTC granting Seasia's motion for
the ex-parte issuance of 2 temporary protection order in the form of
& writ of preliminary attachmeni.
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December 3, 2018 An advisory on the following matters approved in the regutar
meeting of the Beard of Directors held on November 29, 2018,

| {a) Approval of investment of CHE 287M for the installation of an
: integrated plan in Bulacan and new clinker line system for Lugat;

{by Closure and dissolution of the Company's wholly-owned
subsidiary, Excel Concrete Logistics, inc.;

(c) Acceptance of resignation of Mr. Maric Gross as director and
memer of the Audit Committee

() Elaction of Ms. Rajani Kesari as the replacemant of Mr. Gross to
serve his unexpired term as director;

{e) Resignation of Ms. Belinda E. Dugan as Data Frotection Officer;

{(f] Appointment of Ms. Leighna Katrina Sitoy-Abarquez as Data
Protection Officer and Mr. Miels Ledinek as Senior Vice President,
Head of Cement [ndustrial Performance; and

i {g) Change in the designation of several officers from “Assistant
Vice President” to "Vice President”.

MWarch 20, 2019 An advisory on the following matters approved in the special
meeting of the Board of Directors held on March 20, 2015

{a) Approval of amendment of Articles of Incorporation to provide for
an additional secondary purpose: to enable the Sompany to provida
sofl stablization solutions and ancillary services to its custoners
such as initial soH testing, soil preparation, hydraulic binder
application, soil-binder mix compaction and frading, finishing, chip
sealing, stabikzed soil perdformance resting and other simitar
services.

i) Resignation Ms. Leighna Watrina Sitoy-AbargueZ as Data
Frotection Officer effective on Aprit 6, 2013

{c} Appointment of Ms. Beatrix H Guevarra as Data Protsction
Officer effective on April 6, 2018

The approval of the minutes, Annual Beport and audited financial statements for the pericd
endad December 31, 2018, and ratification of alt acts, procasdings and resolions of the
Board, the Board Committess and the acts of the officers and managsment since the date of
the {ast annual meeting require the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the Annual
Maeting by the stockholders entitled to vote,

ITEM 1B. MaTTERS NOT REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED

There is no action to be taken with respect to any matter which is not required te be submitted
ter & vota of security holders,

ITEM 17. AMENDMENT OF CHARTER, By-LAWS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS

The Company is presenting for stockholders’ approvat the amendment of the Company's
Artictes of Incorporation providing for an addiional secondary purpose to enabile the Company

to provide sofl stabilization solutions and ancillary services 1o its customers such as initial soil
testing, soil preparation, hydrawic binder application, soil-binder mix compaction and frading,
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finishing, chip seaking, stabilized soit petformance resting and other similar services. The
amendment is being proposed in order to add an activity that complements the business of the
Company.

ITEM 18. OTHER PROPOSED ACTION
The following actions are also proposed to be taken up during the Annual Mesting:

1, Election of directors for 2019-2020; and
2. Appointment of external auditor.

ITEM 19. VOTING PROCECUAES
{a}  Matters for Stockholders” Approval

As provided in Articke |, Section 4 of the By-laws, a quorum at any meeting of stockholders
shall consist of a majority of the entire subsaribed capital stock of the Company represented in
person or by proxy, and a4 majority of such quorum shall decide any question that may come
hefore the mesting, axcapt the matters in which Philippine laws require the affirmative vote of a
greater propartion. A majority of the guorum at the Annual Mesting shall decide the matters to
be taken up at tha meeting.

The affirmative vote of stockholders representing at least two thirds (2/3) of the cutstanding
capital stock of the Company shall be necessary for the approvat of the proposed amendment
to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company.

fbt  Election of directors

Pursuant to Section 23 of the Revised Corporation Code, avery stockholder entitfed 1o vote
shall have the right to vote in person or by proxy the number of shares of stuck standing, as of
the record date, in his own name in the stock and fransfer hook of the Company; and said
stockhoider may vote sueh number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be
gfected or he may curnulate said shares and give one candidate as rnany votes as the number
of dirsctors to be slected multiplied by the number of his shares owned, or he may distribute
them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit; provided, that the
total number of voles cast by him shafl not exceed the number of shares owned by him as
shown in the books of the Company multiplied by the number of directors 1o be elected. By
way of illastration, the formula may he stated as folkows:

Number of shares held on record x Seven (7) = Total votes that may be cast,

Stockholders of record are entitied 1o one vote per share. Voling may be done viva vocs, by
show of hands or by balloting.

In accordance with Article |, Section 3 of the Amended By-faws, stockholders may vote at ag
meetings the number of shares registered in their respective names, either in porson or by
proxy duly given in writing and duly presented o the Corporate Secretary for inspection and
recorded at or priar to the opening of said meeting. No proxy bearing 2 signature which is not
legally acknowtadged shall be recognized at any meeting unless slch signature ks known and
recognized by the Secretary of the meeting.

All proxies shall be in writing, signed by the stockhoiders and fited in the office of tha Corpeorate
Secretary at least five {5) days before the meeting.

The external auditer of the Company, Deioitte, is authorized o count votes on any matter
praperly brought to the vote of the stockholders, including the election of directors,
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The aganda for the Annual Meeting is as follows.

1.
2.
3

— 0 oo

Call to Order

Proof of Netics and Determination of axistence of quorum

Approval of the minutes of the previous annuat stockholders' meeting held on
May 18, 2018

Approval of the Annual Repord and the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the period ended December 31, 2018

Approval of Amendment 10 the Second Adicle of the Company's Asticles of
Incorporation

Approval and Ratification of aill acts, contracts, investments and resolutions of
the Board, Committees and Management zsince the last annual stockholters’
meeating

Election of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Other Matters

Adiournment

(This space intentionally jeft biank. Signature page follows.)



SHGNATURE
After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief | cerlify that the

information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the
City of Taguig, Metro Manila, on Aprif 25, 23189,

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC,

By

Cotporpte Secretary



HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

MANAGEMENT REPORT

. CONSOLIDATED AUBHTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Holcim Philippines, Inc.'s (HPI or the Company) consolidatad audited financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2018 aftached to the Information Statement is
incarporated herein by refarence,

1. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
ON ACCOUNTING aNB FINanclal DiSCLOSURE

Thera was no event i the past five years where Navarro Amper & Co. (Deloitte) or its
predecessar, SyCip Gorres Velaye & Co., and the Comparny had any disagreement with
regard to any matter refating fo accounting principles or practices, financial statemert
disclosure or auditing scope or procedure. .

HIR MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSEION AND ANALYSIS OF FiINaKCIAL TORDITION AND AESULTS OF
OFERATIONS BEASED OM THE CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF
DEcEMAER 31, 2018 aNn 2017

Beview of CY 2018 Dperations vs, CY 2017

In 2315, the Country's Gross Domestic Product (GDF} grew by 8.2%" lower than the
£.7% growth in 2017. Among the major economic sectors, Indusiry had the fastest growth
while Services decelerated 85 compared from prior year and Agricutiure sector further
declined.

The Company's revenue increased to PhP356 bio or 2.54% higher compared to 2017
ariging from the combined effect of higher sales volume and steady prices hinged on
increasing dermand from public and private infrastructure projects amidst the tighter
market competition. Sales performance was affected by soft market demand particularky
the first three quarters of the year although volumes staned to pick-up towards the end of
the year. Although the Company was able to mitigate some of higher production costs
through business efficiencies and productivity measures, consolidated Operating EBITDA
declined to PFhP4.9 bio from PhRS.4 bin. With higher interest expenses from short-term
loans related to capital expenditures especially from expansion projects, Net income after
tax stood at PhP25 bio compared with PhP2.7 bio of last year. Desgpite this, the
Company cantinues fo ramp up and upgrade its facilties patticularty #s cement and
clinker production capacities to sustain #s nvestment and expansion plans in the country
couptled with various cost improvement initialives 1o mitigate inpact of higher costs.

*Souree: Philipping Statistics Authority



Key Performance Indicators (“KPI")

The comparative tinancial KPE for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as
foflows:

For thé Calendar Year

Financial KPi Cefinitlon ended December 31
2018 2017
Profitability
Met income : ;
Return on Assets [ROA} Ave. Total Assels 6.5% 7.8%
. Met lncome
Return an Equity (ROE} " Ave. Total Equity 10.7% | 11.1%

___Operating EBITDA

Operating EBITDA Margin Net Sates 18.7% ;5 15.7%
(iagida S :
: , , . Net Financial Debt

Gearing Ratio Towal Equity 16.7% 12.2%
Operating EBITDA :

EBITDA Met Interest Cover ot Ihterest 176 B35

{times)

Profitabiity

While lower compared with fast year, the profitability indicators remain to be at good fevels
remairting positive.

Liguid ity

The Company's liquidity position remained strong evidenced by significant cash balance.

Significant Disclosures

Pieass refer to the Annual Report for 2018 for the significant disclosures made by the
Company during the year. Other than those mentioned in Annuat Report, the Company is
not aware of the following:

1. Unusual fems that materiafly affect the Company's consolidated assets,
liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows because of their nature, size or
imtidents,

2. Changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the
current financial year or changes in estimates of amounts in prier financial
years that have a materal effact in the currant pariod.

3. lssuances and repurchase of eguity securities.

4. Material changes in cordingsnt liabilities or contingent assets since the last
annual balance sheet date.



5. Existence of material contingencies and ather events of transactions that are
material to an understanding of the current period.

3. Known trends, demands, commitments, evenis angd uncerainies that will
result in or likely decrease its liquidity in 8 material way., The Company does
not anticipate having within the next 12 months any cash flow or lquidity
problems nor does it anticipate any default or breach of any of its existing
notes, loans, leases, other indebtedness or financial arrangements requining it
to make payments.  With the improvement in the Company's operating
petformance, it expects to meet all financial loan covenants for the next
interim pariod.

7. Ewvents that will trigger direct or contingant material financial obligations to the
Company.

8. Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations {direct or
contingent), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the year,

8. Material comraitments for capital expenditures.

10. Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expectad to have a material favorable impact en net sales, revenuss, net
income from continuing oparations.

11. Significant elernents of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's
continuing operations.

12. Material events subsaquant to end of the reporting period that have not been
reflected in the consofidated fingncial statements.

MNotes to Financial Statements
Accounting Folicles and Principlas

The consolfidated financial statements of the Company, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financiz| position as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and the consaolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consofidated statements of
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2B have been prepared in compliance with FPhilippine
Financial Reporting Standards applied on 4 consistent basis. The detailed accounting
policies are disclosed in Note & - Summary of 3ignificant Accounting Policies in the
Consclidated Financial Statemeants.

Seasonality Aspects of the Businoss

Like any other company in the construction industry, the operations of the Grauap are
affected by seasonality. Net sales are generally higher in dry months from February to
May and lower during the rainy months of June to November, Low sales are also
sxperianced during December due to holidays until early January. Unpredictable weather
could aiso significantly affect sales and profitability compared to previous pericds coupled
with any unforeseen circumstances like disruptions in productions,



Financial Risk Management Objectives and Polficies

General Rigk Management Approach

The Company is expossd to various financial risks, which include the sffect of changes in
debt structure, equity market prices, forgign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets ang seeks to minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Company. The Company does not enter into other dorivative o
financiad iransactions which are unrelated to its operating business as a risk-averse
approach is pursusd.

Financial risk management of the Company is governsd by policies approved by
management. |t provides principies for cwverall risk management, as well as policies
cowering specific risk areas such as interast rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty
Fisk, use of derivative financial mstrurments and investing assets in excess of lguidity
requirements,

The Company's principal fingncial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and
cash equivalents and ioans payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise funds for the Company's operations. The Comgpany aiso has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivablies, advances to
employees, giarantee deposits, restrictad cash and trads and other payables which arise
directly from aperations.

The main risks ariging from the Company's financial instruments are market risks {which
include forgign currency sisk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liguidity risk, The Board
of Diractors {BOD) reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks
and they are sumumarized below. The Company's zccounting policies in relation to
financial instruments are set out in Note § to the consolidated financial statements.

Market Risks

The Company is exposed 10 market risks, such as forsign currency, interest rate and
equity price risks, To manage volatility relating to thess exposures, the Company enters
into derivative financial instruments, when necassary. The Company’s objective is to
raduce, where appropriate, fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with
changes in foreign currency. interest rate and equity price.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial
iesstrurrent wifl fustuate becavuse of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company has foreign exchange exposures, arising primarily from purchases of goods
and sarvicas and debt sarvicing requirements in currencies gther than the Philippine Peso
that leads to curmency transtation effects. Of the Company's revenues, approximately nit
and (103% were denominated in currencies othar than the Phdlipping Peso in 2018 and
2017, respectively.

Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is Bmited.  Howewver,
incame may primarty be in local currency whereas dabt servicing and significant amount
of capital expenditures may be in foreign currencies. As a conseqguence thereof, the
Company may enter into derivative confracts whenever necessary, which may be
designated aither as cash fiow hedges or fair value hedges, as appropriate,

As of December 31, 2018, the GCompany had minimal assets and liabiities exposed to
foreign currency rsks,



Interest fate Hisk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a finanscial instrumernd (cash flow
irtarest rate risk) or its fair value fair value interest rate risk) wilt fuctuate becauss of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements
of its debt portfolic related to changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest
rate exposure is mainly addressed thraggh the steering of the fixedfMloating ratio of net
debt. Ta manage this mix, the Company may entar into derivative fransactions, as
appropriate. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had minimal exposure to
interest rate rigk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as
agreed. To manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of
customers.

The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Courntarparties to financial
instruments congist of a large number of major financial institutions. The Company doss
not empect any courntarpartias to faill in meeting their obligations, given their high credit
ratings. In addition, the Company has no significant concentration of cradit risk with any
single counterparty or group of counterpartiss.

The maxiraum and minenum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset.

The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. [t is the Company's
policy that gl third-party cusiomers who wish 10 trade on credit terms are subject to oredit
vesification procedures. In addition, receivable batances are monitored on an ongoing
basis to reduce the Company's exposure 10 bad debts to minimal,

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which
consist of due from related parties, advances to employees, avattable for sale {AFS)
firanciat assets, and guaraniee and refundable deposits, the Company's exposures arise
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the camying amount
of these instrumens.

The Company's exposurs to credit risks arising from outstanding financial assets is
disclosed in Note 18 -~ Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the
Conszolidated Financtal Statements,

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
Hs contractual obligations and commimeants, The seasonalty of revenue generation
exposes the Company to shortage of funds during slack season and may result in
payment defaults of financial commitments., The Company monitors this risk using a
recurring liquidity planning tool.  This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations. The Company's objective is to maintain
a batance between continuity of funding and flexibifity through the use of bank credit
facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts. [ is responsible for its own cash
surpluses and the raising of ioans to cover cash deficlts, subject to policies and guidelines
approved by management and in certain cases at the BOD level.



The Company maittains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are
short-term in nature and unused credit Enes to meet its liquidity requirements at alt times.
in addition, the strong credit worthiness of the Company allows & to make efficient uss of
the fingneial markets for financing purposes. As at December 31, 2098 and 2017, the
Company has unutilized cred facilities of PhP9.5 billion and PhP3.4 billion, respactivaly.

The Company's financial assets and Habilities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are
disclosed in Mole 18 — Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Capital Management Policy

The Company considers equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company
as itz capital. The Company's objectives when managing capital are to securg the
Company's ongoing financial needs to continug as a going concern as wel as to cater to
is growth targets o provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakehotders
and to maintain a cost-afficient and risk-optimized capitel structure.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustmenis 1o it in light of the
changes in econamic corditions, its business activities, investment and expansion
prograrm and the risk characteristics of the undsrlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
eapital structiere, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharehoiders,
roturn capitat to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio. Gearing is
calculated gs net financiat debt divided by total equity in the parent company balance
sheets as shown in the table below:

2018 2017
Lnans payable - Third party 15,200,000 P -
Enans payable - Group 3,925,850 4 177,802
Customers' deposits 496,305 . 487 035
Financiaf debt 9,622,155 4 574 337
tess cash and cagh eguivalents ' 5,399,853 . 1,545 797
Met finencial debt a,.232 302 . 2729140
Total equity 25273162 . . 22354,748
(Gearing ratio 16.7% - 12.2%

The Company's target is to maintain a gearing in the range of ne more than 100 percent.
Total equity grew by 12.5% in 2018 as a result of increase in other comprehensive income

Material Changes in Balance Shest Accournis

Cash and cash equivalents

Increase in cash and cash equivalents were mainly due to higher cash flow from
operations end proceeads from ST leans used for capital expenditures spending.

Trade ang other receivables

Receivables increasad mamly dus to from higher duse from ralated parties compared to
Previous year,



Chher current assets

Decrease was mainky attributable to decrease in advances to suppliers and amortization
of prepaid expenses,

[nvestrments

Decreass was mainly due to the dividends received net of share from unrealized income
from HMDBC group.

Propery. Plant and Equiprment - net

Increase was mainky from additional capital expenditures net of disposal of assets from
ECLI and HUBB,

Retirament bensfit assels — net

Inergase from gain [/ recegnition of addifional retirement fund assets this year net of
prasent vatue of defined benefit obligations.

Other Mon-Current Assets

fncrease was mainly dug 1o additional deposit for future obligation, re-class from short to
long-term financtal recefvable from a refated party, and higher guarantes deposits to
suppliers.

[ntangibles assets - nat

DCecraass was mainly due 1o amortization recognized for the year. No additional intangible
assets recorded within the vear,

Loans Payahle

Decrease was mainly due 1o additional loan from externat and refated partios net of
settlernents [ paymemnts made within the year,

Trade and Ciher Payabies

tncrease in trade and other péyabies were matnly driven by higher trade payables and
advances from customers.

income Tax Payaible

increase was due 1o higher taxable income by reason of increase in non-deductible
expenses for the year ended December 2018 as compared 1o year ended December
2017,

Provisions

Decrgase in provisions was mainly dus 1o settlement of tax prwisioné during'the paricd

Deferrad tax liabilities

Maindy attributable to recognized gain from additional retiremeant fund asset, collection of
foraign currency-denominated receivables resulting to unrealized foreign exchange gain,
and amortization of deferred tax on revalued property.



Reserves
Decrease is mainly due 1o accrual of share-based remuneration for the year.

FBe-measurernent gain on retirement bevefits — net

The increase was due to recogrized gain from gdditional retirement fund asset, updated
actuariat assumptions and adjustments which were considered in the retirement kability
caleculation.

Retzined Earnin

Decrease was due to lower net income realized for the year,

Mon-controlling interests

Increase was mainky due to share from remeasurement gaing on ratirerment benofits of
HFEMC.

Matarial Changes in Income Statement Accounts
Hevenues
Higher revenue mainly driven by higher sales volume and steady prices hinged on
increasing demand from public and private infrastreciure projects amidst the tighter
market competition,
Cost of Sales
Increase was mainly due o higher production volumes and input costs particularly usaga

of mported coal, chnker and cement to support volume soid net of implemented
nperational efficiencies and margin optimization initiatives.

General and adminisirative expenses

Decroase was mainly due to lower third party / outside services costs net of highar
personnel costs from restrocturing and various cost savings initiatives across ail functions.

Selling Fxpenses

The decrease was mainly due to lower third-party costs net of higher pérsonnegl expenses
from Commercial transformation indtiative.

|nterest and Financing Charges

The increase was due 1o interest expansa from short-ierm exiernal and intercompany
ioans 1o support capital expenditures spanding.

Other income = net

Decrease was due to absence of one-time gain from the disposal of assets recognized
last year,

Foreign Exchange Gains [Losses) — net

Decrease was dug to decrsase in foraign currency denominated assets which were
revalued at year-end.



Pravision for Income Tax

The decrease was mainky due to iower taxable income for the year.

{This space intentionafly laft blank. Review of CY 2017 Operations vs, CY 2016 to foflow.}



Review of CY 2017 Operations ve. CY 2016

In 2017, the Country's Gross Domestc Product {GOP) grew by B.7%", lower than the
#.8% growth in 2016, Among the major economic sectors, industry had the fastest growth
followed by Services. Agricufture sector alsa graw compared to prior year,

The Company's revenue decreased to PhP34.7 hio, or 13.9% lower compared to 2016
arising from the combined effect of lower sales volurne and price amid the tightar market
cormpetition. Sales porformance was affected by soft market demand particularly the first
thrae quarters of the year although sates volume started to pick-up in the last quarter of
the year, The Company achieved a consolidated operating EBITDA of PhP5.4 big, or
49 5% lower than 2016 mainly due to low topline performance and higher cost of goods
s0ld. Net income after tax stood at PhP2.7 big comparsd with PhPG.8 bio, or 80.7% lower
than last year. Despite this, the Company continues to ramp up and upgrade its facilities
particidarly its cement production capacities to sustain its investment and expansion plans
i the countty coupted with various cost improvement initiatives to mitigate impact of
higher costs.

*Baurce; Fhilinpine Siattztics Authorify

Key Performance Indicators

The comparative financial KP| for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:

Financiat KP Definiticn For the Calendar Year
ended December 31

2017 2016
Profitattity
Retum on Assefs (ROA) | Netlcome | 7.8% 20.2%
Ave. Tolal Assets
Heturn on Equity (ROE} et Income ' 11.1% 26.7%
Ava. Total Equity
Oparating EBITDA Margin Operating EBITDA 18.7% 28.8%
: Met Sales .
Gearing Ratio Net Financial Debt - 12.2% -£.3%
Totat Equity
: EBITDA Net inferest Cover Operating EBITOA G35 4865
’ tirmes) Net Interest
Profitabiity

Whilte lower compared with ast year, the profifability indicators remain to be at good levels
remaining positive.

Licpuidity

The Company's liguidity position remained strong as evidenced by sigrificant cash
batance. :
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Significant Disclosures

Please rafer fo the Annual Repori for 2017 for the significant disclosures made by the
Company during the year. Other than those mentioned in the Annual Report, the
Company is not aware of the following:

1.

10,

11.

12.

Unusual items that materialy affect the Company's consolidated assets,
Babilities, equity, net income or cash flows because of their nature, size or
incidents.

Changes in estimates of amounis reported in prior interim pericds of the
current financial year or changes in estimates of amounts in prior financial
years that have & material effect in the current period.

Issuiances and repurchase of eguity securities,

Material changes in contingent Babilties or contingent assets since the last
annual batance sheet date.

Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that ars
material to an understanding of the current period.

Known trends, demands, commitments, events and uncerisinties that will
tesult in or likely decrsase its liguidity it & matenal way., The Company doas
not anticipate having within the next 12 months any cash flow or ligquidity
problems nor does it anticipate any default or breach of any of its existing
notes, ioans, leases, other indebtedness or financial arrangements reguiring it
to make paymemns. With the improvement in the Company's operating
performance, it expects to meet all financial loan covenanis for the next
intenim period.

Fvents that will frigger direct or contingent material financial obligations 1o the
Company.

Material off-bafance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (direct or
contingent}, and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated
entities or other persans created during the year,

Material commitmants for capital expenditures.

Known trends, events or uncertaintios that have had or that are reasonabily
expected to have a material favorable impact on net sales, revenues, net
income from conttruing operalions.

Significant elements of income or foss that did not arige from the Company's
continuing oparations.

Material events subsequent 10 end of the reporting pericd that have not been
reftected in the consclidated financial statements.
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Notes to Finangial Statements
Accounting Folicies and Principles

The consofidated financial statements of the Company, which comprise the consolidated
batance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the consolidated statements of
income, statements of comprehensive incomae, staternents of changes in eguity and
staternents of cash fiows for each of the three years in the period ended Decembar 31,
2017 have been prapared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
apphed in a consistent basis. The detailed accounting policies are disclosed in Note 5 —
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Consolidated Financig! Statements.

Seasonality Aspects of the Business

Like any other company in the construction industry, the operations of the Company are
affected by seasconality. Met sales are generafly higher in dry months froam February 1o
May and lower during the rainy months of June to Novemnber. Low sales are also
experisncaed during December due 1o holidays until early January, Unpredictable weathar
could aiso signiticantly affect sales and profitability compared to previous periods coupled
with any unforeseen circumstances ke disruptions in production.

Financial Hisk Management Objectives and Folicies

General Hisk Management Approach

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes in
debt structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial marketz and seeks 0 minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Company. The Company does not enter into other derivative or
financial transactions which are unrelated to its operating business as & risk-averse
approach is pursued.

Financial risk management of the Company is governed by policies approved by
managemsnt. It provides principles for overalt risk management, as well as policies
covering specific fisk areas such as interest rate nsk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty
risk, use of derivative financial instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidity
requirements,

The Company's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and
cash equivalents and icang payahte. The main purpose of these financial instrumants is
to raise funds for the Company's operations. The Company also has wvarious other
financial assets and liabifities such as trade and other recelvables, advances 1o
amployess, guarantes deposits, réstricted cash and trade and other payables which arise
diractly fram operations.

The main risks arsing from the Company’s financial instruments are market risks (which
include foreign currency risk and interest rate risk;, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors (BOD) reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarized below. The Company's accounting policies in relation to
financial instruments are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial staternents,

Market Risks

The Company is exposed o market risks, such as foreign currency, interest rate and
equity price risks. To manage volatility relating io thess exposures, the Company entars
mio derivative financial nstruments, when necessary. The Company's objective is to
reduce, where appropriate, fluctuations m earnings and cash flows associated with
changes in foreign currency, interest rate and equity price,



Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will tluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company has foreigh exchange exposures, arising primarily from purchases of goods
and services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Philipping Peso
that leads to currency translation effects. Of the Company's revenues, approximately
0.03% and 0.09% were denominated in currencies other than the Philippine Peso in 2017
and 2016, respectively,

Bue to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited. However,
incorne may primarity be in local currency whereas debt senvicing and significant amount
of capital expendiures may be in foreign currencies. As 8 consequence thereof, the
Company may enter inte derivative contracis whenever necessary, which may be
designated ¢ither as cash flow hedges or fair value hedges, as appropriate.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had minimal assets and liabifitias exposed 10
foreign currency risks.

interest Rate Bisk

Interest rate risk is the risk that futirs cash flows from a financial instrument {cash flow
interest rate risk} or its fair value {fair value interest rate risk) will fluciuate because of
changes in market interest rates,

The Company is exposed 1o Auctuations in financing costs and market value movements
of its debt portfolio related to changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest
rete exposure is mainly addressed through the stearing of the fixedfloating ratio of nat
debt. To manage this mix, the Company may enter into derivative transactions, as
appropriate. As at December 31, 2007 and 2016, the Company had minimal exposurs 1o
interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able g seme.their obiigaﬁuns as
agreed. To manage this risk, the Company pE!ﬂDdICEI”':,F assesses the fmanmar refiability of
sustomars,

The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial
instrumerts consist of a large number of major financial institutions, The Company does
not expect any counterparties to fail in meetfing their obligations, given their high cradit
ratings. n addition, the Company has no significant concentration of credi risk with any
single coumearparty of group of counterparties.

The maximum and mirmum exposure 1o credi risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset.

The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. It is the Company's
nolicy that all third-party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monilored oh an ongoing
brasis to reduce the Company's exposure to bad debts to minimal,

With respect ta credit risk ansing from the other financial assets of the Company, which
consist of due from related parties, advances to employees, available for sale [(AFS)
financial assets, and guarantes and refundable deposits, the Company's exposures arse
from defauit of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure agual 1o the carrying amount
of these instrurnents.

The Company's exposure to credit risks arising from oulstanding financial assels is

disclosed in Mote 18 — Financial Risk Management Dbjemwes and Policies in the
Consalidated Financial Statermnents.
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Liquidity Hisk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficufty in raising funds to meat
its contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation
exposes the Company 1o shortage of funds during skack season and may rasudlt in
payment defaults of financial commitments. The Company moenitors this risk using a
racurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considars the maturity of both its financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations, The Company's ohjective is to maintain
a balance between continuily of funding and flexibiity through the use of bank credit
facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts. 1t is responsible for its own cash
surptuses and the raising of loans to cover eash deficits, subject to policies and guidelines
approved by managerent and in cartain cases at the BOD level.

The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are
shor-term in nature and unused credit lines 1o meet its liquidity requirements at al times.
In addition, the strong credit worthiness of the Company aliows it to make efficient use of
the financtal markets for financing purposes. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company has unutilized credit facilities of PRP3.4 hillign.

The Gompanys fnancial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2018 are
disclosed in Mote 18 - Financial Risk Management Objectives and Palicies in the
Consolidated Financial Statements,

Capital Management Folicy

The Company cansiders equity attributabie to the equity holders of the Padent Comparny
as its capital The Company's objectves when managing capitsf are {0 secure the
Company's anguing financial needs to continue as & going concern as wel as to cater to
its growih targets 1o provide returns to shareholders and bensfite for other stakeholders
and to mairtain a cost-efficient and risk-optimized capital structure.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the
changes in economic conditions, s business activities, investment and expansion
pragram and the risk characteristics of the undertying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividands paid to shareholders,
return capital 1o shareholders, issue new shares or selt assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio. Gearing is
caiculated as net financial debt divided by total equity in the parent company batance
sheets as shown in the table below:

2007 2016

Lo&ans payable B4.177 902 E -
Customers’ deposits , 497,035 483,584
Financial debt 4,674,537 483,584
Less cash and cash equivalents ) 1,845,797 2,126,116
Met financial debt {asset) 2,729,140 {1,641,532}
Totat eguity 22,354,748 26,257,333
Gearing rafio 122% {6.3%])

The Company's farget is to maintain a gearing in the rarige of no mare than 100 percant.
The increase in gearing ratio was due 1o the PhP4.2 billion short-term loans from
assnciates availed by the Company during the year.

Total equity decreased by 14.8% in 2017 as a result of lower operating results for the
year. -
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WMaterial Changes in Balance Shest Accounis

Cash and cash eguivatents

Decrease in cash and cash aquivalents ware mainly due to lower cash from operations,
higher capex spanding, net of proceeds from intercompany loans.

Trade and other receivables - net

tncrease mostly pertains 1o increase in receivables from related parties due fo increase in
transfers of assets advances from the Company. This was mitigated by the decrease in
trade receivables prirmarily due 1o lower sales and improvement in D30 as a result of the
resolute collectinn activities this year.

inventories - net
tncrease is driven by high inventory levels of raw materials and fusks as of end of the year.

Oither current asseis

increase was mamly attribitable to mcreass m advances to suppiiers and prepayment of
taxes.

Property. Plant and Equipment - nat

increase was mainly from additional capitat expenditures, net of transfers of assets {o
HMDC group and wvarious disposals of praperty, plant and eguipment under BMX.
sagment.

intangibles assets — net

Decrease was mainly due to saleftransfer of software and amortization recognized for the
year, :

Deferred income tax assets - net

The increase was mostly atirbutable to pension contributions and setfement of prior
years' tax assessment.

Other non-current assets

The decrease was mainly duse 1o the reclassification of the current portion of long-term
financial receivable from Holcim East Asia Business Service Centre B.Y. (HEABS)
retating 1o the transfer of inteflectual propery rights and leasshald improvements, 1o other
current assets.

Loans Payable
During the year, the Company availed various short termn joans from refated pérties.

Trade and Other Payzbies

increase in frade and other payables was an effect of the increased purchases of
inventories and accruals for rebates during the year.

income Tax Payabie

Decrease was mainky due to lower taxable income for the year ended December 2017 as
compared to year ended December 2016.
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Retirement Benefit Liahilities

Increase was mainky due to impact of benefits paid from organizational afficiency and from
updated actuarial assumptions,

Provisions

Decrease in provisions pertaing to reversal of prior period's provisions after settlement of
8% as8ESsmMents.

Heserves

Increase was due fo HPI's performance compensation scheme accrual for the share-
based remuneration for the year.

Be-measurement l0ss on retirtement banefits — ret

The decrease was due io the updated actiarial assumptions and emplovee adjustments
which were considered in the ratirement Hability ealculation.

Retgined Earmings

Decrease was due to lower net income realized for the year and higher dividend
declaration.

Mon-contralling interests
Pecraase was dus to the higher share in remeasurement loss on retirement benefits than
the share in realized net inpcome during the year,
Material Changes in income Statement Aceounts
Revean:

Decrease was malnly driven by lower volume and price from strong competition and soft
market demand. -

General and administrative expenses

Decrease was mosly dus to lower expendiiure on third-party services as a result of
various savings initiatives taken across support functions,

Selling Expenses

The increase was mostly attributable to higher expenditure for advertising and prorhertion,
third pary services, transportation and communication and other expenses incurred for
strategic commercial initiatives.

frerest and Financing Charaes

The increase was due io the shor-term ioans availed from third par‘ti,r i Juby and from
retated parties by end of 2017,

terest and Other Financial Income

Increase was mainly attributable to increased short-term deposits.
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{iher income — net

Increase was mostly attributable to the gain as a result of HPMC's transfer of MPSA to
HRDC and higher undistributed earnings fram HMDC greup.

Frovision for Income Tax
The decrease was mainly due {0 the decrease of net taxahle income for the year,
Irformation on Independent Accountant

The accounting firm of Mavarro Amper & Co. (Deloitte) has been the Company's
independant pubtic accountant /! external auditor since 2017,

Audit and Aelated Foes

The aggregats fees bitled for professional services rendered by Deloitte in 2018 and 2017
were FhPB.0 million and PhPE.7 million. These fees, inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses,
cover services rendered by the external auditor for acdit of the financial statemants of the
Company and other services in connection with statutory and reguiatory fings for years
2018 and 2017,

Tax Fees & All Other Fees

The Company did not engage Deloitte for tax and other services in 2018 and 2017.

The Audit Committee's Approval Policies and Precedures for the Above Services

The Company's Manual of Corporate Governance provides that the audit cormmittes shall
parform oversight functions over the Company's internal and external auditors, ensure the
indepandsnce of both internal and external avdiars from sach other, and make certain
that both alditors are given unrestricted accass to a¥f records, properties and personnet to
anahle them to perform thelr respective audit functions,

In refation {o the audit of the Company’s financial statements, the Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance provides that the audit commitiee shal: .

» Prior io the commencemant of the audit, disclss with the external auditor the
nature, seope and expenses of the audit scope;

= Determine the extent of the internal and external auditor's responsibiity in the
preparation of the financiat statements of the Company

« Favigw the raports submitted by the internal and external auditors;

s Evaluate and determing the non-audit work. if any, of the external auditor, and
review pericdically the non-audit fees paid {o the external auditor in relation to
their significance 1o the total annual income of the external auditor and to the
Companty's overall consultancy expenses. The Audit Committes shall disatiow
any non-audit work that wilt conflict with his duties as an external auditor or may
pose a threat to his independence. The non-audit work, i aliowed, shall be
disclosed in the Company’s annual report,

« Preapprove all audit plans, scope and frequency one (1) month before the
conduct of externat audit.
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Upan recommendation of the Asdit Committes and approval of the Board of Directars, the
appeintment of the axiernal auditor is proposed for confirmation by the sharshoiders at
the annual stockhoiders’ meeting. In addition, the consalidated financiat statements are
reviewed and endorsed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Boardd of Directors
before its release.

IV. BREFRESCRIPTION OF THE GEMERAL NATURE
AND SCOPE OF THE COMPANY 'S BUSINESS AND TS SUBSIDIARIES

ltem 1. Business

Holcim is one of the premier cement manufacturers in the Fhilippines and s a member
of tha LafargeHoloim Group, one of the world's leading suppliers of cement, aggregates,
conecrete and construction-related services, HPY is mainly engagad in the manusfacture,
sale and distribution of cement and cementitious products and the provision of technical
support on various constrdction-related guality contepl, optimization, solutions
development and skils upgrade,

The Company and its subsidiaries own four cement production facilities, ona cement
grinding mill, frve parts, as well as muttiple siorage and distribution points across the
country.

The consolidated operations of the four cement production facilities have fortitied
HPl's premier position in the Philippine cement industry with a total installed clinker
production capacity of 5.2 miltion metric tons per year (MTPY) and cement production
capacity of 8.4 million MTPY.

HPl was the first in the Phiippine cement industry to recefve 130 3002 certification
(Quakty Management Sysiem Standards) from the International Organization for
Standardization {150}, Additionally, all four plants are S0 1400t  cerified
(Enviroament Managemesnt System Standards} and OR&S 18001 {Occupational Health
& Safety Managemant} cerified,

"Heicim" is one of the top sefting brands and quality leaders in the Philippines.

{1)  History and Business Development

MPE was incorporated and registered with the Philippines Securities and Exchange
Commission {(SEC on MNovember 12, 1964 under the name Hi-Cemamt Corporaticn
(HICC). :

On February B, 2000, the SEC approved the merger of HCC, Davao Union Cement
Corporation, and Bacnotan GCement Corporation, with HCC as the surviving entity.
Simultanaously, the SEC alsv approved the request for a change of corporale name from
HCC to Union Cement Corporation (UGG,

On January 11, 201, the SEC approved the merger of Atlas Cement Marksting
Corporation, Bavao Unioh Marketing Corpuration and Bacnotan Marketing Corporation
inte UCC,

Oy Juby 17, 2002, the Board of Directors of UCC approved the acquisition of 88% of the
issued and owtstanding common shares of Alsons Cement Corporation {(ACC) from
Cemaoo Holdings, Ino. (Cemaos). In constderation of such shares, new shares of UCC were
issued o Cemco, at the exchange ratio of one (1) UCC share for every 3.7 ACC shares
awnad by Cemen, thus, making ACC a subsidiary of UCC. '
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Fursuant to the Securtties Hegulation Ceode (SRC) and its implementng rules and
requiations, HP{ undertook a tender offer in favor of the remaining 12% non-controlting
shareholders of ACC to exchange their holdings in ACC for new shares of UCC at the
same exchange ratio, with the option to accept cash at a price of PhP0.28 per ACC share,
in ltisu of HPI shares, The foregoing transactions were approved by shareholders of UCC
on September 4, 2002, The Company acquired additional ACC shares representing 0.02%
equity interast in ACC after the end of the tender offer pariod.

On Septermber 13, 2002, the Board of Directors of ACC approved a resolution for the
delisting of the shares of stocks of the company from the Philippine Siack Exchange
{FSE). The PSE approved the resolition for the delisting an December 15, 2002,

On August 17, 2004, the SEC approved ACC's reverse stock split, increasing the par
vaiue of ACC's shares o PhP1.000 per share from PhPD.50 per share. As a result of
additional purchases from the remaining nan-cantralling shareholders of ACC in 2004 and
the effect of the reverse stock split, UCC equity intereet in ACC increased from 98.74% to
95 6%

On Novemnber 30, 2004, the SEC approved the request for change in corporate name from
UCC to HPI. On January 19, 2005, the SEC alse approved the change in corporate name
of ACC to Holcim Fhilippines Manufacturing Corp. {HPMC).

On March 6, 2014, the SEC approved the increass in authorized capital stock of Holoim
Mining and Development Corperation {(HMOC) {formeily Sulu Rescurces Developmernt
Corp., later renamed Hofcim Aggregates Corporation) 1o make way for additional
subscription by HFF and HPMC, in consideration of properties such as parcels of land,
mining claims and foreshore isases. On March 18, 2016, the SEC approved the increase
in authorized capital stock of HMDC fo make way for subscription by the Holcim
Fhiippines, Inc. Retirement Fund of sixty percent of the issued and outstanding capital
stock of HMDC. Today, HMDC is an associate company of HPI, providing most of the
Company's raw materials from the guarries of HMDC and its sebsidiarias in La Linion,
Bulacan, tugait and Davao. HMDC and its subsidiaries also leases to the Company
parcels of jand and foreshore leases for the latter's operations.

As of December 31, 2018, HPY is 60.55% owned by Union Cement MHoldings Caorporation
(UCHC), 18.11% owned by MHolderfin BY., and 7.08% owned by Cemco while the
rernainder of its shares is owned by the public. P common shares are listed in the PSE,

With regard to news reports regarding the potential sale of HP, HP| has riot received ahy
official communication from any of its major shareholders regarding any offer for sale of
HPI shares or bids from interested buyers,

The Company's Subsidiaries

Holcin Philippines Manufacturing Corporation (HPMC)

HPMC was incorporated and registered with the SEC on February 7, 1958 under the
name of Victory Cement Corporation.

MPMC has 1.5 million MTPY line that was successfully commissioned in 1998 and started
commercizl operation in January 198%. HPMC's terminal located in Calaca, Batangas,
which had been idie for several years, was rehabilitated in 2010 and resumed cperations
in Janhuary 2011, Today, substantially all of HPMC's cement manufacturing assets ana
paing leased by HPL.

In fanuary 2018, HPMC renewed the bareboat agresment with HP1 for the laklter's vessel
requirements o fransport cement to various destinations within the Philippines.
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HPMC's subsidiary, Calamba Aggregates Company, Inc. {CAGIH), was incorporated and
registered with the SEC on October 15, 1992, that operated an aggregates plant in
taguna. CACE ceased operations effective December 31, 2013,

HPMC's wholly owned subsidiary, Bulkcem Philippines, Inc. (BFI), was incorporated and
registerad with the SEC on April 5, 1995 Taday, BP| owns 2 bulk tarminal iocated in lloilo
which is currently being leased by HPI.

Alsons Construction Chemicals, Inc. {ALCHEM), another subsidiary, owned a cement and
mineral admixture plant in Lugait, Misamis Oriental, was incorporated in the Philippines
and was registered with the SEC on December 23, 1996, The opsration of ALOCHEM was
discontinued since July 1989, Al CHEM filed an affidavit of non-operation with the SEC.

Excel Conerete Logistics, Inc. {(ECLY)

Excel Concrete Logistics. Ine. was incorporated and registersd with the SEC on August 2,
2012, On January 1, 2013, ECLI started itz full operafion servicing the distribution, transport
and placing of concrete, as well as Fansport of cement and specialty products. On November
23, 2018, the Board of Directors of HP1 approved the closure and dissolution of ECLI, ECLI is
i the process of completing regulatory requirements for its eventual dissolution,

Holoim Phifippines Business Services Camter, fng. (HPBSCH)

Holcim Philippines Business Services Center, inc. was incorporated and registered with the
SEC on February 4, 2014, HPBSC! was set up 10 engage in tha business of providing
business process outsolrcing and other information technology-enabled sarvices to the
Halcien Group, On February 13, 2015, HPBESCG transferred and soid iis intellactual proparty
rights and feasehold improvemnanis 1o Holcim East Asia Business Service Centre BV, -
Philippine ROHG,

HuOB Stores and Services the. (HSS51)
HuBB Stores and Services inc. was incorporated and registerad with the SEC on
June 2, 2014, HES! was set up to engage in the business of buying, seling and distributing

construction and building materials, and to operate, mairtain and franchise stores for the
sale and distribution of said matetials,

Mabini Grinding Miff Corporation (MGMG)

Mabini Grinding Mt Corporation was incorporated and registéred with the SEC on
September 28, 1888, In August 2013, the rehabilitation of MGMOC's grinding station in
Mabini, Batangas was completed. HP| is lsasing and operating the seid grinding station.

Barkruptcy Proceedings

The Company of any of its subsidiaries is not a party to any bankruptoy, receivership or
similar proceedings.

Material Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation

The Company is not & party to any merger or consolidation for the period ending
December 31, 2018. Meither is the Company & party to any significant purchase of assets.

{2) General Business Description

HFI 5 engaged in the manufactura, sale and disfribution of cement, dry mix mortar
products, clinker and aggregates. 1t aiso offars construction-related  trainings,
consutancies, testing and other technicat services to its customers, With the Company's .
production facilities, ports, storage & distribution terminals, sales offices and channel
partners, HPI has an extensive sales and distribution footprint due to is strategicalty
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located plants and terminals in the Philippines. The Company's product quakity and
operational capability are geared toward meeting the customers’ needs.

fa) Product Lines

HPI manufactures four {4) main cament producst brands namely: Holcim Premium
Type 1 FPorttand cement), Holeim 4X {Type t high perfyrmance Portland cement),
Holcirn Excel (Type 1P Blended cemeant} and Holoim WallRight {Type 5 Masonry
cement]. Its products arz sold mostly in bags except for Holcim 4X {mainly butk).
(hther packaging formats include tonner, jumbo bags and bulk. HPY also selis to
cermant producers a semifinished product called clinker, which is sold only in
bulk. Moreover, it is involved in the ready-mix concrete business and selling of
aggregates. It has extended its portfodio by seling dry mix mortar products such
as Holcim Tie Adhesive, Holcim Skim Coat and HMeicim Cementitious
Waterproofing.

All HPI products meet the Philippine National Standards {FNS) and the Amarican
Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) product guality standards.

Below is a brief description of HPI's vanous products:
Holcim 4X

Hotcim 4X is an ASTM C150 high performance Portand cement. it is specially
formulated for ready mix concrete applications. it has high compressive strength,
high workability and 15 compatible with commonty available admixtures. Supplisd
in bulk, Halcim 4X s mainly used for high-rise buildings and vertical structures
that reguire high-strength cement. It is ideal for construction that requires
optimized concrete mix designs and fast construction cyoles,  With the high 28-
day compressive sirength of Holeim 4X, lower cement factor is nesded resulting
in lower construction costs, Longer satting time results to beter slump retention
and pumpability of concrate. -

Holcim Premium

Holcim Premiem is an ASTM Type | Portland Cement. It is used for general
concrete constriction. To make Portland cement, powdered lmestone, silica and
iran-rich materials are homogenized and bumt at 1500°C. The resulting material
is called clinker. Portland cement is preduced by grinding clinker with a smal
amount of gypsum, a set retarder. When Portland cement is mixed with water
and aggregates io make concrete, the mixture is initiafly flowable and easy to
place, moid and finsh, Eventually, the concrete sets, hardens and produces a
sirong and durable construction matarial.

Holcim Excel

Holcim Excel Cement is an ASTM Type 1P Cement, which is Portiand cernent
combined with advanced minerat additives. It is sold mainly in 40-kg bags and
used for general concrete construciion.  Advanced mineral additives (including
gramdated blast furnace slag) are inter-ground with Portiand cament slinker and
gvpsum to improve the workability and early strength.  The product is used for the
same applications as the Portland cement described above but is preferred by
many customers because the additives improve its performance.
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Holcim WallRight Cement

Holcim WalRight Gement is an ASTM G2 Type S Masonry Cement designed for
block laying, plastering and finishing use. N is made by inter-grinding mineral
additives and an air-entraining additive with Portland cement clinker during the
finish miling operation.The resulting cement will produce smoother, more
cohesive and more cost-effective mortars and plasters which are preferred by
MASONS,

Clinker

Clinker is an intermediate product in cement production. it is produced by
grinding and burning a proportioned mixture of limestone, shate and sifica. When
clinker is further subjected to grinding and added with gypsum, Portland cemant is
praducer.

Ready Mix Concrete

Heady mix concrete (BRMX) is an enginesred construction material produced by
mixing cement, admixtures, water, coarse aggregates and fine aggregates, it is
produced in an AMX batching plant under controlled conditions and defivered by
transmit mixer 10 a customer. A producer can make concrete of various strength
grades and performance characteristics by adjusting the proportions of the
different raw materals. The manner in which ready mix concrets is purchased,
produced and defivered is defined by ASTM CO4 Standard Specification for
Ready-Mix Concrete.

Over the course of its business operations, AMX has been incurring losses thus
the management has decided to cease its operations.

Aggregates

Aggregates are granular materials of mineral compositions used for various
construction appHcations, [ i3 used with a binding medium to form concrete,
bitemous concrete, precast concrete, mortar, plaster and other concrete and
asphalt applications, It can be used alone for road bases, structural beddings,
rafrord ballast, filter beds, backfills, etc. The grading and guality conforms to the
ASTM (32 Standard Specifications for coarse and fine aggregates.

Halcim Tile Adhesive

Holcim Tile Adhesive is a premium cement-based adhesive for tiles specially
formutated for thin-bed vertical and horizontal application.  its unigus formulation
combined with Holcim cement provides for a faster, stmnger adhesion, with
excellent non-siip propertiss.

Hoiclm Skim Coat

Holeim Bkim Ceat is a cementitious plaster specially designed to smoothen
vertical structures suitable for both indoor and outdoor use. Skim Coat is used for
rendering and smoothening surfaces prior to application of sealants or decorative
paints.

Holcim Concrete Waterproofing
Holcim Waterproofing is one-component cement-based waterproofing specially
tormulated using Holcim cemant, high-gquality palymers and chemical admixdures

to provide superior flexible waterproofing of structures. This product is currently
being sold on a per reguest basis,
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The following table shows the breakdown of sales revenues by product line of the
Company for the periods mdicated:

Tahle 1 - Aevenue by Product Line

Er .L—.-I.'l
fin Thousand Pesos) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 Decambe
Cement and F33,227 519 | RP31,686,117 | P38.364, 642
cementitious materials i L
Lthers 2,395,504 3084844 1971186
' Totat 235,623,113 | 34,740,761 | 40,335,808

fb)  Contribution of Export Sales

The amoumts and percentages of revenue atiributable to export sates, including
breakdown par region, for the calendar years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016 are as follows,

Tahle 2 — Export Revenue

sadendar Yoar

orded

ecembier 31, 20

Caserdar Year

el

Total Ex pr:rr't
Revenues

% to Total Revenues

0.03% _

‘Breakdown of Export
Revenues per Region
firr %}

Sovtheas Ass Tl

‘Eastern Asia

Oceania

TR

i North America

: ¥Western Europe

i Middle East

ihﬂ:ltal % 1o Total
i Hevenues

NIL

fo) Marketing and Distribution

The Company's major domestic customers are fraders, wholesalers, retailers,

contractors serving private and public projects,

real-estate  developers and

cohcreta producers. Notably, HPY has supplied a number of big commercial an{i
government flagship projects in the entire country.

(a) New Product

Holcim Solido, with high performance formulation Typs 1P blended cement was
witially introduced during the third quarter of 2018 io pilot customears as a naw

solution for roads and building construction.
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fa) Cornpetition

it

There are eight integrated cement manufacturers in the Philippines that include
Holcim, Republic Camernt, Cemex, Taiheiyo, Northern Cement, Eagle Cement,
Goodfound and Mabubay, These manufacturers aperate a total of 16 integrated
cement plants and 3 cement grinding plamnts alb over the country.  Big Boss
Cement, a new entrant, racently opened a cement grinding plant in Pampanga
this year.

Among the iocal piayers, Holcim has the widest market reach serving customers
across the country from two integrated cement plants, ong cement grinding plant
and one dry mix plant in Lozon, and two ntegrated cement plants in Mindanao.
Holcin also operates cement tarminals in lloilo, Batangas and Manila. There are
various warehouses strategically set up in the different geographic markets o
support the company's distribution network.

The Company has a deep portfolio of innovative solutions fostered by a wide
range of bullding products and solutions. 1t offers cament, aggregates, finishing
and concrete solutions that can help local builders execute a wide range of
projects with high performance and efficiency, from massive infrastruciures to
gimple home repairs.

The four cement plants of Holeim are cortified to mest the 150 9002 (Quality
Management), 130 14001 (Emvirenmental Managemsnt) and OHE&ES 18001
(Oeeupational Health and Satety Management) standards.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials and Supplies
Raw Matersials

The Company sources mbst of its raw materfals {limestone, pozzolan, shate) from
its associate company, HMDC and #s subsidiaries which hold Minerat Production
Sharing Agreements for s quarties in vanous areas in La Union, Bulacan, Davao
and Lugait, Misamis Onental. HPI also source raw materials from third pary
suppliars. - :

Engrgy Supply

Being an energy-INIBNSVE process, cement production requires & retiable and
competitively priced power supply for uninterrupted and cost-effective productian.

The Bulacan plant's peak demand is currently at 35 megawatts {"MW") while La
Linton plant's peak demand is currently at 15 MW, On August 12, 2011, a 15-year
Energy Services Agreement {ESA) was signed with Trans-asia Qil and Energy
Development Corp. (TA Oif), now Phinma Energy Corporation (PEC) for the
supply of both Bulatan Line 2 and La Union plants starting in 2014, in the new
ESA, electricity suppty will be coming from the 135 MW Puting Bato coal-fired
power plant in Calaca, Batangas owned by South Luzon Thermal Energy
Corporation, a2 point venture company of TA Qi and Ayala's AG Energy Holdings.
Inclided - in the agreement s the provision of back-up supply from the Dieset
Power Plants in Bulacan [TA Power) and in Bacnotan (CIP/TA Of). In essence,
power supply for the Company's Bulacan and 1.a Union Planis is assured over a
iong-term perod notwithstanding the uncertainties of how the Luzon grid supply
suation will move. Electricity fee is structured according 1o time-of-use {TOL)
rate with provisions 1o rate increases based on fuel purchased for the powst plant.
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The Davao plant’s total power requirement is 22 MW, The plant primarily sourced
it electricity from the National Powsr Corporation (NPC) through the Mindanan
Grid which generates a substantiai portion of its power through hydroelectric
powet plants, Effective September 26, 2013, Davao plant became a captive
custorner of Davao Light and Power Company, the Distribution Utility (DU)] which
holds the franchice for power distribution in the areg pursuant to Energy
FRegulatory Commission Resolution Mo, 27, Seties of 2010,

The Lugait plant's total power requirement is 32 MW for both lines or 27 MW with
Line 2 only. After the expiration of the Power Supply Agreement with NPC on
December 25, 2012, Misamis 1 Driantal Electric Coopearative (Moresca 1) took over
as the power supplier of Lugait plant pursuant to Energy Regulatory Commission
Aesolution No. 27, Series of 2010, Currently, only Line 2 is operating.

Mabini Grinding plant which is a 6MW capacity establishment has qualified as a
"Contestable Customer (CCY' when the Retad Compsttion and Open Access
(RCOA) was implemented last June 26, 2013. As a result, a 10-year Power
Supply Agreement with TA Oil was signed and took effect on June 28, 2014 in
iy of an agreement with distibution wtility Depantment of Energy (DOE)
Batangas Electric Cooperative, Inc. {BATELEDS ).

On Movember 29, 2017, BOE issued a BDepartment Circular 2017-12-0013
lowering minimum dermand to BO0-749 KW to qualify as a CC, This will aflow
captive customars in Luzon-Visayas Grid to shift to & Retall Electricity Supplier
(RES) and aval of competitive rates from RES supplisrs or from the Wholesale
Electricity Spot Market (WESM) by 28th Jupe 2018, At the moment, no other
facitities of HP qualified as contestable customer in Luzon-Visayas Grid aside
from La Union, Bulacan, and Mabini,

Coaal and Fuel Supply

HPIl uses coal for heating the Company's kilng in La Union, Bulacan, Davao and
Lugait. . '

HP's imported Indonesian coal requirements are covered with annual supply
contracts, These contracts form part of the Asie-PaciHic (AFAC) volume poaling
strategy led by LafargeHolcim Energy Solutions, a company established o
feverage the purchasing power of ARPAC Gperating Company (OpCos) {0 obtain
better pricing conditions for its coaf needs. The said strategy helped APAC OpCos
to leverage in both praduct and frefght resulting in more competitive rates. Spot
purchases shall remain 35 an option t0 have a healthy balance of supply
refiability, market competitive prices and opportunity for substitute fuels.

For local coaf requirements, the company entered Mo & 2-year contract with
Semirara Mining & Power Corporation covaring 2017-2018, .

HFt has an existing supply contract with Petron and S0 Harbour for its Digsel and
Bunker fugl neads, Contracts started from November 4, 2017 are stifl vakid undg
Qctober 31, 2020,

The Company has not expetienced any disruption in its solid and Bouid fuel
sURply.

In addition, Geocycle, the waste management arm of the Company, sources
Alternative Fuels and Hesources (AFR} 1o support fuet requirements of the
Company. AFR materials pass thru stringsnt pre-gualification process to ensure
no significant impact to plant operation, cement guality, envirohmentat footprint
and safety to pesple. Industrial wastes from manufacturing companies are pre-
processed to furn into suiable AFR for cement kiln co-processing. Likewise,
binmass such as rice husk, waste carbon and saw dust are accepted as AFR.
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Dependenee on a Single or a Few Cusiomers

The Company amploys a mulii-evel distribution strategy i serving the market.
This covers wholgsaler and retaller intermediaries, traders, ready mix companias,
concrete products manufacturers, international and focal contractors, and real-
estate developers, At the same time, HPE supports numerous targs- and medium-
scale government infrastructure projacts.

The aim is for the business not to be dependent on a single or a few customers
but rather achisve a well-balanced customer portfolin. The inss of one or more
customers will have no materisl adverse effect on the Company and its
subsidiaries taken as a whaole,

Ralated Party Transactions

Please seg Mote 29 -~ Refated Party Transactions to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for details,

i} Trademarks, Licenses, Concessions, Labor Contracts

i

(k)

(ﬂ

tn 2017, applications for transfer of MPSA to HMDC andfor #ts subsidiary, HRDC
have beon approved by the DENA,

2n labor contracts, please sea the discussion on employees under Herm {m).

in 2016, the Philippine intelfectual Propery Office issued Certificates of
Registration to MSSE for the following trademarks: (1) “HuBB" logo; and (21 "HUB
Buitders Centar”.

Governmental Approval of Princioa! Products

The Bureau of Praduet Standards {BPS) granted HPI the license to use the
Philippine Standard Quatity Certification Mark for its principal products. Al other
necessary licenses and permits required for the continuous production and sale of
HP products have been secured by the Company, including new ticanses as well
as those that have to be renewed perindicafly. .

Research and Devefopment

The Company is engaged in research and development for improving the
production process used in its plants and for improving the quality and strength of
its products. The Company snent a total of 211013 miion ressarch and
development costs in fast three years as follows:

Table 3 - Hesearch and Development Costs

Amount . Percentage
Period Covered {000 Pesos) - to Hevenues
CY ended December 31, 2018 | . P37,919] 0.11%
CY ended December 31, 2017 | _ 37,780 | 0.11%
Y ended December 31, 2016 | 34,431 ; 0.09%
Total i PB110.130!

Costs and Effects of Compliance with Environmemial Laws

The company conducts s operations consistent with sustainaile development
principles and cominuously improves its environmental perfarmance to ensurp
compliance o environmental [aws and regulations both locally and internationally.



The company is committed to comply with environmental laws, regulations and
standards applicable 10 its products and operatians and subsaribes 10 eading
industry initiatives and internal requirements. It also assesses and measures its
environmental impacts and continuously impraoves its processes, tools and
capabilties and promotes best practices in the industry. For example, in order {0
ensure compliance 1o air emission standards, the plants maintain and operate
electrostatic precipitators, bag houses, multi-cyclone and bag fiters to mitigate
dust emissions,  The plams are also eguipped with Continuous Emission
Monitoring Systern {CEMS) for real time monitoring of gasecus emissions such as
nitrogen oxide {NOx} and subfur dioxide (S02) emissions. Overall performanca is
validated regularly by quarterly monitoring of multi-stakeholders and government
audits and is confirmed that HPE is compliant with the existing government
standards.

The plants are IS0 14001 cerified or hawve an effective environmental
management sysiem in place to ensure all environmentat impacts and risks are
effectively managed and mitigated. The company continucusly optimize its use of
resources through re-using, recovering andfor recyding waste materials in own
production processes where feastble, minimizing the generation of any hazardous
and non-hazardous wasts, and disposing waste osing safe and responsible
methods.

The company proactively engages with siakeholders and cooperates with
legislaters and reguiators to ensure environmental obligations are fulfilled and
local regulations are complisd.

{m) Employees

As of December 31, 2018, HPI and subsidiaries had a totaf of 1,204 officars and
regular employees broken down gs follows:

Table 4 — Oificers and ErﬁpEoyees

Location Subsidiaries  TOTAL

Head Office* 368

Butacan Plant CO234E

La {nign Plant 185 189 !
Davao Plant 200 F 203 ¢
Lugait Plant B8 215
Calumpit 43 F 43
Calaca 10 E .10
Taotal 1,110 1,332

¥ includes ECLIL AMX, HES! and Mabini planis

The Company expects an increase in the number of employees in the first quarter
of 2018 to filt postions in Jales and Marketing department. -

Strengthening of performance managament and empioyae' development
programs will conbnue to be the focus to support the company's grﬂwth
objectives.

HPL cement plant supervisory and rank and file employess are unionized and alt
labor unions have a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) signed with tha
Company. The rank and file employess of HPI's bag plant and subsidiary ECU
have alzo organized their respective unions. The Company maintaing a positive
relationship with #s workers by implementing policies that are fully cognizant of
the workers’ rights and needs through open communication and conduct of
productive Labor Management Gouncils {LMO). :
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The following table shows the respective tabor unions of HPE and i#ts subsidiaries
and the expiry dates of their CBAs:

Table § - Labor Unions

C:?'l?:rt:tt}glgrlﬂ Labor Unian CBA Expiry Date
Bacnotan, La La Union Cement Workers Linion _ March 31, 2022
Unign Hoicim Ea Union Supervisory Employees Union March 31, 2024
Norzagaray, Hoicim Philippines Employees Association Dacember 31, 2020
Bulacan {HPEA)

UCC Bulacan Supervisory Employees Unian
{UBSEW)

February 28, 2019

Lugait, Misamis
Oriental

Heleirn Lugait Employees Labor Linion
Helcim Lugaijt Supervisars Independent Lnion

Juiy 31, 2021
March 31, 2021

Davao City

iDavan Holoim Employeas Workers Union
Holcim Dravao Supervisory Independent Union

March 31, 2020
March 31, 2020

Calumgit, Bulacan

Holcim Paper Bag Plant Emplovess Association
— FFW Chapter

Cecember 31, 2023

Morzagaray,

Excel Concrete Logistics, incorporated Workers

March 31, 2023

Butacan Uinion - Mational Wnion of Bullding and

Construction Workers

CBA Megotiations have improved with La Union Supervisory union cloged in one
day and Calumpit Bag Flant Associates Union closed in three days.

fri}  Risk Factor

Political and Economic Factors

The Company and ks subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the manwfacture of
clinker and cement in the Philippines. Cement is one of the basic materials for
building works and sales are highly dependent on the demand for congtruction
activities and the aggregate growth of the economy as welt as political conditions
in the country. .

One of the principal factors that may materially affect financial performancs is the
leval of construction activity in the public and private sectors.  Public sector
construction activily has always been a significant part of cememt demand.
However, government spending on  construction-retated  activites  {e.qg.,
infrastructure and housing) 5 dependent on various factors mainly budgetary
sonstraints and potitical considerations that could impact government's abikity to
exacite is planned projects.

On the other hand, private sector spending is primarily driven by investors’
confidence in the country, which in turn, is dependent on the country's economic
and potitical conditions,
Any perceived political instahility or lower-than-expected sconomic growth colild
have an adverse effect on the Company's financiat perfarmance.

Avatahbility of Stable Power Supply

The 15-year contract with TA O, now PEC, provides steble and guaranteed
power supply for La Union and Bulacan Plants. The contract also provides island
mode backup power for both Luzon plants during grid faileres.  In 2016, the
company started to take advantage of the WESM, 10 the extert the contract
allows, when power prices in the spot market are lower compared to contracted
rates. For the period 2017-2021, the company will be getting a fixed discount
from PEC on comdractied generation rates,
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Lugait and Bavao Plants, both sAuaied in Mindanao, are now enjoying slectricity
surplus compared to previous years where curtaiiments were prevalent due to
limited generation capacities. The energy surplus in Mindanag resulted from new
coal power plants starting commercial aperations i1 mid-2016 and subsequent
years. |t is projected that the additional capacities will provide Mindanao with
slrplus power supply in the madium-term,

WESM is not vet available in Mindanag although trial opérations have started
since June 2017. Also, the Retait Competition and Open Access [(RCOA) can
only be launched after WESM has been implemented. Hence, Lugait and Davao
Flarts will remain captive customers of Distribution Utility — Moresco | and Davao
Light and Power Company (DLPC), respectively.

The company is exploring measures to manage power costs and at the sams time
contribute 1o sustainahility strategy.

Dependence on Key Facilities

Substantialty sl of HPI's income has been, and will be derved from the sale of
products manufactured at its production facilities in Luzon and Mindanao. Any
prolonged breakdown of or significant damage to, the Company's production
facilties could have an adverse effect on the results of its operations. HPFI
maintaing comprahensive praperty and casualty insudrance policies covering its
production facilities and key assets under an ingustrial All-Risk policy. Howaver,
there can be no assurance that the proceeds from MPI's insurance claims would
be sufficient to compensate the Company for alf the effects of possible loss andfor
damage. MNotwithstanding that, the Company has appropriate processes and
measures in place to further mitigate the risk of any possible loss or damage,

tmpact of the Exchangs Rate Fluctuations

Based on the 2018 Bangke Sentral ng Pilipings Annual Exchange Rate Report,
the Philippine Peso depreciated from PhP49.82 against the US Dolfar as of
Dacember 31, 2017 to PhPLETZ as of December 31, 2018, The Peso has
undergons fluctuations during the year with an average rate of Phf52.66. it has
also shd to an 12-year low of PhPS4.01 in Qotober 2018. The weakening of the
Pesa resulted in the tncréase of cost of production inputs such as imported fuel,
coal and supplies,

Environmental and Begeuiatory Matters

Camernt manufacturing involves use of fossil fuel [coal and bunker fuel) Bnd
electric power, and possible emission of dust in the atmosphere factors that may
adversely affect the environment,

HP{ conforms to rules and regulations defined under the folfiowing: The Philippine
Envirgnmental Impact Statement System (PD 1586}, The Philippine Clean Air Act
1995 (RA B749), Philipping Clean Water Act of 2004 (RA 9275), Ecologicat Solid
Waste Management Act of 2000 (RA 9003}, and Toxie Substances & Harzardous
& Muclear Waste Conirol Act of 1990 (RA 6363, Other Applcable Laws &
Regulations are also identified in the Company's Integrated Management System
Maral,
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In & group-wide program, the Company decided to reduce dust emissions below
the prescribed 150 mg/MNm3 levet that the govermment allows cement plants to
emit under the Philipping Clean Air Act. The Company mairains and operates
modern electrostatic precipitators, bag houses, multi-cyclone and bag filters for
mitigating the dust coming from its plants’ pre-heater towers, kiins and cament mil
grinding systems.  With these modern dust control systerms in place, HPl's
cement plants kept dust emission levels below the prescribed government
standard. The Company has in place Continuous Emission Monitoring System
(CEMS) in all its four plants. The system provides all information required to
measure the Company’s overall envionmental performance and has confirmed
that HPI's plants are campliant with the existing government standards.

Based on the assessment made on the existing facilties, the Company believes it
compligs with the provisions of the Clean Air Act and its implementing rules and
regulations,

HFI's four plants continue to be recognized by the relevant national government
agencies for its environmental programs.

The status of complance on the conditions stated in the Envieonrmental
Compliance Cerificate (ECC) is regularly reported to DENR through the
submigsion of Self-Monitoring Reports (SMB), Compliancs Monitoring Reports
{CMA), and Compliance Monitasing and Verification Reports (CMYA].

Lastly, HPI's four plants are also granted with Treatment, Storage and Disposal
(TSD) Certificate as atestation to Geocycle's responsible handling and
management of hazardous industrial wastes,

ltiem 2. Properties

The Company's major fems of property, plant and equipment are located in Norzagarey,
Bulacan; Bacnotan, ta Union; Bo. Hlang, Davao Ciy: Lugait. Misamis Oriental; Mabini,
Batangas, Calaca, Batangas; lloilo; gend Maniia. The table shows the consoclidated
properties of HP as of December 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017,

Table 6 — Plant, Property and Equipment (Consolidated) -

Decsmbar 31, 20158 Decemxoer 53t

{in Thousand Posos)

Machinery and equipment B24,355 667 223,980,205
Buildings and inztalations 12,805,681 12,058,244
Furniture, vahicles and taoks B40, 835 939,071
Canstruction in progress 6,204,838 4376115
44 407 223 42 253,635/

tess Accumulated depreciation, depletion _
and allowance for impairment loss 25,799,857 _34,653,?9?
Tetal B48,607.371 F17,6499,838

It connection with the principal properties of the Compary, there are no existing
mortgages, liens or encumbrances nor limitations in the usane ar ownershig,

There are no imminent acquisitions of proparty of mgmﬂcam amount that cannot be
funded aither by the Company's working capitat or debt,
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The table below summarizes the significant leass agresmemnts entered into by the
Company as a lessee.

Descripthen Start Date Expiration Date 2018 Lease Henewal Options
Payments :

Plants, Jt.01.2018 01.01.2041 B97t,121  The conlract gy be renewed

Tarminals, or extendsd upon the rutual

Ports : arresment of the Parties.

HO Offica 15.11.2014 12.12.2020 35,848 The lease may be renawead

upen the written agreement and
Lrder such terms and conditions
as maybe acceptabla to both

parties.
BMX 1ot 26.08.2008 26.08. 2021 11,385 Rengwable ag may be mitually
agread by the paries
Industrial 16.01.2013 24042021 7052 The cortract may o renewed or
Warehouse extended Lupan the mutual
agreement of the Paries.
Others 15.03.2(HE 15.03. 20122 425172 The contract may be renewed Gr
(Heusing. extended upon the mutual
Wehicios) agresment of the Parties,

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is either a defendant or plaintiff in several civil, criminal and labor cases
primanty volving colfection and claims for damages. Based on the representation of
managernent and the opinion of the Company's external legal counsels, the resolution of
such cases will not result in any significant lisbifity or loss of assets.

Pending matetial lagal procesdings involving the Company are descnbed in Annex Ao
the Information Staternent.

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Except for the matters taken up dusing the last annual mesting of the stockholders
covered by the Company's SEC Form 20-15 report, no matter was submitted to a vote of
gecurity holders through solicitation of proxies or ctherwise during the calendar year
covered by this report,

V.  Company's DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Piease refer to the Infarmation Statement for the discussion of the identity of each of the
Company's Board of Directors and Executive Officers including their principal pooupation
or employment, name and principal business of any organization by which such persons
are employed.

V. MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND FIELATEB STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

{1} Markat informafion

MF| commeon shares are Bsted in the PSE. The high and iow market prices of HP| shares

for each quarter of catendar year 2018, and that of the past two calendar years, as
raported by the PSE. are shown helow:
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Table 7 — Market Prices of HP| Shares

Quarter Period CY2mvy CY 2016
i o High | Low ¢ High | Low | High { Low |
January — March | 10.84 | 240 1548 | 1502 | 1380 : 13.78
April - June ©8.80 F02 11332 | 13.20 | 15.10 : 15.00
July—September 1 770 | 678 : 1260 | 1240 | 16.42 | :.18.32
October — December . 682 | 570 | 10.80 | 10.74 | 1650 | 16.50

Sowrce: Fhiippine Stock Exchangs, ina.

For January to March 2019, the market price of HP{'s shares had a high of B10.8 and 2

low of B5.77

As of April 24, 20105 th.e closing price of the Company’s commeon shares at the PSEis £

11.34 per share.

(2)  Stackholders

As of April 24, 2019, HP| has £ 452,099,144 common shares outstanding held by
5.316stockholders. The fist of the top twenty stockholders of the Company as recorded by
Stock Transter Service, inc., the Company's siock dransfor agent, iz as follows:

Tahle 8 — Top Twenty (20} Stockholders

Citizenship

Shares (Sum}

1 LIMION CEMENT HOEDINGS FILIPING 3,908 425 506 | 60.55%
COHPORATHON _
a2 gv HDLDEF!HN CLUTCH 1,168,450,998 f8.11%
3 SUMITOMC GSAKA CEMENT JAPANESE 594,952 725 9.22%
., LTD i
4 GEMCD HDLDINGE NG FILIPHNG 456 EEEI EED ¥.08%
5 F'CD NGMINEE CORP. (NON- FORE|GMN 152 382 GSE 2.36%
FILHPE NSO :
g FCD NOMINEE CORP. FILIPING 143,H 0 046 2 25%,
(FILIPING)
7 | ANTONID M. DUMALLANG &OR | FILIPING 922,363 | 0.01%
i ROSALINDA 5, DUMALIANG : !
2] KAKUGARA AKIHIKD JAPANESE . 859,580 0.01%
2] LUS CO CH: KiAT FILIPEND 811,247 0.01%
10 LUES HDLANDD GAHGIA FILIPEMO 418,578 0.01%
FADRIGD
11 JOAQLUIN Q. TAM FILtPEND _ 380,000 1.00%
12 AMERICAN WIRE & CABLE CO., F1LFPEND' 290,933 0, 00%
INC.
13 LILiAV QUITD FiLIPlND 288 000 il DD%
14 LINEWVERSITY OF SANTD TOMAS FILEPEND 190,750 D GL‘J%

32




Citizenship Shares {Sum)

15 | RAMON C, CHAN . FILPINO | 189,189 | 0.00% |
16 FRAMCIS L. ESCALER :: FILiF"iN'D J 186,835 D.ﬂﬂ%é
17 ANG GUAN PLAD _GHiNESE L 184,030 U.ﬂ[}%i
18 | ISABELACULTURAL . FILPINO | 156439 0.00%
| CORPORATION
19 | FRANCISCOC. EIZMENDI JR. | FILIPINO | 143.458 | 0.00%
20 THAU;MAMAN&DG___ FIL PN 141,1369% 0.00%
T TP By g

{3} Dhividends

The Company is authorized to pay cash or stock dividends, or a combination thereof,
subject o approval by the Company's Board of Directors andfor its shareholders.
Dividends paid in the form of additional shares are subject to approval by the
Company's Board of Direciors, the SEC and the stockholders of at least two thirds of
the outstanding shares of the Company. Molders of outstanding shares on a dividend
racord date for such shares will be entitled to the full dividend dectared without regard
1o any subsequent transfer of shares.

Othar than the provisions in the loan covenants agreed to by the Company, thare are
no ather {imitations for the Company to daclare dividends to its commaon stock.

Cash dividends were dectared in for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016 as follows;

i Cash Dividend Par Share {PhP) . B0.42 bt M . g X-1
Amount Dectared (PhP} £ 7 bittion | - P83 billion ! P56 billion
Declaration Date 18-May-18 | 26-May—1.? 18-May-16 |
Record Date . 15-June-2018 | 15-June-17 §  15-June-16 |

(1) Sales of Unregistered Securities Within the Last Three (3} Years

Thers are no other securiies sofd for cash by the Company within the Jast three years that
were rot registérad under the SRC.

Wi CORPORATE GOVEANANCE
(a}  Evaluation System to Measure Compliance with Manual of Corporate Governance

The Company has in place a robust internal comrod system which is an overall process
effected by the Board, management and other persannel designed o provide reasonable
assurance concerning: () the reliabifity of the financial repoarting and statements; (i)
compliance with faws and regulations; {iii) protection of assets and fraud prevention; {iv)
effectiveness and afficiency of processes. Additionally, in accordance with the Company's
Corporate Governance Manual, the Board is assistad by a Complianse Officer who is in
charge of evaleating and ensuring comphance by the Company, the Board of Birectors
and afficers with ite Manual of Corporate Governance, Code of Corporate Governanece for
Publichy-Listed Companes (the ©G Code} and al relevant laws, rules and regulations. -
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The Compliance Officer 1s currently in the process of developing and establishing, subject
to approval of the Board. a monttoring and évaluation sysiem complets with procedure
that fuifils the requirements of due process. to determine and measure compliance with
the CG Code.

(b Measures Being Undertaken o Fulfy Comply with Leading Practices on Good
Corporate Gavernance

The Board has established a Corporate Governance Commitiee which ensures that the
Board and the Company, as a whole, is sufficiently conversant and complisnt with the
adopted leading practices in corporate governance. This committes is required to be
compased of at least three {3} independent directors and one (1) non-executive non-
independent director.

There has been no known deviation from the Company's Manual of Corporate
Governance,

(c Plan to improve Corporate Governance

The Board always seeks 1o improve corporate governance of the Company by improving
existing policies, developing and establishing new policies required by the Company's
Corporate Governance Manual and undertaking measures to implement such policies.

THE ANNUAL REPQRT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 (SEC FORM
17-A) AND THE QUARTERLY REPORT CONTAINING THE UNAUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MANAGEMENT'S DiSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF THE END
OF THE FIRST QUARTER OF 20%9 (SEC FORM 17-Q) WiLL BE AVAILABLE UFQN
REQUEST OF STOCKHOLDERS. YOUR REQUEST MAY BE SENT DIRECTLY TO
THE OFFICE OF THE CORPORATE SECRETARY, AT THE 7TH FLOOR VENICE
CORPORATE CENTER, 8 TURIN 5T., MCIGNLEY TOWN CENTEHR, FORT BONIFACIO,
EAGUIG CITY, PHILIPPINES AND A COPY WitL BE SENT TO YOU, FREE OF
HARGE.
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a.

b.

Materiat Legal P'roceed'rngs

a.

&.

In Re: Petition for Interim Measure of Protection under Rule 5 of
the Special Rules of Court on Alterfnative Dispute ResoRition;
Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. vs. Holcim Philippines, Inc.; SP
Proc Case No. 377-ML; Branch 95 of the Regional Trial Court in
Mariveles, Bataan

In the Matter of an Arbitration under the 2015 Arbitration Rules of
the Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc,; Seasia Nectar Port
Services, Inc, vs, Holcim Philippines, Inc,; PDRCI Case No. 95-2018

Seggia Nectar Port Services, Inc. {"Sexsia™) filed a petition for interim
measure of protection with the Regional Trial Court in Mariveles, Bataan
(“Bataan RTC") against the Company for the alleged purpose of securing
any judgment Seasia may secure from the arbitration case it will
supposedly fite against the Company with the Philippine Dispute Resolution
Center, Inc. ["PDRCTY), guestioning the Company’s termination of their
Part Services Agreement effective 22 September 2018, In ant Order dated
22 November 2018, the Batazn RTC granted Seasia’s petition and issued a
writ of preliminary attachment of the Campény's properties.  The
Company’s motion for reconsideration is pending resoiution.

On 14 December 2018, the Company filed a notlce of arbitration with the
PORCI for a declaration that the termination of the Port Services
Agreement is valid and the reversal of the Bataan RYC’s Order dated 22
MNovember 2018, o C

In the Matter of Waste Pollution Control and Abatement Case vs.
Holcim Philippines, Inc.; DENR-PAB Case No. NCR-00909-17

On 26 March 2018, the Company received the Poliution Adjudication
Board's ("PAB's™) Order dated March B, 2018, directing the Company to
cease and desist from undertaking any activity and/or operating machines
or equipment generating pollution at its concrete batching plant in Bicutan,
FParafague City, ' '

Foltowing the Company's compietion of the puimtiun control prodram
approved by the Environmental Management Bureau, preseptation of
satlsfackory proof of the Companys compliance to the wastewater
discharge parameters, and satisfaction of its environriental compliance
abligation under Republic Act No. 9275, the PAB issued an Order dated 9
Cctober 2018 formaily and permanently bifting its March 8, 2018 Order.

Tax Cases {Parent Company)

The Company filed an June 24, 2014, & Cor;nblaiﬁt 'be.fﬁre the Regional
Trial Court of Malolos, Bulacan for the annulment of the Neotice of



Pl

Assessment of Business Tax on alleged discovered Unreported Cement
Sales dated February 24, 2014 issued by the Municlpal Treasurer of the
Municipatity, Bulacan; and, for the reversal of the denial of the Cormnpany's
Protest letter dated April 23, 2014 guestioning the 2014 Assessment
Motica,

While this action was pending, the Company received on October 26,
2015, a 2015 Assessment Notice which assessed the Company for alleged
deficiency LBT in the aqggregate amount of #118.2 Milfion Pesos for the
years 2006 to 2015, Unlike the 2014 Assessment Notice which invalves
the defendants’ assessment of LBT against the Company based on
purported undedclared gross sales or recelpts for the years 20086 to 2012,
the 2015 Assessment Motice concerns the Treasurer’s assessment of LBT
against the Company based on purported undeclared gross sales or
receipts for the years 2006 to 2015, The Municipal Treasurer did not act
on the Company's protest within the 60-day pericd provided in Section
195 of the LGC, and thus, on March 21, 2014, the Company filed 2
ComplaintfAppeal  with  the Bulacan RTC  which  sought the
canceligtion/nuilification of the 2015 Assessment Notice, The two cases
were consolidated befare Branch 19 of the Reqgional Trial Court of Bulacan.
The Company has completed the presentation of its witnesses and
submitted a Formal Offer of Evidence. The consolidated cases are still
pending for resoiution.

The Company received an Assessment from the Provincial Assessor and a
Motice of Realty Tax Delinguencies issued by the Provincial and Municipal
Treasurers on December 18, 2012, which demanded a total of 80.3 Million
Pesos i RPT taxes on Company's machineries and eguiprient for the -
years 2011 and 2012, The LEAA granted Company's Motion to Post Bond
amounting to 80.3 Million Pesos. The appeal is still pendmg with the Local
Board Assessment Appeals ("LEAA™.

On 23 April 2013, the Provincial Assessor of Bulacan issued a revised tax
declaration on rmachineries and eguipment at the Company's Bulacan
Plant. Thereafter, an 30 June 2013, the Company received an assessment
for the years 2011 to 2013 and a computation of real property taxes for
the first and second quarters of 2013, The Company was assessed for
additional real property taxes in the totat amount of 23.8 Milion Pesos. On
13 September 2013, the Company received an assessment from the
Municipal Treasurar of Morzagaray, Bulacan for real property taxes dues
on its 1998 and Additional Line 2 Properties far the third guarter of 2013,
The said assessment also reiterated the previous assessments made for
2011 to 2012 and the first and second gquarters of 2013, The Company’s
supplemental appeals, covering the 2013 1% and 2™ Quarter RPT
Assessment and September 2013 Assessment with the Local Bcrard of
Azcecesment Appeals are pendlng rasalution.

On 10 March 2014, the Company recéived 71 iax declarations and 71
rnotices of assessment over its machineries for 2014 from the Municipal

Assessor of Norzagaray, Bulacan. Thereafter on 9 May 2014, the Company



received a notice of assessment from the Provincial Assessar of
Norzagaray, Bulacan. On 15 May 2014, the Company also received an
assessment from the Municipal Treasurer of Norzagaray, Bulacan reguiring
it to pay deflciency real property faxes for the years 2011 to 2013 in the
total amount of 125 Million. On 2 July 2014, the Company's supplemental
appeals with the LBAA covering these assessments are pending resolution.

At the suggestion of the Provincial Governor of Butacan and the Municipal
Mayor of Norzagaray, Bulacan, the Company paid under protest on 9
Decembrer 2014 real property taxes in the total amount of 120 Milion
Pasos, allocated as follows; (&) lands: 8.6 Million Pesos; (b)Y beildings: 3.3
Million Pesos: and {c) machineries: 107.9 Million Pesos. On 9 lanuaty
2015, the Company filed three protests with the Provincial Treasurer.
Followirg the Provincial Treasurer’s inaction over the Company's protests,
the Company fited its appeal with the LBAA, raising the following issues:
(a) whether the Company is entitled to an annual depreciation aliowance;
(b) what is the correct amount that should be credited in the Company's
favor on account of its real property tax payments from 2011 until the
third quarter of 2013: and (c) whether it is correct to assess interest,
surcharges and penalties on the resl property taxes that the Company
attempted to pay on time but which the local government officlals refused
to accept in respect of real property taxes for the fourth quarter of 2013
and 2014, This appeal is pending resalutsﬂn

On 30 March 2015, the Company received an assessment for deficiency
real property taxes for 2015 in the amount of 49.3 Million Pesos. The
Company paid the assessed amount and filed a protest with the Provincial
Treasurer of Bulacan. Foilowing the Pravincial Treasurer’'s failure to act on
the Company's protest within the prescribed period, the Companv f“ied itg
appeal with the LBAA, wh1ch is pendmg resolution. -

On 31 March 2016, the Compan? received l’mm the Municipal Treasurer of
Morzagaray, Bulacan an assessment for deficiency real property taxes for-
2016 in the total amount of 103 Million Pesos. The Company paid the said
amount and fited a profest with the Provincial Treasurer. Thereafter, on
13 May 2016, the Municlpal Treasurer of MNorzagaray, Bulacan issueg a |
revised computation of the Company's liabilities for 2016 in the total
amount of 46.8 Million Pesos. The Company thus filed & supplement to its
gartigr protest with the Provincial Treasurer, Fellowing the Provincial
Treasurer’s inaction over the Company’s protest, the Company filed an
appeat with the LEAA, :

On March 29, 2017, the Company received an RPT assessment
corresponding to its kands, buildings and machineries’ located at the
Bulacan Ptant for the year 2017, The 2017 RPT Assessment and RFT
payment amount to 41.1 Miilion Pesos. On August 17, 2017, the Company
filed an appeal with the LBAA in respect of its payment under protest of
the 2017 RPT Assessment in the amount of 41.1 Ml"lDﬁ Pesps. The LBAA
has not yet acted on this appeal,



On March 26, 2018, the Company received a computation of realty taxes
in respect of the RPT due on the Company's Bulacan Plant for the year
2018 in the amount of 52 Million Pesos, On the same date, the Company
paid the RPT due on machineries under protest in the amount of 41.1
Million Pesos the Caompany alse paid the RPT due on other properties in
the Company’s Bulacan Plant. The LBAA has not yet acted on this appeal.

On 28 December 2018, the Company paid under protest 40.5 Million
Pesos, representing the real property taxes assessed by on its properties
at its Bulacan Plant, citing, among others, the failure of the Municipal
Treasurer to exernpt the anti-pollution devices, use the correct fair market
values of some of the eguipment and machineries, and consider
depreciation allowance.

On 14 January 2019, the Company filed a position paper with the LBAA,
summarizing all the issues relating to the real property taxes assessed on
the Company’s propertles in its Bulacan Plant from 2011 to 2018.

Tax Cases (Subsidiaries}

a.

HPMC received a termination letter from the BIR in May 2018 relative to
the payment of deficlency income tax, valug-added tax, expanded
withholding tax, withholding tax on compensation and documentsry stamp
tax for taxable year 2014 in an aggregate amount of 11.68 Mitlion Pesas
inclusive of penaltles and interest. '

HPBSC received a final assessment noticé from the BIR in February 20138
for atteged deficiency income tax, expanded withhalding tax, withholding
tax on compensation and documentary stamp tax covering the taxable
year 2014 in the aggredate amount of 28.07 Million Pesos inclusive of .
penafties and interest. The BIR issued its final decislon on disputed
assassment in August 2018 at an aggregate amount of 3.01 Million Pesos.
The Cornpany paid such amount on the same month.’ '

' SCCC received a final assessment notice from the BIR in July 2018 for

alleged deficiency income tax, value-added tax and expanded withholding
tax covering the taxable year 2015 iri the aggregate amount of 2.04 Million
Pasps inclusive of penalties and interest. The BIR released its final decision
on disputed assessment on QOctober 8, 2018 at an aggregate amount of
1.2 Million Pesos. The Company paid such amount on the same month,

SCCC received a preliminary'as‘sessment' notice from the BIR in November .
2016 for alleged deficiency income tax and value-added tax covering the
taxable vear 2011 in the amount of 2.5 Million Pesbs, inclusive of penaltles
and intarest, SCCC's protest remains pending with the BIR. '

CACI received a final assessment notice from the BIR in December 2014
for alteged deficiency income tax ang value-added tax covering the taxable



vear 2011 in the amount of 2.5 Million Pesos, inclusive of panalties and -
interest, CACI's protest remains pending with the BIR.

MGMC received a finat assessment notice from the BIR Revenue Region in
September 2018 for alleged deficiency incoemea tax and vatue-added tax
covering the taxable year 2015 in the amount of 16.52 Million Pesos,
tnclusive of penalties and interest. MGMC submitted its reply to FAN
including the additional documents for reinvestigation/reconsideration last
October 2018 and December 2018, respectively. MGMC's protest remains
pending with the BIR Revenusg Region.

CHI has an ongoing tax audit For national taxas in 2017, The BIR has not
made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 31, 2018,

ECLI has an ongolng tax audit for national taxes in 2017, The BIR has not
made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 31, 2018,

HSSI has an ongeing tax audit for national taxes in 2015, 2016 and 2017,
The BIR has not made any determination of deficiency taxes as at
Decembar 31, 2018,

LHFI has an ongoing tax audit for natipnal taxes in 2017. The BIR has not
made any determination of deficiency taxes as at Decermnber 31, 2018, 7

MGMC has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2016. The BIR has
not madea any determination of deficiency taxes as at Decembear 31, 2018,

RRI has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2017, The BIR has not
made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 31, 2018,

SWCVI has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2017. The BIR has
net made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 21, 2018,
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Phane +83 2 459 3333

Holcim Philfppines, nc.
H Fh Fioor Twa Warld Square Fax +63 2 459 4444

OI Ci m MeKinlay Hifl, Fort Bonifasic i hodcim.com

Taguig City 1834
Philippines

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Helcim Philippinas, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Graup™} is
responsibie for the preparastion and fair presentation of the consolidated
financiat statement including the schedules attached therein, for the year
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reparting Standards, and for such internal control as Management determines
it necessary to enable the preparatlon of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to feaud or error.,

In preparing the fnanciat statements, Management |s respansible for assessing
the Group's abillty to continue as 8 going concern, disclasing, as applicabte
matters related to going concern and using the golng concern basis of
actaunting unkess Management either Intends to liquidate the Group er ta
Cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but ta do so.

The Board of Directors |s responsibte for oversesing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and appraves the financial statements including
the schedules attachead thereln, and submits the same to the shareholders,

Mavarra Amper & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the sharehoiders,
has audited the financial stetements of the Group as at and for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 in accordance with Philippine Standards
on Auditing, and its reports to the shareholders, have expressed their oplion
on the fairness of presentation upon compietion of such audit,

e e

Tormas 1. Alcantara
Chairman

Jésusa Natividadid. Rojas
Chief Financial Officer

Signed this 22™ day of February, 2019
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Mavarra Arpey & Co.
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ANDEPENDENT AUDITORS REFCQRT

T4 the Boerd of Directars and Shareholders
HEOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

Jth Floor, Two Warld Souare

Mcikiniey Hill, fort Bonifaclo, Taguig City

Ooinion

We have audited the consclidated financial statements of Holcim Philippines, Inc, and
Subsidiaries (the "Group"}, which compeise the consolidated statements of financial position as
at December 3t, 2038 and 2017, and the consolidsted statements of comprehensive income,
consodidated statements of changes I equity and consoliflates statements of cash flows for the
years then ended and notes to the tensnlidated financlal staterments, induding @ summary of
slgnificant accounting potickes.

In our opinion, the accompanying consafidated finarcial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group as st December 31, 2318 and 2017, and its fnancal
parfermance and s cash fiows for the yesrs then ended in actnrﬂance with Philippine Fingncizl
Reporting Standasrds {PERS),

Basis for Ogimion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Autiting (PSA}
Chur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Avditors’ Responsibifities
for the Audit of the Financlal Staternents section of cur report. We are indepandent of the Group
in accordanee with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines {the Code
of Ethics) together with the ethical requirgrnents that are relevant to aur audit of the financia!
staterments in the Phillpplnes, and we have foififled our other ethical responsiblities. in
accardance with these reguirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidenca
wie have obtalned ks sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinlon.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Group as at and for the »',.rear ended December 31, 2016,
was audited hy another auditor who expressed an unmodified oplbion an thoss statementﬁ on
March i, 2017,

Deloitte. B R



oy Audit Matters

Key sudit matters sre those matters that, In cur professional judgment, were of -most
significanee in our audit of the concolldated Rnancial statemente of tha current perigd,
These matters were addressed in the confest of our audit of the consolidated fingaclal
statements as 3 whoie, and in forming our opifian thereon, and we do not provide a separate

oninlon on these matters.

We identified the follpwing key audit matter;

Kev Audit Mattar

Goodwill

Goodwill s recodqnized in the consoildated
financial staterrents which is attributable to
the cement operations of gne of the Graup's
plarts. Undar PFRS, the Group is reduired to
annually test the goodwill for smpairment.
This annual impatrment test is signiflcant to
our audit because the aguregated balangce of
goodwill amounting to P2.84 bilion i
rmaterial ko the consolidated  Financial
statements ang reprasants 5.59% of the total
ascets af the Grenp as at
Drecember 31, 2018,

In addition, Management conducts annual
impatrment tests to assess the recoverability
of the carrying values of geodwill, This annual
impairment test Involves a number of key
sensitive judgments made in determining the
Inputs used in the assessment process.

The Group’s disclosures about goodwlil &8s at
December 31, 2018 are disclosed in Note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit perf nd n Ll

Our audit provedures focused on performing a
detailed understanding o0 the Managament's
assessment process and challenging the key
sensitive judgments apptled as follows:

We assessed and challenged the reasonablengss
of the Group’s positdon on the posgible
impairment of goodwl| including consideration
of various Factors such as historical business
performance,  current  year  developments,
current rlsk evaluations, business plans, outiook,
reyeriie potential anf  other  market
considerathons.

We also compared the projected revenues and
cazh fows, margin growth rates and earpings
hefore  interest,  Fawes, depredatisn and
amortization to the histonical performance. of the
tash-generating Lnit (CGLE), Management plans
and analysts’ reports on market outloghk, We also
focused on the Company's disciosures aboit
those assumptions to which the outcome &F the
impairment test is most sensitive; specifically,
thosa that have the most significant effect on the -

determiration of the recoverable amount of
goodwill,

Information Other than the Consofidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Reporf Tﬁemoh

Managemant is responsitle for the other information, The other informatian comprises the SEC
Farm 17-A for lhe year ended December 31, 2018, but does not include the consolidated fingricial
statements and our auditors’ repart, which we obtained prioe to the date of this auditor's report,
anc the SEC Form 20-15 (Definitive Information Statement} and Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2018, which are expected ta be made available o Us after that date.

Qur apinian on the conselidated financial statemants does nat cover this other informatian and
we do not express any form of assurance canclusion therean, :

In connectian with our audit of the cansalidated financial statérments, our responsibility is 2o read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing 5o, conslder
whether the gther information is materially incomsistent with the consolidated finapcal
staterments or with our Knawledgs obtained :n the audit, or otherwise appears to be materiaiy
misstated.

AR SRR



Responsibilities of Management angd Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Managemsnt 15 réespansible for the preparation and Fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for suck internal conlral as Management
determines is necgssary to enable the areparation of consatidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whethar due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, Management |s responsible for assessing the
Groups abillty t¢ continue as a going cancern, disclasing, as applicabile, matters related to going
cancern ang Using the gesng concern basis of accounting unless Management sither intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no reabistic aiternative buk to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are responsibie for oversesing Group's financial reparting
process,

Auditors” Respansibilifizs for the Agdit of the Consofidated Financial Statements

Char objectives arg to abtain reasonable assursnce about whether the consalidated financlal
statements as a whole are free fram materiab misstatement, whether gue to fraod or errar,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high lével
of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted i accordance with PSA will always
detect a material ntsstatement when it gxists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
te influgnce the economic declsions of users taken on the bass of consolidated financial
statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with P5SA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We aksa:

»  Identify and assess the risks of materlal misstatemnent of the consolidated Financlal
statements, whethar due to fraud or error, design and perfarm audit procedures respofisive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and aporopriate to provida a basls
for aur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement rasutting from fraod is
higher than for one resulting from errer, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgary, intentfonal
SITHSEIONS, misrgpresentations, or the overrlde of internal contred,

+  Obkain an understanding of internal cankrel relevant to the sudit In order b design audlt
proceduras that are appropriate in the circumstances, b not for the purpase of expressing
an opintan on the effectivensss of the Group's internal control,

r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and Fhe resscnableness of
aceaunting estimates and related disclosures made by Management,

= Conclude on the appropriateness of Managerment's use of the golng concern basis of
accourting and, based on the audit evidence oitained, whether a materlal uncertainty exists
refated to events or condltions rhat may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as & going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
refuirgd te draw attention in our auditors’ repert to the relaked dischosures in the
consolidated financial statement or, i suth disclosures are inadequate, o modify owr
opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our
auditors” report. However, Future events ar conditions may cause the Group to cease bo
canfinue a3 & gobg encern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolijated financldi:
staterments, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statemants
represent the underdying transactions and events In a rmanner that achieves fafr
presentarion,

«  Obtain sufficlent apprapriate audit evidence regarding the financial infarmation of the antities
or business activities within the Group to exprass an opinien on the consolidated flhangiaf
statermnents. We are responsitle far the direction, supervision and performance of the group
Fudit, We reamain sulely respansible for pur audit opinon,

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit fndings, Including any significant
deficlencies in internal contral that we identify during aur audit,

T T R
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HOLCTM PHILIFPINES, ING. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIBATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
With Somparative Audices Figures for 2016

For the Yagrs Ended Decamber 31

MGtas 2018 2017 1016
fIn Thousands;
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBRSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Heleim Phillppines, Inc. {HFI or the "Parent Company™) and all of s subsidiaries
{collectively referved to as the "Group™, except Wellborne Internationat Group Limited
{WEB}, wera Incorporated In fthe Phllippines and registerad with the Philippine
Securitizs and Exchange Commission [SECY.  The Parent Company s primarily
engaged i the manefacture, sale and distrlibution of cement ang cementitious
products.,

The plent sites of the Parent Company are In Devas City and in the provinces of
La Union and Buolacan while the plant sites of Mabini Grinding ™Ml Corporatioh and
Helclm Phllippines Manufacturing Corporatisn are in the provinces of Batangas and
Misamis Oriental, respectively, The registersd offlce address and poincipal place of
business of the Parent Company is at 7th Floor, Twe World Square MoKinbey: HiH,
Fort Bonifacic, Taguig City, '

The Perent Company is majority-owned by Union Cement Holdings Corporation
{UCHC), @ campany [ncorporated in the Phillippines. The uiltimate parent company of
the Group is Lafarge Holcim Limited.

The Parent Company's shares of stocks were listed in the Phiilppines Stocks Exchange
on June 17, 1996, Total shares registered and outstanding as at December 31, 2018
and 2017 15 5.5 hiflion,

Status of Operations

Excel Concrebe Logistics, Ine. (ECLYY was Incorporated and registered with the SEC on
Aogust 9, 2012, On Jerwary 1, 2013, ECLT started s fulf aperation servicing the
distribution, transport and placing of concrete, as well as transport of cement and
specialty products. On Movember 29, 2018, the Board of Directors (BOD) of ‘HPI
approved the closure and dissolubion of ECLI. ECLI is in the process of compléting
regulatory reguirartents for its eventuat dissclution.

HUES Stares and Services, Inc. (HE51) incuimed losses in 2018 and 2017 amourting to
P71.7 milllon and PES.5 million, respectively, resuiting to accumulated deficit of
Pi55.6 million and P91.6 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
RHowever, Management has taken appropriate actions by Implementing strategies that
will assist o improving the results of operations ard mamtalning Anancia!l stalkifity.
Managemeant is currently reviewing its current business model to Improve HSS's
results of operations going forward, Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prapared 4n a going concern basis.

1 FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND BASIS OF FPREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION ;

Statement of Compliance

The consoildated Anancial statements of the Group have bean prepared in accordance
with PHilippine Flnancial Reporting Standacds (PFRS}, which indludes all applicabie
PFRS, Phifippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations issued by the
Interngtional Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRICH Philippine
Interpretations Committee (PIC} 2nd Standing Interpretations Committee {SIC) as
aoproved by the Financial Reportlng Standards Councill (FRSCY) and Bosrd of
Accourtancy {BOA) and adopted by the SEC.
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Basis of Preparaticn

The Group's financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
far:

= flnancla!l instruments measurad at amortized cosk;

v flnancial Instrurrtents which are valued at fair value;

» dervative ligbilites measured at fair value;

» inventories at lower of cost ahd net reakizable vaine (NRY); and

» defined benefit asset or obligatlon recognized as the net totat of the Ffair vafie of
plarnt assets fess the present value of the defined henefit obligation.

« provisions measured at its best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the
prasent obligation, with discounting if the effect of time value of money is
material.

Historica! cost s generally based on the fair vates of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair vatue iz the price that would be recelved to sefl an asset or paid to trensfer a
tiability in an orderly trensaciton between macker participants at the measuremant
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another vaiuation techoique, In estimating the fair value of an asset or & lability,
the Group takes into account the charscieristics of the asset or Hablity iF market
participants weould take those characteristics into acocount when pricing the asset ar
Eability at the measurement date. Fair value for mesasuremeant andfor disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is determined on such 2 basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of PFRS 2, leasing
transacticns that are within the scope of PAS 17, and measurements that have some
stmilaritles to falr value but are not falr value, such as net realizeule value |n PAS 2 or
value in use in PAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposaes, fair value measurgments are categorized
intg level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the falr value
measurements are cbservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement [ s entiraty, which are described as follows:

*+ leve| 1inputs are guoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identical 2ésets
or labilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

s+ level 2 Inputs are inputs, other than guoted prices Included within levef 1,
that are cbservable for the assat or liahkity, efther directly or indirectly; and

+  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or Bability.

Functional and Prasentation Currency

‘These concolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Pesa, the mr_t_?enc'r
of the primary economic anvirohmment in which the Group operates. All amounts are
rounded in the nearest thousand peses, excent when otherwise indicated.
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COMPOSITION GF THE GROUP

Details of the Parent Company's subsidiaries as at December 33, 2018 and 2017 ara
as folows;

Cwnership and Yoting

Intarest ]
2018 2017
Held by HPT _
WER 100.00% 100.00%
Exvel Concreie Logistics, Inc. (ECLT} i 100.00% 100,00%
Holcim Philippines Business Services Center, Inc. _
(HFBSCL) 10:0.00% 100.00%
Hubb Stores amng Services, Inc, (HSSD) 106,009 100.00%
Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation {HPMC) 89.62% 95.62%
Haid by WEB
Mabint Grinding Mill Corporation {MGMC) 100.00% 106, 00%
Held by HFMC
Alsons Constriction Chemicals, Inc, (Alchem) &2 95 62% 99.62%
Bulkeern Phllipplnes, Inc. {Bulkcem) 99.62% 95.62%
Lalamba Aggregates Co., Inc. (CACH 99.62 % 59,52%

faj & compary incorporated in British Virgin Islands
(b} Ceased comnercial operations effective December 31, 2013
(ch Ceased commercial cperations effective December 31, 2018

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Adoption of New angd Revised Accounting Standard Effectiva in J018 -

The Group adepted ail accounting standards and  interpretations  as  at
December 31, 2018, The new and revised accounting standards and interpretations
that have bean published by the International Accounting Standards Board (IAS8)} and
approved by the FRSC in the Philippines, weare assessed to be appliceble to the Group’s
consatidated financial statements, are as Milows:

Amendments to PFRS 2, Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transaciions

The amendments to PFRS 2 Includes:

2. The amendment added gwidance that introduces accounting requirements far
cash-settted share-based payments that follows the same approach as Used for
eguity-settled share-based payments,

b. The amendment has introduced an axcaption inte PFRS 2 0 that a share-based
payment whara the entity settles the share-based payment arrangement net is
classifted as aquity-settled in its entirety provided the share-based payment would
have been classified as equity-settled had t not induded the net settlement
feature.

t. The amendment has intreduced tha following <lariflcations:

»  On modlfications, the original Hability recognized in respect of the cash-settied
share-based payment 5 derecognized and the equity-settied share-based
payment is recagnized at the modification date fair vaiue to the extent
services have teen rendered up ta the modification date.

« Any difference between the carrying amount of the lability as at the
modification date and the amount recognized in equity at the same date would
be recognized in profit and Ioss immediately,

The management of the Group assessed that the application of the amendments did
not have significant impact on the Group's consglidated flnanclal statements as the
Company does not have any cash-settled shars-hased payrment transactions that

contain a parformance condition. ]
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Amendments to PFRS 4, Applving PFRS 9, Financial Instrumernts with PFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts

The amendmeants provide two options for entities that issbe Insurance contracts within
the scops of PFRS 4:

« an option that peroits entities o reclassify, Fom profit or loss o ather
comprehenslve inceme (OCly, seme of the income or expenses arising from
designated financial assets; this ts the so-called overtay approach; and

+« an optiohal temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 for enkities whose
predominant activity is Issuing contracts within the scope of PFRS 4; this is the
so-called defarral approach.

The application of both approaches |5 optiona! and an entity s permitted to stop
applying them before the new insurance contracts standard |5 applied.

The management of the Group assessed that the application of the amendments did
not have skgnificant impact on the Groups consolidated financial statements as the
Group does not have any insurance contracts within the scope of PFRS 4,

PFRS 9, Financia! Instryments (2614)

The Group has applied PFRE © Financlal Instruments (2914} and the rélated
consequential amendments fo other PFRS Standards.

The Group has elected to apply the modified retrospective restastément,
Caonsequentty, The Group did not restate comparatives in respect of tha classification
and meastrement of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and genersl
hedge gocounting.

PFRS 9 introduced new regquirements for:

a} classification and measurement of financial aseets and financizal liabiities;
B impairment of financial assets; and C

3 general hedge accounting.

(a} Classifeation and measurement of Snancial assets and financial liabilities

AN recognized fingncial assets that are within the scope of PFRS 9 are requived to be
megsured gubsequentty st amortized cost or fair value on the basks of the entity’s
business mode! for managlng the financial 2ssets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets,

Specificahy:

» debt instruments that are held within a business mode! whose oblective i5 to
coflect the contractual cash flows and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of pringipal and interest on the prnclpal ameount nutstamf‘ ing,
are measured suhsequently at amortized cost;

+  gebt instrurents that are hatd within a business modeal whnse obfective is both to
coliect the contractual <ash flows and 1o sell the dsabt instruments, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest oh the
prindpal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive incmme (FYTOCTS;

+ all other debt investments and equity investments aré measired subsequently at
Fair value through profit or loss (PYTPL),
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Despite the aforegeing, the Company may - make tha following Im&cab{a
slection/designation at Initial recagnition of a financiat asset:

«  the Group may trevocabily elect to praseﬂt subseguent changss in falr vaioe of an
equity Investment that s helther haid fof tiaiing ner contingest considération’
recognized by an acquirer in a busingss combingtion 1n ather comprehenslve
income; and:

»  the Groug may irreviscably designate. 5 débt nvestment ‘.‘hat meets tha amorizad
cost or FVTOCT criteria as measired at PYTPL if doing 50 eliminates e sigaificantly -
reduces an accounting mismatch;

This staidard also containg requirements for the slassification and measurertient of
finandaf liebilities and. derecognition requirements. Specifically, PFRS 9 requires. that
chianges In the falr valus of the fnanckal Bahility athibutable to changes th the crediE
-risk of that liability be presented in other ¢omprahensive income {OCT), undess tha
recogmiticn of the effécts of changes in the liabitiy's. criedit risk in OCI wouid eraate or
ehlafge an atcounting remBich in profit or loss. Changes ik falr volue attebidable
a financial liability's credit Tisk are not subsequiently rectassified. ta profit.or loss, b
ut are- Insbead transferred to retained egrniings when  the Hnandat Habiity 15
derscognized.

The management of the Gmup asnictad that e umncatiuﬂ of ‘this phasz of. PFRS §
did not have a significant impact on its statement of financial position a8 its cerrent
financlal assets varrled af falr value are ot significant,

Lodns as well as trade receiviibles are. beld to oollech sortrachual cash flvws and are
expected. to give rise to cash flows representing solely payments .of pringipal ard
intérest. This, the Group expects thet these are continuously to be measirad at.
-amottized cost under FFRS . However, the Group analyzeés the contractuad cash flow
characteristics of those instruments in detall bafore concluding whether all those
nstruments mest the criterda for amortized cost measurement Urider PFRS 9

(B} Im;ra:fment of Ananclel assets

The impairment model under this standard reflects expecied credd fosres (ECL},
oppised bo Incurred credit lokees under PAS 39, Under tha impairment approech of this
standard, it it no longer necessary for @ credit avent to have becurred before credit bisses
are recognized, Instead, an entity always acceunts for expected credit losses gntt changes
in those expacted credit fosses. The amount of expectied crédit losses sholdd be updaten
ot each reporting date to reflect changes In credit rizk since initisl recognition.

in particular, PFRS 9 reguires the Group fo messurs the loss allpwance for a fingneiai
instrument at an smount equat to the lifetime expected credit fosses If the critit sk on
that Anancat instrument has increased sigrificantly since indtia! recognition, or If the
finahcial Indtrument 5 a purchased or originated creditdmpaired financiat -agset,
However, i the cradit rick on a finandal nstrurnent has mt Increased significantly since
tnitial retognition {except for A perchased or originated creditimpalred financial asset),
the Group Is required to measure the loss allowance for that financiai ngtrument at an
amoint squat to 12-momths ECL. PFRS 9 also requires a etmhplified spprosch for meadsuring
the loss aliowance at an amount agual to lifetime ECL for trade recmivables, contract
assats and fease recejivables in certain circumstamces,

The Group assessad that the applicabon of this phase of PRES & did niot irbve & sighificant
impact on it equity due to the mature of #s Kans and receivables ang they have .
performed a mome detailed snalysis which ponsiders =il remsonmble and suppertable
infarmation; induding forward-tocking eléments to defermine the extent of the impad.
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{e) General hedge accounting

The new gefetal hedge accounting requirements refain the. thiree types of hedge
al:munl:rng However, greater flexdbility has bieen ihtioduced to this types of fransactions
eligive for hadge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that Guallly
for hedging Instrifments and. the types of fisk companents of non-financial frems that are
eligible fur hedge amounﬁﬁg In addition, the efectiveimess test has been replaced with
the prnciple of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrofpective 3usessment of hedpe
effactiveness 35 alst no longer reguired. Enhanced dikclosire requirements sboul the
Group’s risk marspement artivitias have alao been introduced.

The Group assessed that the application of this phasé of PFRS & did not have a sienificant
Impact &5 it dofs not apply hedge scceunting ot any exlsting hedge relationships,

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
“The standard tormbines, arhiances, and replaces spacific Huidence an Fecbgnizing revanie
with a single standard. An entify will rectigitize révarue to depict the frangfer oF promisad

goots or services to clstormners in an amount that raflects the considerztion o which the
eritiky expects ko be entithad in exchiange for those goods or Sérvicss,

It defines a new five-step moded to recognize revenus from custarher contracts.

'« Kentify the contract(s) with a custormar

« Ydentify the performiance cbiigations in the contrack

»  Detsrmiine the transaction price

v Allocate the transaction price to the performante obligstions ifi the contract

v Recognize revenue wiet (of ds} the entiy satisfies 2 performance abligation

The managément of the Grour assessed that the spplication of the amandmients. dic sot
Fave & significant impact on the Group's corsblidated Tinanclal statements as the Group
has onfy one distinct performance obligation and satisfies 1t at a polnt in time, which is to
deliver the prormised cerhent gonds or camentitious products,

Amendments to PFRS 15, Clanifications to PFRS 158

The amendmanité In the standard addressas three topics namely identrn.rlng perfnrmanm
ohiigations, princioal versus #gent cossideratians, and licensing end pmwde. Eame
transitlon relief for modified contracty and mmp%sted centracks,

= Added a tlarification that the objettive of the BESeEgENt of & protise to transfér
goods or services to & customer is to determiné whether the nature of Ehe proinize,
within the context of the contract, is to transfer each of those goods or servides
individually or, Instead, 1o transfer a combined {tem or ems to which thé promised.
goods or services are inputs.

v Clarificstion on how to assess controf in in determining whether o party providing
gupds or servicés s a principat or an agest '

+ Clarification on when an antity’s activities signiﬁcantw affect t}w.- ntetlechial pmpert?
by amending the application guidance,

The management of the Group assessed that the application of the amendiments: it ot
have & sighificant Impact on the Group's coheofidated Anancial statements as the Sroup
fas only one distinct performance obligation and satisfies it at 2 point In time, witich is to
deliver the promised cement yoods or cementibous produds.




Annusl fmprovements (o PFRSs 2014-2016 Cydle
The annizal Imgrovements address tha following issues:

Ameridments te PFRS 1, Arst-time Atloption of Intermational Financial ﬁepurﬁng
Standsrds

The amesndinents include the deletion af short-tarm exEmptinm; si:ated - the Bppenilin:
of FFRS L _beaause they have ridw served their interded prIRse,

Amandmerits to PAS zg, Fivestiments i Asspoisbes and Jofe Ventures

The amendmaents ctarify that the election ko measurd at falr vafue through pmﬁt or
lose an nvestment in an assoviste or B joint verture that is heid By an entity that isa
venture capital crganization, or other qualifying entity, is available for gach investment.
in an associate or joint venture on an investinent-by-nvdstment’ basls, Upar initisl
recagmtlan

Thz amendments did not have 2 sighiflcant impact on the Gruups Lonsofidated
financial statements a5 the Grodp i nelther & Hrst timé adogter of PFRS nor 2 venture.
capitel organization, Furthermore, the Group does ndt Have any assoclate or joint
venture that 5 an imvestment-entity.

Phillipgine Iriterpretatinn IFRIC 27, Forelgh ﬁ'Uﬂ‘EﬂﬂF Transactiahs and Advance
Consideration

The interpretation covers Fureign currency transactions when an entity recogrizes a
nen-rmonatary 8sset or non-monetary Hability arising fom the payment or recelp® of
advance congideration before the entlity recognizes the roiated asset, expense of
income. It does not apply when en entity measures the rélated ass&t, expEnse or
income on mitial recognition at the fair value of the fensideration received or pald &t
date other than the dste of Iniiai recognition of the non-monetasy gsset or
mn-monetary Habtlity,

The managemeant of the Group assessed that the applicstion of the amendments did
net hisve sn impatt on the Group's consolidated financial statérnants, This is baraise
the Groug already accounts for the transsctions involving the payment or recelpt of
sdvanca consideratich in a foreign currency ihoa way that is consiskant with the
amiendments. )

New Accounting Standard Effmﬂm after the Répuﬂtng Period Endnd
Decamber 31, 2018

PFRS 16, Leases .

This standard provides a single Jesses actogntmg model, requining lessess 1o 'recug'nﬁa '
assers and lizbiities for all jezses unless the (éase termm 8 17 months or jess
{La. si;nrt~1:errn tease} or the under#wng asset has a low vaiue {1 a. lease of low-value
assets

A cofitract Is, or contains, a lease If it cdnveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for & period of time in excharige for constdergtion. Sontrol is conveyed
where the customer hags both the right to direct the identified asset’s uyss and Yo abtal
sibstantiatly afl the aronomic benefits from that use. An assel'is typicelly identified by
being explictly specified in & contract, but an esset can also be dentified by being
implicitty speclied at the fime 1t ts madeé avallable for use by the custamer,

Lessors continue to ciassiy lesdes as aperating or finance, with FFRS 1&'s apﬁrﬂnd'i o
feseor accounting substantially unchangad frm it predecesser, PAS 17,

The standard is effective for asnhual reporting periods beginning on. oF after
January 1, i01%.

The menagenent of the Group has assessed the Impact of the new standard and Wit
recognize commespanding right of use asset and lease Habllty with ::nrresﬂﬂﬂdlng Tease
eéxpense and interest.




PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compenaation
Thie amendments include:

Changes regarding. symmetilc prepayrient sptions

tinder thé amendments, the sigr of the prepayment ambunt Is not ratevant, L.
deperding on the interast rate prevailing dt the tme of terminstion, a peyment may
also be made In favor of the contracting porty effecting the early repayment,
The caicidation of this compensatiin payment must e the same for bath the case uf
an eady repayment peralty and the case of an early’ r&;:ayrmunt gain,

Clarification regarding. the modification of financial ff._abi{ms

Tha amendments contaln & darification regerding the mecounting for'a modification or
exchange of a finandal liabillty meagsured at amortlzed cost that does net result in the
deracogriflon of the Bnancial Habilily, An éntity resoghizes any adjustroent t6 the.
amortized cost of the finangial lzbillky arising from.d modification or exchange in profit.
o l5%g af the date of the modificstion or exchange. A retrospedtive change of the
sccounting treatment may therefore becoré necessary If In the pest the nﬂ*mtiue
interest iate was adiusted and not the amortized cost amount.

The amenhdtments are effective for perfods beglnning on or after January 1, 2019,
Ezrlier:appiication is perritted.

The management of the Group does not anticipate. that the amondrménty will have &
stgiiificant Impact on the Grodp's conssijdated firancis! sfatéments as-the Group does
not heve any mgdification of financiat Labiliey meaasured at amirtived cost, |

PAS 28, Long-term Intireésts. in Assodiates amﬂu&ht vﬁnmms

The amendment clardfy that an entltv ‘appiles PFRS O laciuding Hts impalemant
requlr;rnmts ta lohg-term Interests In an assaciate. oF Joist ventuie that form part of
the ret investment In the assodate or Joint vamture but to which the egquity method i
not spplied,

The amendmant is effective for penuds beginning on er after Januarr 4, 2099,
Earlier application Is permitted, :

The management of the Group does not anticipate that the i&mehdrﬁenis will hawé &
signficant tmpact on the Company’'s financigl statements 85 the Group does rmt have
lang-term irterests In gssociates or joint ventures. )

Néw Acoounting Standards Effacifve After the Reporting Mﬂnd_';ﬁhdﬁ
December 31, 2018 - Adopted by FRSC but paoding publicetion by the BOA

The Group will adept the foliowing once it becomes effectve.

IFH‘.IC_ZB, ‘Uncertairty over Income Tax Treglments

This interpretation apolies in defermiring the taable profit (tax losa), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is unoertainty owver
income tax treatments under PAS 12, fnoorme Taxes

A entlty has to consider whether {t is probatile that the relevant suthority will actept
each tax treatment, of groop of tax treatments, that t used or plans o use 'In 5
ncome tax fting.

» If the entity conciudes thet K is grobsble zhat = perticilar tax trestment s
actepted, the entity has to delermine taxable profit [tax less), tox bases,
gnused tax lpsses, urused tax credis or tax rates consistently with t:he tax
treatment tncluded in its Income tax fillngs,

» I the entlty concludes thar it is not probeble that a nar-l:tmiar tax treatment i
aecepted, the ety has to e the most Hkely amount or the axpected valus of
the tax treatment when determining texable profit (bax loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unised tex credits and tox rates. The decisfon shoutd be hesed on
whith mathod provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertaimy.
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An entity has to reassess its ]ucigwnems ani estimates iF facts and dn:uﬂmnm.
s:hange..

The nterpretation is sffactive for. annual reporting pededs beginning on' or after
Yanuary 1, 2019, Earlier application is peiTHitted. .

The managerient of the Group s stilt avaluating the Impact ef the hew Interpne.taﬂan
on the Company's determination of taxable profitfioss, unised tay thsses, unused Tax.
credlt and tax rate.

Amendments tb PAS 18, Plan Amendment, Curtallinent or Setthermnt
The dmendments in Plan Amendmest; Curtailivient or Sattlarment sray

« I a plan amendment, curtaliment or sétbement acours, it is now mandatory that
the current service cest ahd the pet intérast for the period after the
remeasurement  arg  deterftned  upsing  the asslrnptions used for  the
FEMBEASUramRnt, .

+ In addition, amendments have heeén inciuded to disrify the sffect of = plan
amendment, curfaliment or setthement gy the: requitetnonts regarding the asset
£aiting.

The amendiments are eéffactive for pericds beginfing on. or after Jehtiary 1, 2015
Earier application s permitted.

The managemsnt of the Group 1.5t evaiuating the impack of the amhdm-..
Annual Improverients to-FFRSs 2015-2017 fyde

Amendrents to PFRS 3 and PFRS 11, Previously held Inbevest in 2 jalht oparstion

The ameéndmants to. PFRS 3 clarify that when anh entity obtains control of & business
that is a Joint apération, # remeasures previously held interests In that Business,
The amendments to PFRE 11 darify that when an sntify obteins joint tortrol of &
tusiness that is 2 joint operatien, thé entity doss not remeasuré pravigusly held
mterests in that blsiness.

Amrendments to PAS 12, lncome tex conseduences nf pﬂyme.n‘.‘s o ﬁnandaf
fnstruments c/assiffed as equity

The amendments clarify that the reqmrements iﬁ the forrmr parsgraph 515
fte récognize the Incohie tax consequences of dividends where the trafsactions or
events that denersted distributetde profits ars recognized} apply to sl iAchme By
conseguences of dividends by tioving the paragraph away from baragrapls S2A that.
onky deals with sitpations where there are different ‘tax rates for distributed and
tindistributed profits,

Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing costs eligibie _r:f.-'r tap!ta!k&ﬂ'ﬂn

The amendments clartfy that if any specific borrewlng remains sutetanding after the
related agset is ready for its Intended use or Sale, that bormowing becomas part of the
functs that an entity borrows generafly when -:almiatlng the capitalizstion rabe on
genera! borrowings.

The amendments are effective for pesinds baglaning on or aftér January 1, 2819,
Eariler application is permitted.

The management of the Group is still svaluiting the impact of the amend merts.

FFRS 17, Insurance Comtracts o

PFRS 7 establishes the priricipies for the recognifion, measurement, presentation and
disclgsure of Insurance condracts within the scope of the standand. The objective of
FFRS 17 s to ensure that an antlty provides relevant information that Faitkifilly
represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial
statements to zssess the effect that insurance contracts kave on the entity's financial
nasition, financial performnance and cash Mows., '
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The key principles in PFRS 17 are that an antity:

« identifies as Insurance contiscts fhose tontracts umier whir:h the antity ampts
significant inssrance risk fram another party (the poticyhoider). by spreeing to
compersate the policyhoider IF & speciied uticertain futore event fihe snsurad
evant) sdversely affects the poficyholder;

v separabes specifled emibedded derlvabives, distince invesfment components dnd
distinct performance obilgaticns from the insurahce contracts;

»  tiiides the contracts inte groups that it will recognize &nd maasire;
v recognizes and Teasires groufis of insurance contradts at:

» & fisk-adjusted presert valug of the future cash fows [the fifilment cash
flows} that incorporates all of the avaiiable information about the fulfiment
cash flows in 2 way that [s-zonsistent with obéervable madrket information;
phus {if this value & a Hisbility) or minus (i this value s an assel);

= an amount representing the -unearned profit fn the group of contracts
{the contractual service mergink;

+  recognizes the profit from a group of insurance coritracts.over the perod the entity
provides Insurance cover, and as the efitity & relessed frofm rsic. If a group of
oohkadts is or becorpes loss-making, an entthy recognizes the fass lmmediatety;

s présents separately insuranice revenue (thef -excludes e recsipt of afy
investment compangnt), nsurance service expenges (that exdudes the repayment
of any jnvestinent cotiipenents) and insurance Ananice ncome or expenses; ang

» discloses information to enable users of Ainandiat statements to asseys ihe eftect
that contracts within the:scope of PFRS: 17 have on the fingnciai position, Rrancal
perfurimance and cash flows of an antity.

PFRE 17 includes an optional simiplified maasurermsnt apprnach or premiom aﬂmﬁm
approach, for simpler surance cobtracts,

The stendard is effective for periods beginning on of affer Jarruan_-.r 1, 202t
Earller appHcatial I8 parmithbed.

The menagement of the Group does not anticipate that the riew stnndard will have &
slgnificant impact on the Group's consplidated Anantial st&tm‘rim g the Group doss
ot have Insurance contracts.

Amendrnents to PAS t and PAS §, Definition of Materiaf

The amendments relzts to a revised defimition of 'rmaterial’:

- Information is material if omitting, milsstating or obscuring it ocowld reasonably be
expected to influence decislons that the primary users of general purpose Tikancial
statements make on the basis of those financiaf siaternents, whlch provide firancial
information about a spedfic reporting sntiby.

Three new aspects of the new definition include {1) obscuring: (1) could reasosably be
exprected to infivencs: and {iii} primary users,

The amendmernts stress espechally five ways fateria! information can be sbseurad:

x f f{;m lanpuage regarding a material lhem, transaction or nﬂmr weant 15 vague or
unclear;

« if Infermation regarding & matedal item, transaction of other event is scattered 1n
diffarent placas in the financial statements;

v [if dissimilar lbems, transactions or other events a’m- inapprapriately 2ggrenated;

» IF similar itams, fransactions or athier events ame mappmpﬁmly disagyragated;
and

a _jf materal Information i hidden by immaterial mfun‘nah-::-n to the E!\".tﬂﬂt Lhat £
becomes upclear what information (s matenad,

BRI EEREES
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The amendments are effective for peridds begisning of or Bfter Jangary 1, 2020,
Earlter appiication is permitied.

The management of the Group is stilf evalisating the inipect of the new standard
Arhendmants to PFRS 3, Definftion of Business
The amendments ara o1

« glarify that to be considered a buslﬂeﬁ, An atqufraé sat of attivities and essets
paust inchude, at a minittursy, ohoinpat and a substantive process that tpgt'.ther
stgnh“itantly mnu*tbme 1o the abplity 10 create cutputs;.

s pariow the definitons of & busingss and of putputs by focusing on goods wnd
gatvices provided to customers and. by removing he refarenci to an ablity to
reduce Costs;

» afdd guidance and Wustrative mwaripies fo help enfities assess whither &
substantive process has bean acqulied;

» remgvs the assessment of whether mackst garticipaiits g catable of repladng
any missihg Inputs or processas and contimling to predute outputs;. and

»  add sn cptional concentration test that permits a simplified Assessment of whethet
ah atquired set of ackvities aiid assels i$ not 2 Bisdness.

The amendments are sffactive for business comBingtions for which the acquisition date-
is on or sfter the beginming of the first anngal reporting perlod Beginning on o after
Jannary 1, 2020 and o asset doquisitions that occuir on or &fter the heginning of that
periat.

The management of Bte Group is silt evaloeting the impact of the new standard.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basiy of consolidation

The censclideted finandst statements -incorporate the findnciai stetements of the
Perent Cormpany and all subsidlaries it contrals. Cortrot is achigved when the Parent
Comnpany has power over tha investes, 15 sxposed, or has tights, to variabli retums
fram b5 Invalvernent with the ihvestee; and fras the ability te use i power te alfect
He returms,

Tha Parent Company resssesses whether ar not 13 mntmls an irsmitse i Facts and’
dreumetances indicate that thare are chargas to one or mare of these thres dlemants
af control. When the Parent Company has tees than a rmajerity of the voting rights of -
Bn investes it has power pver tha investes when the voling rights are sufficlent {o
giva it the practicat ability to direct the relevant activitles of the investee uniiaterally.

The Parent Company considers ol relevent facts and dfcumstances I HEoesging-
whigther or not the Pargnt Company's voting fights in an investee ari sufficient to give
it power, ircluding :

s the size of the Parent Cothpany's hoiding of voting Hehte redative o the sbre nnd'
dispersion of holdings of the other vbta holders;

»  potentiat voting dghts hald by the Parent Company, other vote hutaers ar oiher
partles;

v sights arising frem other cantrackual arra'n'gemehts‘ &

» any additional facks and clrcumstances that indicate that the Parent Company has,
or doms pot have, the current abllity to direct tha relevant activities at the time

that decisions need to bs made, including voting patfemns at  previous
sharaeholdars' meetings.
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Consclidation of a subsidiary begins when the Farent Company obtaims controf cver
the sihsidiary and ceases when the Parent Company loses tontrol of the subiidiany.
Specifically, thcome and expenses of a sybsidiary sequired or disposed of during the
poar @re inclided in the ronseiidated stetement of profit or loss -and other
comhiprehensive tcome froiy the date the Parent Cormpany gains controd bntl) the date:-
wheri the Parent Company ceases to centrol the subsidiary..

Frefit or loss and each cofnponient of other comprehensive income of subsidiaras are
attributed to the owners of the Pafept Campany ard to the non-tonstrolling interests,
Totdl comprehensive income of subsidiaries 16 atrributed to the dwriers of the Parerit.
Cortipany arid to the noh-controliing Intersst even if this restits In the pen-controling
intersst having deficit,

The. financial statéments of the subsidiariés ar2 prepared fior the same reporiing year
as the Parent Company, using umifosmi acéounting polities. for Hike tratssctiens and
ather events in similer cireumstances. When necesdary, adjushments are made 1o the
financisl statements of subsidiaries to titing thelr accourting policies into line with the
Gronip's accounting poficies. Al intragroup assets and fabilibies, eduily, income;
expenses and cash flows reluting to transactions between members of the Group dre
eliminated in full on constlidation. Unreslized gains and lesses are elimingtsd.

Chengas in the Group's pwoership interests in subsidlaries that do not result i the.
Group losing contref over the subsitharies are acoounted for as eouity trensactions,

The carrylng amounts of the Group's interests and the non~controlling interssts am
adiusted to meflect the changes in their relathve interests In the sybsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the. non-controling interests are
adiisted and Ehe fEir valug of the chonsideratiod paitl 4r received is remgntzed ﬂjre:tiv'
in =quity-and astributed to owners of the Panent Comipaiy,

when the Group loses control of a subsidiary, & gain or joss IS recopnized. in pruﬁt or

lbss and is calculated as the difference between () the aggregate of the falf value of-
the considerstion received and the fair value of any retoined interest sod (i) the

previous cammying ameunt of the assets (includlng goodwill}, and ilabilities of the -
subsidiary and any noncontroling inferests, All amounts previcusly recognized K

cther comprehensive income in relation to that substdiary dre accounited for as if the.
Group had divectly disposed of the related gssets or liabiltes of the subsidiary

(i.e. réclassified to profit or i6ss or transfemed to ancther category of equity as

specified/parmitted by appilcable PFRSs). The falr value af any investrieht fetained In

the former subsidiary at the date when control is fost s regarded s the fair value on

Initiat recognition for subsequent accounting urder PPRS 9, when applicable, the cost

an initial recognlton of an investment in an assocate or a joint venture,

Business Combination

Acquisitions. of businesses are acoounted for using the acquisition method:
The tomsiderstion transferred in 2 business combinetion = measdured af falr vatue,
which fs caleulatad as the sum of the acuisition-date fair valuss of the sssets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the.
acquires and the equdty imterest issued by Ehe Group i sxchange for tontrol of the
acquiree. Acqulsition releted costs are gereraliy recognized in profit or loss &g
incurred.

At the acnuisition date, the identifiable asséts acguired and the iabiiities assemed ars
recognized at their fair value except that

v gdeferred tax assets or Habilities, and zssets or lizbilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are retognized and measured i accprdance with PAS 34,
Income Taxes and PAS 15, Employee Benefits, respectively; _

# Jigbilides and equity instruments related fo share-baséd payiment arrangements of
the acguiree or share-based payment arrangement of the Groug entered inte to
Tepirce share-based payment arrengaments of the acquiree are measored 6
accordance with PFRS 2 Share-besed Payment af the adquisition dati; and

o assels (or dispossf groups} that are dassified as held for saia in sccordsnce with
T PFRS 5B, Non-current Assets Held for Safs s Discontinued OpersHons are
measurgd in sceordance with that standard,
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Goodwill is measured a5 the excess of the sum of the consideration transferrad,
the ameount of any non-controlling interest o the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held eguity interast in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acruisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabfiities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
idertifiable assets acquired and llabliitles assumed exceeds the sum of the
oonsideratian transferred, the amount of any non-controling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acqulrer’s previously held interest in the acguiree (if any} Is
recognized immeadiately In profit or Isss as bargain purchase gan,

Nan-controlling Interests that are present ownersiiyp (Mterests and entitte their helders
fo 2 propartionate share of the enkity's net assets in the event of |quidatien may Be
Initially measured either at fair vaiue or at the non-controdling Interests” proportionate
share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, The chaige of
measurement basis is made on 3 transactlon-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controfling interest are measured at falr value or, when agplicable, on the Hasls
specified in ancther PFRS. '

When the consideration transferred by the Group in 2 business combination includes
assets or labilltles resulting fromi @ contingent canslderation  arrangement,
the contingent consideration Is measurad at its acquisition-date failr value and inchuged
as part of tha tonsidaration transferred in a buginess combination. Thanges in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustrments
are adjusted retrogpectively, with corresponding- adjustments against goodwill,
Muasuremeant period adjustments are adjustmeénts that arise from additional
infermation ctained during the measurament pericd (which cannol exceed one year
from acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acouisition
date.

Goodwill

Gagdwill acquired 1n a business combinaticn s hitialy measured 2t cost being the
extess of the cost of husiness combination over the Interest in the net fair value of the
acquirer's identiflable assets, liabllities and contingent liabilities, Subsequently, goodwifl
ariging on an acquiskion of a business 's measured 3k cost less any accumifated
impalrment losses. o

For purposes of impairment testing, goddwill is allocated to each of the Group's
casti-generating units that sre expected ta benefit from the synergies oOF the
comblnation. :

A cash-generating unit ta which goodwill has been allocated is tested for Impairmeant
annually, or more frequently when there is indlcatlon that the unit may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiil
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pre rata based on the
carrylng amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognized directly In profit ar loss in the consolidated stetement of comprehensive
income, An impairment loss recognized for goodwllt 1s not reversed In subsequent
pericds.

On disposal of the relevatit ash-generating unit; the amount sttritutable to goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or ioss on disposat,
Current Varsus Noncurrent Classification

The Group presants assets and llabbiities |1 the consolidated balance sheet based on
current or noncumment classification. An asset is current if:

¢ Dxpected 10 be realized or intended 10 be scld or consumed in the normal
operating cycle

s Held primarlly for the purpose of trading
» Expected to be reatized within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

» Cash or cash equivalent untess restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a
labifity for at least twelve months after the reporting period
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Al other assets are dassified as nancurrent.

A Rahlkty Is cyrrent when:

=« Itis expected to be settied in the normal operating cycle

s It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

s It is due to be setbied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

»  There is no unconditicnal rght to defer the settlerment of the liability for at teast
twelve months after the reporting patiod

Al other Habllitles are dassified as noncurrent.

Beferred tax assets and liabilities are classifled &5 nencurrent assets and flabliities,
respackivaly.

Fair VYalue Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives and financial assets af
fair vaiie through Profit or Loss at each batance sheet dzate.

The srincipal or the most advantageous market must be accessibie by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or 2 Hability is messurad using the assumptions that market
patticipants would use when pricing the asset or fiability, assuming that market
particlpants act {n their economic best interest,

A falr vatue measuretnant of 3 nonfinanciel asset takes inte acepunt a market
particpant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in Its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and basi use,

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure falr value, maximizing the use of
ralevant observable inputs and rrinimizing the use of unebservable inputs.

For assets and iabifities that are recognized in the consolidated finandiat statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have goourred between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the falr value measurement as a whole) at the end of sach reporting perlod.,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determlrmed classes of assets and
liabilttes on the basis of thwe nature, characteristics and risks of the assets ar lability and
the leve| of the fair value hiersrchy.

Fair-value refated disclisures for Anandal mstruments that are measured at fair value are
summzrized in Notes 12 {Investments) and 17 (Trade and other payables).

Financial Assets

Accounting polficies apoiied ffom fanuary 1, 20118

Initial regpgrition

Flrancial assets are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements when

_the Group becomes a paty to the contrpctual provisions of the Instrument,
_ Findncial assets are recagnized Inftially at fake value,

Transaction costs ara included in the initiat measurement of the Group’s consotidated
financial assets, except for investments classified st FYTPL. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financizl assets classified as at FUTPL are recoghized
Immediately in profit or loss,
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Clagsification apd Sybsegpent Measurement

All reguiar way purchases of sales of flnancial assets are recognlzed and derscognized
on & trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financinl assets that require dellvery of assets within the perlad established by
regutation or conventlen in the marketplace.

All recognized financlal assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amartized cost or fair value, depending on the classiflcation of the financial assets.

Financlal assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the
basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial zssets and the
contractual cash fiew characteristics of the financiel assets, as folows:

» financlal assats that are held within 2 business modal whose objective is fo collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solaly
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding (SPPI),
ars subsequently measured at amortized cost;

= financial assets that are held within a business modat whase objective s both to
cotlect the contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have
contractual cash flows that are SPPIL, are subsequently measUred st fair value
through other comprehanshve income [FYTOCT):

» 2l other financial assets managed on their fair value basis and equity instruments
are subsequently measured at fVTPL.

However, the Group may make the following rrevocable election/designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset on an asset-by-asset basis:

+ the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in falr value of an
equity investment that Is neither held for trading nor comtingent consideration
recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to whith PFRS 3 applies, in
201 and

v financial assets that ave held within 2 business model whaose objective Is both to
collect the contractual cash flows and $0 sel the debt instruments, and thet have
contractual cash flows thot are SPPI, are subsequently measursd at fair value
through ether comprehansive {nceme (FYTOC).

Amartired cost and effeciive Interaest meathod

The effective intersst method is 3 methad of calculal‘tﬁg the amorfized cost of a
financlal assat and of alloccating Interest income over the relevant period.

The amortized cost of a financlal asset is the amount at which the financial asset |s
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumutative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss altewance. On the other hand,
the gross carrylng amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial asset
before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognized Using the effective interest method for debt instruments
measured subseguently at amartized cost and at FVTOCIL For fnancial instruments
sthar than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective Interest rate to the gmss carrying emount of a
financial  asset, except for financial assets that have subseguenbly berome
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently became credit-impaired,
Interest income Is recognized by applying the effective Interest rata to the amartized
cost of the financial asset. If, in subseguent reporting perlads, the oredit risk on the
credit-impalred financial instrument improves so that the financlal asset is mo longer
credit-impadred, interest income (s recoghized Dy applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrylng armowat of the financlal assat,

lﬂw@ﬁmmmammmauﬁmm



Financtal pssets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FYTPL are;
«  -Zgsets with contractusl cash fiows that are not SHPI: or/andg

i @sseis that are held th & business mode! nﬂ"ler than hetd to collect contrachyal reigh
flows or held. to coflect and sail; or

+  pssets designated at RTPL using the fate vahie option,.

These assets ase measured at faiF valug, With aﬂf gatnsflosses. arising oh
remeasLrement recognized in proflt or 155s. :

Emnaizmguimw

The Group récogriizes a loss allowanos for. mcriettaed ‘Eredit losses o frade receivabiles;
contract assets, as well as on lsan comsnitments and- finahclal guarsites Sentracts:
No impairment loss i5- rechyrized for investments iy guity instruments. The amibuiit
of expected credit fosses is updated af; each reperting date 1o refledt. changes in credit,
sisk stnce initfal recogrition of the respectivs Brandal fristrament;

BCLe are required to ba measured throinh & loes slfowanse ot an amdunt equai fai

» 1Z-month £CL, Lé. ifetime ECL that result from those default evenmts on the
financiaf hstmment that arg possible within 12 maonthe after the Feporting date,
{referred to as Stage 1}; or

«  full lifutime ECL, ie. lifetime ECL that resglt from 2l possibie. defauls events oVEr
the life of the financial iistnament, {referved toas Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowancs for fulf ifetime £CL.is required for- a Rniancis Instrubient iF the tred?t
risk on that Anancial instroment has increased significantiy since inftial reqognition.
For aif other financis) instruments, ECLs afie measured &t an amount squsl to the
12-month BCL.

ECLE are 3 probabity-weighted asti‘marte of tha present vallie of credst losses.
These are measiured as the pressnt vaiue of the difference betwesn the cash Tlows dig
to tha Camgany under the contract and the tash flows that the Company expects to
recaive arsing from the welghting of multiple future economic scenarlos, disceurited af
the asset’s effactive interest rate.

The Group measures ECL on an individal basis, or on 3 colléctive basis for portfabos
of loans that share sifilar ecanomic risk charackeristics, The messuremant of the oy
‘allowancs is based on the present value of the asset’s expacted cash flows using the
asset's original EIR, Vegnrd!es& af whether t is measured on an individual basis or a
coliactive hasls.

The Group always recognizes fifetime. ECL. for trade rocoivaties, amourits due from
wuctomers under construction ¢omracts and lease receivables, The expected &redit
losses on these financlal assets arp estimated using a provision mastrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experiénce, adjusted for Fictors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic tonditions arid an assessment of both the current as wail as.
the forecast diraction of conditions at the reporting dote, inciiding time valus of
mongy where approgriate. .

For afl other financisl instruments, thé Group recognizes lifetime ECL wher thére hias
been 4 significant incresse in credit sk since Inttial recognitiod. If, on the other hand,
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significartly sincg inhial
recognition, the Group measgsures the Ioss allowance for that financlal Instrument at an
amount equel to 12 manth ECL. The assessmeant of whether fifatime SCL sheuld be
recagnized ts based on sigmificant increases In the likeithood or risk of a defaclt
ovocurring since initial recognition instead of on évidence of & Araociel asget beinp
credit-impalred st the reporting date or an actual default occuering.

Lifetime ECL ropresents the expected credit fosses that whl result from sit possitia
default events over the expocted fife of a financlal instrument. In contrast, 42 menth
ECL represents the portlen of lifstme ECL that is expected fo résuft from defauit
syents on 2 fingncial Instrument thet are pessible within 12 months afher the rsporting

date.
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Default

Criticat to the determination of ECL i5 the definifion of default, The definition of default
s usad in messuring the amount of ECL 2nd in the debarmination of whether the. loss

aligwance is based on 12-manth or fetime ECL, as default {5 & comporient of the
probability of default [PDY which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the
identification of 2 slgnificant increase. i crédit sk,

Wheérn asgessing if the borrower s uniikely to pay its credit ﬁbl}gaﬂuﬁ, the Group takes
jnto acéount both duatitetive and quantitative intlicsliors. The information. assessed -
depends o e type of the asset, for exampte i torporate lenting & qualitstive
indicator used. i5 the breach of cowenants, which is net refevant for retail lerding.

Guantiéative indicators, such as overdue status amd  nom-payrnent & atetber
ghllgation of the same counterparty are ey inpuis. In $his analysls: The Group vses &
variety of kolices oF information to assesy defsult which are elther develpped
ihternaliy ¢ obtained fram Bxternal sources,

Signfficant increase i credit risk

The Group monitors Bl financial assets, fesued loan commitments and finangal
guaranted contrecis that are subfect to the impairment. regquirements by ausess
whether there has besn & significant orease in credit risk since nabsl rebsgrition,
If there has bears 8 sighiffcant [fcrease In credit rigk the Group wiil miasure the logs
aliowartice based on lifetime rather than 12-menth ECL..

In assessing whether the credit risk. 6 a finansiel instrumment has Intreased
significantly since initisl recognition, the Group -compares the risk of a -defaull
pecurring on the financial instrument ot the réporting date based on the remalning
maturity of the instrament with the risk of 8 default ocourring that wik aniflcpated for
the remalining maturity at the cirrent reportlng date when the fingpcial instriment -
was first recognized. In making this adssessment, tha Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative Inforimation that is reasanable and supportable, ncluding
historical experence and forward-fooking Informiation that Is available without undue
cost or effort, based on the Group’'s historical expeﬂance and Expm credit assessment
including forward-looking information.

The Compary derecognizes 3 financisl asset only when the contractusl rights to the
asset's cash flows axpire or when the Anariciat asset angd substantially alt the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Company
neirher transfers nor retaing substantially aft the risks and rewards of ownevship and
continues to control the transfarred asset, the Company recognizes its rebained
intergst in the asset and afi associated Hafbi!#t\r for 2mounts it may have to pay. If the
Company retains substantiafly all the risks and rewards of ownership of & transferrid
Anancial assat, the Company contthues to recognize the Rnancial asset and albso
racognizes a coflateratized borrowing for the proceads re-ceivﬂ-d .

O derecognition of a finandal asset in 4% entirety, the difference hetwieen the asae’cs
cafring amsunt and the sum of the consideration received and recetvsble and the
cumuiative gaindloss that had beaen récognized i O and acourhulated in eguity 1s
recognized in profit or loss, with the exception of equity investment designated . as
measured st FVTOCL, where the cumulative galn/floss previously recognized in DCI 5
ot subtisaguently reclassifisd to profit or loss.
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On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety; the Company allicates
the previous eareying amaunt of tha financlal ascet hatwean the part & aomtinoeys to
recogniize ynder contiruing involvernent, and the part i no iongér recognizes on e
basis. of the reigthee. Talr values of those. perfs on the date of the ‘transfer.
‘The fifsrence between the carrying amount slldcated 1o the part that is no fonger
racognized and the sum pf the consideration recefvet] for the part nu longer recognized
and any eumulative gainfloss afiocsted to It that had been recegrfzed in OCT Is
recoghlzed in profit or loss. A& cumulative gaimﬂnss thint had: baan. resognized T ol s
sliocated hetwedn the part that continues 1o be recognized and the part that s ng
lenger recogrized on the basis of the relative: fair values of those parts. This does not
apgly for equity Inveshrerts designal:ed as megsurad at FYTOCL, as the cumufative
gainoss previously recognized in OCT is not wbsequantw tectaseified fo profit.or loss.

Write-ofF

Financial assets are writteh off when the Group has ‘g reasonable Exﬁﬂttaﬂﬂnﬁ of
recovering the financial asset either iy itz entirety or a partitine of i, This is the tase
whett the Grotp determings that the borrower does rot Bave asipts or sourses of
imctme that could generate sufficient cash flows to repsy the ameurts subject to the
write-off, A write«off constitutes a derecognition event.

Acctunting pofides applied prior to Ionuary 1, 2018

Finariclal assats aro pocognlzad i the Group’s consoliddted Arancial statemants Whan ta
Grup becomes -a party to. the. wontiachial - provislons * gf - the . insbument.
Financial assets are recopfilzed Miitially at fair valug. Trenssctioh <osts sre induded in the
inftinl rhemsuremant of the Group’s financial sssets, axcept for invastments cassified ot

Finaericial assets are dassified into the fDEﬁwlnﬂ: spedﬂsd mt&wriﬁ “fingncial assets of
FUTRL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investmants, avaflable-for-sale (AFS) firandal assets and
lbans and recsivables. The classification depends on the risture end purpose of the
financial assets and is determired at the time of indtial recopnition. A meguiar way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recngnized and denscognized on & trade d=te
baste, Regular way purchases or safes are purchates o zales of Anancial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frane estahlished by reguiation or convention in
the marketplace,

The Group's financial assets consist of AFS ﬁnaﬁd&i astets ami iuam and Tecaivables. -

Loans and reesivables

Loans and recelvables zre non-dervative fAhencsl sssets with fixed or determioable
payments that are hob quoted in an zctve market. After inifia? recognitisn, ioans. and
recefvables are measurad at amottired oost Gsing the sffective Interest mathiod, lass any
impairment and are cuded in curent assets, except for those with maturities gisater
than twelve months after the ehd of the reporting pericd. .

The. effertive [rterest miethod Is a0 method of calcolating the amortized oost ot 4 debt
Instrumend and of allotating inferest income over the relevant perod. The efféctive
interest rate ls the rate that exacty discounts estimated future cash receipts throoigh the
expecied iife of the debt instrument or, when approprishs, & shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on Initkat recogaltion.

Interest [ncoime i recognized by applying the effecthe nterest rate, Emept for
shart-tarm resetvables when the recagnition of interest would be Immiaterial.

The Group's Rnsncial essets dassified wicler this atégry Indude tash and oy
equivaterits, trade and other recsivables and due friste relabed p-ame:i




AFS financial assels

AFS fimanclal assets are non-denvative financial assets that are desigrated as AFS or
are not classifled as loans and recgivables, HTM investments ar financlal assets at
FYTPL.

Listed redesmatle notes held by the Group that are traded in an active market are
classified as AFS and sre stated at falr value at the end of 2ach reporting period.
The Group also has |nvestments in unlisted shares that are not traded In 2n active
market but that are also classified as AFS financial assets and stated at fair value at
the end of sach reperting pericd. Changes in the cammying amount of AFS monetary
financlal assets miating te chenges in forelgn currency rates, interest income
ealculated using the effective Intarest methad ang dividends on AFS  equity
investments are recognized In proflt or loss. Other changes in the canying amaunt of
AFS financial assets are recognized i gther comprehensive incoma and accumulated
Lnder the heading of investment revaiuation reserve. When the investiment |s disposed
of ar is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accurmulated
in the investment revaltation reserve |s reclassified to profit or 1058,

The fair walue of AFS monetary financial assets denominated in 2 forelan currency is
detesmined in that foreign currency and transiated at the spot rate prevailing at the
end of the repoting perod, The forelgn exchange gains and losses that are recognized
in profit ar loss sre detertilned based on the amortlzed cost of the monetary assat,
Other forelgn exchange gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
INCOMIE.

AFS equity lnvestments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be relisbly measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must ba settled by dalivery of such Unguoted equity investiments arg measurad at
cost |es6 any identlfied impalrment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Cividends on AFS equity instruments zre recogrized in profit oF [gss when the Group's
riaht W receive the dividends is established.

AFS assets are included in non-current assets unless the investment maturas or
management intends to dispoce it within 12 months after the and of the reporting
perlod.

Inpslrment of financ|pl assats

Financial assets, other than those at FVYTPL, are aeses&ed for indicators of Fm;&airment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets sre constdersed to he impaired
whern there i5 objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occumed
after the Inltlal recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected,

Qbjective ayidance of impairment

For equity investments elassHied as AFS, a slgnificant or prolonged dechne in the fair
valve of the security below its cost ls concidered to he objective evidence of
irepairment.

For g4 fingnclal assets carrled at amortized cost, objective evidence of impairment
could inchade:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter party; or

« breach of comtract, such as defsult or definguency In Interest or principal
payrments; or

= it becoming probahle that the borrower will énter bankruptcy or financial
re-prganization; or

« the disappearance of an active market for that financial assetr because of financial
difficultles; or

+ tne {ender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial
difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the fender would not

otherwise conslder; or
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« observable data indicating that there is a3 measurable decrease In the estimated
future cash flows from 2 group of financlal assets since the indtlal recegnition of
those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
Financial assets In tha group,

For gertaln categories of Anancial ssset, such 2s trade reo&'wahies, assets that are
assessed not to e impaired individually are, in additlon, assessed for impalrment on 2
collective basts. Chijective evidence of impairment for a8 portfgdlo of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the numnbar
of delayed payments in the portfclio past the average credit period a5 well as
observable changes in national or local econormic cenditlens that correfate with default
on receivahbles,

Financial assets carried at amorfized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impalrment loss is
measurad as the difference bebween the asset’s carrying amount and the present
vajue of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the finendal esset’s origina
effective interest rate, i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initiat recognition,

For financial assets that are carrled at cost, the amount of the impairment 1055 15
measured as the diference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
valye of the estimated future cash flows discountad at the current market of return for
a similar financial assel. Such impairotert Ioss will not be reversed 10 subsedquent
perinds,

The carrying amount of financial assets carried at amortized cost s reduced directly by
the tmpalrment loss, with the exception of trade receivablas wherein the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an sllowance account. When trade receivables
are considered uncollactible, thess are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoverfes of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account., Changes in the carrying amouent of the ailowance account are
recognized in profit or loss.

If, Im a subsequent perlod, the amount of the impalrment loss decreases and the
decraase can be related objectively to an event ooourming after the Impairment was
recognized, the previously recogrized impairment Ioss shall be reversed either directly
ar by adiusting an allowance account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying
amourt of the financlal asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been
fiad the impalrment not been recogntzed at the date the impalrment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal shall be recognized in the profit or foss.

&S Ananciat aesets

Whep an avaiflable-for-sale financia! asset |& considered to he impairved,
cumuiative gains or losses previcusly recognized in other comprehensive income are
ractassified to proft or loss,

K there 15 an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an
unguotad squity instrureent that £ not carried at falr value, oF on a derivative asset
that is {nked to and must be settiod by delvery of such an umguoted eguity
ingtrumernt, the amount of the Impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financiat asset and the present value of estimated future
gash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for 2 similar financial asset,
Impairment losses recognized on an investment in unlisted equity instrument classified
as AFS are recagnized in prefit or loss. lmpairment losses recognized on an
investment In unguoted equity instrument classifled a5 AFS are recognized [ prefit or
loss.

Im a subzequent period, If the fair value of 3 debt Imstrument classified as AFS
increases ang the intrease can be objectively miated to an avent occurring afrer the
impairment loss was recognized in profit or lgss, the impalqment loss shall be
reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or lass,

In respect of AFS equity sacurities, impeirment losses previously recognized ln profit
or loss are not reversed through profit or loss, Any wcrease in falr value subsequent to
an Impairment igss is recognized in other comprehensive income,
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Deracognitj iaf

The Group derecagnizes financial assets when the contracteal rights to the cash flows
fromm the asset expire, ar when [ transfers the fnanclal asset and substantiatly all the
risk and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither
transfers ror retzins subistantially all the risks and rewards of ownershipg and cantinues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset
and an assaciated liabifity for amounts it may have to pay, If the Group retalns
substantially ali the risk and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group cortindes to recognize the financlal asset and also recognizes a
collateralized barrowing for the proceeds recebved,

On derecegnition of financial asset in its entirety, the difference betwaen the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
curmulative gairnt ¢r 1oss that had beep recogrized in OCT and acoumulated in eguity is
recognized in profit or loss.

On derecogntion of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g., when the Grous
retains an option to repurchase gart of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset hetween the part it continues to
recognize under continulng invelvament, and the part it no longer recognizes on the
basls of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the Ekransfer.
The diference between the tarrying amount allocated to the part that is no longar
recognized and the sum of the considerstion received for the part no longer recognized
and any cumulative gain or loss alivcated to it that had been recognized in OCI is
recognized in profit or foss. & cumulative gain or 1038 that had been recognized in OCI
it ailocated between the par? that continues to be recognized and the part that is ne
langer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Includes cash qn hand and In banks, Cash equlvalents are short-term,
Fighly liguid investments that are readily convertible to kmown amounts of cash with
original maturities of three months or fess from the date of acquisition and that are
subject to an iRslgnificant risk of change |n value. Cash and cash equivalents excludes
any restricted cash {presented as part of “Other noncurrent assets™) that is not
avaflable far use by the Group ard therefare is not consldered h:ghh_.f ligquid, such as
cash set aside to cover rehabilitaton obligations.

Inventories

Inventories are velued at the lower of cost and net realizable value {NRV}.
Costs incurred in bringing each invantory to s present location and conditions are
accounted for as follows:

Finished geods and goods in - determined using the moving aversge

PrOCRSS meathod; cost includes direet materizds,
direct tabor and a proportion  of
manufacturing overhesd costs.

Raw materiats, fuel, spare parts

and others determiped using the moving average

mathod; cost includes purchase price and
other costs mcurred in bringing  these
inventories to thelr present |ocation or
conditin.

The NRV of finished goods and goods in process inventorles is the saling price 1n the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to complete the product and make
the sale. The NRY of raw materials, fuel and spare narts and other inventories is the
current replacemant cost.
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When the net realizable vaiue of thit Inventories Jg lower than the cost, the Compasy
previdas for an slivwance for the décife in the valua of the inventory and recognizes
the wiite-dowr: as an erbenge in profit or lass, The amount of any reverssl of any
write-down of invertoties, arisitg frott an migrease in net reslizebls vatie,
is recognized a5 & reduction in the srmount of invientores reeognized as an sxpdnse.n
the period in which the reversal ocains, :

When inventories are suld, the cariying dmount of those inventuries is. recognized as
an expense in the period in which. the related raveriog is reengnized.

. Ofhigr Current Assets.

Otfer current assats maiily. indude advances to: suppliers and prepsld expenses,
These are amounts paid in advence for goads or servites thet are yet to ke delivered
ang from which future economic benafits are expectad to fow to the Group within the
Norval aperating Cyeld or within 12 mopths from the balance sheet date. Tigy are
initally messured at the amount paid in advince by the Greup ftir the purchase of
goods and services and are subseguently decreased by the armount of expense
inerred. '

Investments in Assoclales

An assaciate [s an entity pver whick the Paent Gomspany -has significant influstice.
Significent Influence is the power fo participate in ths financial and pperating poficy
decisivhs of the investee, but has ng contiol of joint control over those pilicies,

The congiderations miade ih determining significsnt influence are similer to. thicse
riscessary to deterining qontro! over subsidiaries. '

The Parent Company’s Investments i its associates are accounted for using the exquity
method, Under the equity method, the investments I associates are ittty
recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the investments is adjusted to recognizé
changes in the Parent Companys share of net assats of the asspciates sinte the
acguisition date. Any goodwill relating ko an asspcate is included In the cairying
amoint of the investmert and is neither amortized nor individually tested for
impairment.

The censolidated statemert of income reflects the Parent Cosipany’s sharg of the
results of opirations of the pssociates. Any change in OCI of the sssociate is presentad
a5 part of the Parent Company’s OCIL In ediitlon, when thére has been a change
recognized directly in the aguity of the sssociates, the Parent Company recognizes [¥s
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
eguity, tnrealized galns and losses resulting fromn transactions between the Parent
Company arid the associates are &fiminated o the extent of the interast in the
assoclates, S '
Yhe aggrepgate of the Parent Company's share of profit or foss of the Associafes is
shown on the face of the consclidated staterment of inceme and represents profit ar
{oss aRter tax and nion-controfting interests in the subsidiaries of the associates,

The finandial statements of the associates are prepared for tha same reparting perind
as the Parent Company. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the
acceunting polickes In flng with those of the Parent Company. .

After application of the aquity method, the Parent Compeny detarrines whether it i
necessaty Lo recdgrire ap addifonal impeirmient loss om its Investments in the
“Besociates. The Parent Company deteimninies at sach reporting date whether there s
any objective evidence that the investment in the ssstclate Is impaired. If thers is
such evidence, the Parent Company cafculates the ameont of tmpajrment as the
differance between the recoverable amount of the associate and it carrying valug and
recaghizes the toss ay part of the “Share in undistribited sarnings of an asspciate”
under “Others = net” in e consclidatéd statément of Incomae,

Upen loss of significant inftuance over the assodiate, the Parent Company measures
and recognizes any retained tnvestmint at e fair value, Any differsnce bebween the
carrying amount of the assoclate upon loss of signtficant influence and the fair valug of
the retatned investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in the conselidated
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are inlt!al’y recognized at cost. The cost of an ltem of
property, plant and equipment comiprises:

+ its purchase price, Including import duties and nan-refundahle purchase taxas,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates;

« any costs directly attributahie to bringing the asset to the location and candition
necessary Tor it to be capable of gperating in the manner intended. by
Managemeant: and

= the initial estimate of the future costs of dismantling and remeving the item and
restering the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity fneurs
either when the ltem |5 acquired or a5 & consequence of having used the jtem
during a particular periad for purposes other than to produce inventaries during
that period.

Property, plant and equlpment are subsequently measured at cost less any
subsequent  accumuiated depreciation, and  impalrment  |osses.  Subseguent
expanditures relating to an item of property, plant and equipment that have already
baen recognized are adied to the carrying amount of the asset whar it is probable
that future ecomomic benefits, In excess of the ariginally assessed standard of
perfarmance of the ewisting agset, will flow to the Group. Al other subseguent
expend/tures are recognized as expenses in the periad In which those are ncurred,

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment gushify as property, plant and equipment
when the Group expects to use them during more than one period. Simitarly, if the
spare parts and senicing equipment can be used only in connection with an lterh of
property, plant and equipment, these are accounted for as property, plant and
equiprrent.

Depraciation s camputed o the streight-line method based on the astimated uaeﬂ:i
lives of the assets as follows:

Building and instailations © 20 to 40 years
Machinery and aquipment 15 to 30 years
Furniture, vehicles and tools : 3 to 10 years

Properties in the course of construction For production, rental or administrotive
purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are camied at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and for qualifying assets, barrawing
costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting palicy,

Depreciation of these assets, on the same basls as other property assels, commencas
at the time the assets are ready for thelr intendad use.

An iterm of property, plant and eguipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no
fdture economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued Use of the
asset, Gain or loss arsing an the disposal or retirement of an assat is determined as
the difference between the =ales proceeds and tha carrying amount of the assat and s
recagnized in profit or loss,

Construction in progress represents plant and properties under construction or
development and i5 stated at cost, This Includes costs of construction, plant. and
equipment, boffowing ¢osts directly attributabile to such assets during the construgtion
perind and other direct costs. Copstruction in-progress is not depreciated unfil .such
time when the relevant assets are substantially completed and available for its
intended use.
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Intanglble Assets -~ Software

Intangible assets are initiafly measured at cost. Subsenuent to indtial recoghition,
infangibla assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carrled 2t cost
less securnulated amortization and accumuisted Impairment losses, Amartization (s
recognized on @ straight<ling basis tver the estimated useful lives. The estimatad
usefu! Nfe and the amaortizatlon method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
periad, with the effect of any changes In estimate being accounted for on a
prespective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when ne future economic benefits
are expected from use or disppsal. Galns or losses arising from derecognition of an
mtangibie asset, measured as the diference betweesn the net dispesal proceeds and
the carryving amount of the asset, are recognized In profit or toss when the assetf is
deracognized.

Impairment of Tangitde and Intangible Assets

At the end of each reperting perind, the Group assezses whether there is any
indleatton that ary of s tengible and intangible assets may have suffersd an
impalment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverahble amount of an individusl asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-gererating unit to which the asset
belongs. When 2 reasonable and consistent basis of atlocation can be identlfied,
assels are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smatlest group of cash-generating unlts far which 5 reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified,

Intangible assets with indefinite usefil lives and intangible assefs not yet availsbie for
use are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be Impalred,

Recoveralde ampunt is the higher of falr value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing valie In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific Lo the asset for which the estimates
of future rash Aows have nat been adjusted,

If the recoverable amount of 2n asset or cash-generating unit is estimated o be less
than Its carrying amaunt, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) s
reduced to is recoverable amount, An Impairment loss s recognized as an expense,
umass the relevant asset is carred at a revalued amount, in which case the
impatment foss s treated as a revalyation decrease. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of CGUs are aliocsted first to reduce the rcarrying amount of any goodwil
allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the unit {group of units on a pro rata basls.

Impairment losses recognized In prior peripds are assessed at the end of eath

reporting period for any indications that the fuss has decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is revarsed if there has been a change in the estimates uzed to

determine the recoverable amount, An impairment loss is reversed only Lo the extent

that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the camrying amount that would.
have been determined, net of depredation or amodtization, If no impairment losz had
been recognized. A reversal af an impairment loss is recognized 3s income, unless the

relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, In which case the revarsel of the

tmpairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Financial Liabilities and Equity Insteunents
Accounting policies appiied from January 1, 2018

Financial liabllities

A Financial labkity Is & contractual obligation to deliver cash or another fnancial asset
or to exchange financial assets or financial ljabilities with ampther entity under
conditions that are potentizlly unfavarable to the Group or a contract that will or may
he settled in the Group's own equity instruments and is a non-derlvative cemtract for
which the Group is or may be obliged te deliver a variabte number of its owh equity
instruments, or @ derbrative contract over own equity that will or may be settied other
than by the exchange of a Fxed amount of cash or ancther financial asset for a fixed
nurnber of the Group’s own eguity instruments.

Fnancial Babtliies are classified as either financial liabilities at:FVTPL or other financlal
tiatilities.

Financial fabiities at F¥TPL

Financial Hakilltles are classifled as at FEVTPL when the financial liability is [i}) hetd for
trading, or {ii} it is designated as at FVTPL,

A fimancial liabibty s Classified as held for trading

« it has been incurred orincically for the purnose of repurchasing it in the near term;
or '

= on lnitlal recognition i is part of a portfolio of identifled f]ﬁ_ifmclai Instruments that
the Group manages fopether and has 2 recemt actyal pattern of short-temm
profit-taking; or

= it is a derivative that is not desionated and effective as 2 hedging instrument,

A financisl liability other than a financial lability held for trading or contingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination may
be designated as at FYTPL upon intial recognition if:

= such deslgnaticn eliiminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
[neansistency that would otharwise arise; of

+ the financial Kability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and itz performance is evaluated on a fair value basts,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internzlly on that basis;
or

« it forms part of a contragh containing one or more embegded derivatives,
and PFAS 9 permits the entire hybrid contract to be designated as at FVTPL,

francia! fiabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gamsflosses aflsing on
remeasurement recognized tn profit or loss to the extent that they are not park of 2
designated hedging relationship. The net gainf/ioss recognized in profit or loss
incorprrates any nterest paid on the financial liability and is included in proflt or koss.

However, for non-derlvative financial llabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amolnt of change in the falr valug of the fimancial Lability that is attributable to
changes In the credit risk of that tiability is recognized in OCI, uniess the recognition of
the effects of changes {n the fabdity's credit sk in OCL would creste or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in pmfit or loss, The remaining amoent of chanog in the Fair
value of liability s recognized in profit or loss. Changes in Fair value attributable to a
Fpancial ltabllity's credit risk that are recngnized in OCI are not subsequerntly
reciassified 1o oroft or logs; instesd, they are transferred to retalned sarnings wpan
derecagnition of the financiat Hability.

For financiat liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL all gains and losses are
recognized in profit or 1055,
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In making the determination of whether recogrizing changes in the lability's credit
risk in OCT will create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit ar fnes, the Group
Bsses5es whether it expects that the effects of changes in the lability's credit risk will
be offset in profit or loss by a change i the falr value of another flnancial instrument
rmeasured at FYTPL. This detarmination |s made at inltlal recagnition.

thar Bnancial Tabifllies

Other financial lizbilities are initizlly measored at fair value, net of transaction Costs.
Other finangial {fabilities are subseguentiy measured at amorbized cost using the
effactive interest methad.

The effeciive interest method is a method of calculabing the amortized cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense aver the relevant perod. The ER Is
tha rabte that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected
iifa of the financial fiabiity, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the nat carrying
amount an initial recognition.

ffsatting of inancial instruments

Financial assets and Habillties sre offset and the net amount reported in the
statemeants of financial position when there is a tegally enforceabte fAght to offset the
recagnized amounts and there is an intentlon to settle on a net basls or realze the
asset and settie the lability simultansausly,

A rlght to offset must be avallable today rather belng contingent on & future event: and
must be exercisable by any of the counterparties, both in the normal course of
esiness and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy.

Perecognition of imgncial fabifies

Financlal lfabilitles are derecognized by the Group when the cbligation under the
liabitity |5 discharged, canceiled or explred. The difference between the carrylng
amguint of the financial ilability derectgiized and the constderation pald and paﬂ,rabie is
recognized in profit or foss. )

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences & residual interest n the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its fabilities, Equity Instruments tssued by the Group
are recognized at the proceeds recelved, net of dirgst issue costs,

Capital stock

Ordinary shares are cltassifed as equity. Incremental costs diretﬂy attributable to the
lssue of mew shares or optlons are shown In aquity as a deduction from the proceeds,
net of tax,

£ividends

Dividend distribution to the Group's sharehakiers is redugni;ze:f as bablilty In the
Groug's consolidated financial staterments In the perlad [n which the dividends are
declared by the Group's Board of Direckars (BOD).

Retainegd earmings

Ratained earnings mepresent accumuolated profit sarned by the Group after deducting
dividends declared. Retalned sarnings may also Include effect of changes in accaunl:lng
-pulicyr s may b reguired by the standard’s transitionsl provisions.

Additienal Paid-in Capital

When the shares are scld at premium, the difference between the procesds and the
par value is credited to “Additional pald-in capital” account. EMrect costs incurred
tefated to equily Issuance are chargeable to “Additional pald-ln capital” account.
If additional patd-in capital is not sufficient, the excess is charmged agalnst retained

BArnings.




Accounting policies applfied prior to Janvary ., 2018

Llassification as debt or aquity

Debt and equity Instruments are classtfied as gither financial Babilities or as equity.{n
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and definitions of a
financiat Hakility and equity ingtrument.

i iiabilities

Initial recognition

Financia! liakilities are recognized in the Group's consofidated financial statements
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financtal liabilldes are inbally recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are Inchuded
It the inibhal mesasurement of the Groups financlat Habilitles, except for debt
instruments ciassified at FYTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financiat liabilities at FYTPL or other financial
liabilities.

subsegquent measurement

Since the Group does not have financial liabilities classified at £YTPL, all financial
liabilities are subseguently measured at amortized. cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recbgnized on an effective yleld basls.

The effective Interest method is a2 method of calouiating the amomtized cost of a
financial hHabiltty and of allccating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective {nberest rate i the rate that exactly discounts aestimated future Cash
payments including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts through
the expected e of the flnancial Habifity, qr a shorter periad, bo the net carrying
amount 671 inftial recognition.

Gffsafting of financiaf instriments

Financlal assets and liabHities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statements of financial pasition when there s a legally enforceable rght to offset the
recognized amounts 8nd there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the Hability simuitaneausty.

A right io offset must be available today rather hei.ng contingent on a future event and
must be exerclsable by any of the counterpartles, both in the normal course of
busziness and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptoy.

Deracoghition

Financlal |labllities are derecognized by the Group when the obligabon under the
iakility is discharged, cancelied gr expired. The difference between the carrying
amgunt of the financial liabtfity derecognized and the consideration paid and pavable is
recognized in profit ar |ass.
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Berivative Financial Instrumvents

The Group enters into a variaty of. derivative financial Ihetriments to manage Its
exposute to intersst rate apd fotelgr exthiangs rate risks, intluding formign. exéhange
forward conttacts, Interest rate swapk snd croys currency sweps. The ose of financizl
derivatives is govertied by the Group's. pofices appmved by the Seard of Directors,
which provide writhen principles on the Use of financial derivatives,.

Derivatives are initiadly recogrized at fair value at the date a derivative contract Is
entered inta and are ssheeguently re-measured to their Ssir value at the end of gach
feporting peripd. Al dervativas sre carried as assets iF the fair value Is positive,
ottierwise darivatives are carried s lisbliities. The resufting gair or Joss is recopnized
in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designatéd ‘ancd: effective as o
hedging instrument, If which event the timing of the recogrition In proBf or joas
depends on the pature of the hedge relationship..

ATl deftvativis re carried a5 assets if the fab value i5 positive, atherwise dérlvatives
are carried as fabiitles.

Darivatives embedded in non-derivative. host contracts are treated as separete
derivatives when they meet the definition ¢f a darivative, their rgks and
characteristics are ot closely reiated to those of the hast coritracts. snd the contracts
are not rezsarad at fair velue through profit or joss,

Provislons, Contingent Llabilities and 'cﬁnﬂaﬁhnt-m--
Provisicns are recognized whar-the Group has. 2 present obligation, either legal or
songtructive, as a result of a-past evenk, it is probable that the Group wilt be reguired

to sattle thz obligation,. and & rehiable epstimate car be made of the amouvnt of the
obligatin.

The amount recognized it the best estimate of the consideration reéquired to settle the
present obligation at the gnd of each reporting perod, taking into account the risks
ang uncertainties surrcunding the ofdigation. When a provision |s measured using the
cash fows estimated to settle the present ch!:gation, ts carrylng amount is the
prasent valge of those cash fows,

When some or aH of the economic benefiis required to settle A provision are expected
to be recovered from o third parcty, the recsivable js pecognized 3= an 2eset If &/t is
virtually certaln that reimbursement witl be recetved and the ameunt of the recehable
can b= measured reliably.

Provisions dré revicwed at the end of aach mpﬂrﬂng period and adjustei:l to rﬂﬂm;f the
currenf best estimate,

If it is niv longet probebie that a transfer of economic benefits will’ be required to. !‘rﬂtﬂﬂ
the obilgation, the provision shotld be reversed., ,

Present obligstions arising under onerous cottracts are redtynized and measiired as
provigicns. An onetous cantiac |5 considered te axist when the Group has & contredt

pnder which the unavaidable costs of meeting the obligationg under ihe coniract
excend the sconomic benefits saperied to be recaived from the coniract,




Share-based Payments

Equu:'_.r -settied share-based payments o employses ani pthers providing simifar
services are measnrad af the fair value of the equity instrements at {he grant date,

The fsir value determined at the grant data of the equity:settied share -baged
navmmts o employees is recognized as expense o @ stralght-ing basis over the
vesting period, based ofi the Group's -estimate of equity mstruments thet wiil
eventually ‘vest, with a cormespainding incrsase in equity, At end of ssch reportifig
pericd, the Group revises jts pstimate of the number of eduity instruments. sxpaited te
vest. The impact of the rivision of the origival estinmates, If any, is recognized in prafit
or loss such that the comulstive expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adiustmernt 1o the equity-settied empioyés benefils reserve.
Fquity-settied sharé-fased payment transactioiis with othar parties are measured- at
the fair vatue of the goods or services repelved, except when the fair vahie canrot be
estimiated reliably, In which cage thiy dre yrieasured at the fair value of the equity
mstruments granted, measurad at the date the enﬂt? abiains the goods or the
coufterparty rénders the service.

For cash- settlad s!’aare-%aseﬂ :aaz.rmerits # “Bbl-ﬂf'ﬁ" Is remgnized for the goods or
services acquited, measired fnitially &t the fair value of the labifity, At tha and of sach-
reportig pedod untl £ liability |s setthed, and at the dats of settiernent, the fai
valua of tha lability it re-measured, with.any changes in falr wvails yecognized in prafit -
or loss for the yvear,

Employee Benikits.
‘Thia Group has both definad Beneft snd defined contebution blatis,

Defined contribution pfan

A defined conttibution plan iz a pust-emp!wnwnt: benefit plan under wlﬁd: L) enﬂ'a_r
pays fixed contributions Into a separste entity and will have rio fegal or mnstructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for eontributions bo defined contritietion
pension plans are recogrized as an employee benefit expepse in profit of loss i the
pericds durlng which services are rendered by empioyees. Prepald contributions dre
recognized s asset to the extent that a cash refund ofF & reduction I future peyments
i¢ avallable. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due fo be settled far
more: than twelve {12) months after the end of the réporting perod 1 which the
employees rander the service are discointed fo thelr prasant valus,

Ciefined benefft pfgh

Met fetlienment benefits asset, as presented i the consolidated staterments of THancal
position, is the aggregate of the prasent value of the deflnad benefit obligaticn at the
erd of the reporting pericd reduced by the falr value of plan asséts, adiusted foi the
effect of imiting a net defined benefft axset to the asset calling. The asset ceiting s
the presant value of any etonomic beneflts avallakle in the farm of refunds from the
pian oF redudtions in fiture contrbutions to the plan,

Tha cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is detsrmined using the
projected unit credlt rhethod.

Remeasuremerds, comprising of actuarfal gains and losses, the effect of the ‘asset
celfing, exciuding amounts ingiuded in net interest on the defined benefit Babiiity and
the return on plan assets, eara recognized immediafely in the consolidated balance
sheat with a correspending debit or cred? to eguity thréugh OCE in the period i which
they ofcur. Remaasursments are not réclassified to profit or tess in subsequent

periods.
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Sarvice costs whith intlude current service costy, past sérvice ooste and paths or
losses on non-foutine settléménts are recognized a5 expense In profit or joss,
Fast service costs are recognized wharn plan amerdment or curtaiment. otcuis.
Thase amaunts are tatculated peslodicaly by Independent gualified actuarias,

Net interest i calcilated by applying the single effective discount rate based oh
different termi-dependent zero-coupan rate bends to-the net defined benefit Babiflty ar
asset. Net interest: on the het deflried baneﬁt Hablity or asset iz remgnize-d as expents
or tficorne in profit of loss.

‘ECLI% ahd HE5T% defined benefit pem".mn pians are gtwermeﬁ bjl" Repufitie ﬁct (HAY
No. 7641, which redquires a minimum benefit equivalent to one=half months-salary for
every year of service; with six months or micre of service considered % DRE.-YRar,
The tevel of henefits provided depends on the membei's iem;th af serdlce prid salary at
refirement age.

Flan asgets are assets that are held in tryst and geuerned by the Board of Trustees,
which copdiets of an equal number oF employsr and smployes sepresantatives.
The Board of Trustees is respansible for The administration of the pian asnats erid for
the definition of the imvestment strategy. The Tair value of pian. assats is based an
market price irformatien. When no merket price | availlable, the fair value of plan
assels is estimated by disciuritlng expercted future cash flows using 2 discount. rate
that reflacts both the risk ssecciated with the plan assets and the matuily or expected
dispossl dete of those assets (or, if they Have no maturity, the expected pardd yatil
the gattfement of the relatéd obilgations). I the fair value of the plan sssets Is highar
than the present vatue of the defined benefit ubifgation; the measurement of the
resylting defined benafit asset is limited to the presest valde of tconomic bafefits
avaliabte It the formy of refunds from the plan or reductions in fotuse: centributiong te
the plar; :

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or &i of the ewpeﬂdl'l:ure mquired ta yettle
a defined Benefit obligetion it recognized ag n separate asset ot falr vaiue when and
only when reimbursement s virtually certain.

The net retirement benefit asset recognized in Ha consolidated statemejrits of _fi'rsant!a!
positien represents the actoal defict ot surphis In the Group’s defined benefit plans.
Any SUrplus resultng from this calcufation s limited by the present value of any
ecohomit benefits available in the formh of rﬂfunds fﬁaﬁ'i the plans or re.ctur:tkmﬁ i
future contributions to the plans. _ _

Ternination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in em:hange for the termination
of 3n employee’s employment as a result of elther @n entity's deciston be tarminate an
empioyee’s amployment befire the aormal rétirerment date or gan employess déclzion
to accept an offier of bedefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

& tishility and experse for & terminstion benefit is racognized at the aarlier of whar
the entity can no fonger withdraw the offer of those besefits and wheh the dntity
recognizes the related rastructuring costs: Initial recognition and subseguent changes
te fermination benefits are measured in accordange with the nature of the employee
benefit, as sither post-smployment benefits, short-term employss bensfits, or oitar
Iprg-term emiployee benefits,

Employee entittermeénts to annual feave are recognized as & iabitlty when they are
accroed to the employees, The undiscounted fiabllity for isave expected to be seftled
wholly bafors. twelve menths after the end of the annual repofting petied is recognized
for services rendered try employess up to the end of the reporting peiiod,
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fevenue Recognition

The Group generates its sales from selfing cement and other cementitious products
ziich 38 dry-mix and agyregates, which are recotinized when thi: prismised goods are
delivered to the customers. _ . :

The ‘Group has official written agreemients with tustorriers documeiited in sugjfy
agreements and approved purchase orders. The supply agreements contain eath
party's respective ohiigations,

The Group has only one distinet performance obligation and that Is to deliver the
promised gogds, _

The transaction price of the sale of guods varies Trom ench. sales order. The Group
oifers veriable consideration In form of rebates for setett custirfisns oo the sale of
rement and aggregates. The rebates 5 be given o Cusfomers were already
determined at the begihning of the year and recorded at the end of #ach menth,
Revenus is measured based on the tonsidetstion specified in 2 sales order with a.
custoimer and excludes amounts colected on behaif of third parbies,

The Group recagnizes revenye when it transfers. coptiel of the product o & customer
sither by defivery or by pick-up depending o the termis of the shipment.

Itirest

Interest income from 2 Bnancial asset iz recognized when it is probable that the
aconomic benefits will fiow to the Group and the @mocuri of Incoiie ca2n be miasnired
refiably, Interest income ls acirued on 3 Bime proportion bbsis, by refercnee to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 1s the rate
that axactly’ dlscounts estimated future cash receipte through the expectad life of the
financlal agset to that asset’s net carmying amount. :

En. . ! i i

Dividend Income from investments i§ fecognized when the ghéreholders” rights to
receive payment have been established, brovided that it 15 probabla that the ecotiotic
beriefits wiil flow to the Group ard the smount of Incorme can be measuréd refiably.

Rental inghtne -
Revenue recogrittion for réntal Income is disciosed in tive Grolp policy for leases,

Q‘ !I u .

Other Incoime Is incomeé generated oiiside the narhal course of business and s
recoghized when It is probable that the econemic benefits will flow to the Group and it
can ke measured raliably,

Expense Recognition _ .
Expenses are recagnized in profit or loss when a decrease In future econsimic beivefits
relatéd to a decrease frnoan assel or an Incresse in 2 liability has arisen that can be
teasused relisbiy. Expenses are recognized in profit pr loss on the basis of {4} &
direct assocation between Hie costs incurred and the saming of spedfic ltems of
tncome; {ii} systematic and rationat ailacatinn procedures when econgmic berefits arg
axpected to arise over several accounting perlods and the etseciation vith income can
anly be broadly or indirectly determined, or; (i) immsdiately when an expenditure
praduces no Future econowic benefits or when, and to the ewtent that, fulure
economic benafits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the stat=rments
of Anancial position as an asset.

Expenses In the statements of comprehernisive income are presented using the fmction
of expense method. Costs of goods sold are expenses incurred that dre associated
vith the goods soid and includes direct materials, direct lahor and factufy overhesd.
Operating expenses are costs afributable to adminlstrative, marketing, sefing snd
othar business activitles of the Groop. . _




Vale Added Tax (VAT)

Flwenues, expen=es angd assefs are r&mgnizem fiet of the ammnt of VAT,
except when VAT Incufred on a purchase of assels or services fs tot recoverable fom the
toxation authurity, in whidh case VAT s retoghized a5 part of the-cost of Scnsiisition of the
asget or as part of the expense item, 28 applicable.

The Ret Bmount of VAT recoverabie from, or payable to, the taxation aummry i irmtuﬂed
28 part of "Clher curpend asgebs” or "Trada an Gther pqyabiﬁ" in the coinsolidated. balance.
shent,

Leases . .

The determination of wihether an amanigement is, or contsing, & igase 15 based on the
sibstance of the arangement at the 1mpti:m date The arrangement is, or containg, a -
lease i fuffiiment of the amangement I5 depengent on the use of a spegfic asset
{or assets) or the arrangement fonveys a fght 1o use the asset {or esseis), even if that
ayset is (or assets are) not explicitly specified i an arfangarmernt.

Grii 858 fessee

A lease is dassified gt thé inception date as a finance loase o an operating tease.
4 lease that trarisfers subStantially ail ths risks and iewards Incidentai ta awnership to the
Groupis dassified as & firahce leasa.

Finance leases sre. capltalized 8t the tomimiencemernt af the Iem at thae inception date Faiy.
value of the leased property or, if lowar, ot the pressnt value of the miilmum lease
payments, Lease payrerts are apportioned between finance charges anid reduction of the
lease Hability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remalning balance of the:
lizbility. Finantce charges. sre recognizes i finance costs. iy the. consofidater statsment of
mmprehensive income.

£ Tessed asset is depreciated over the useRil life of the asset. Howeuer, if there & no
regschable cectainty that the Group wil! ohiaifi swoership By the erd of the ledge berm,
the assel is depredsted over the shorter of the estimeted usefu llﬁe B £ m&t &nd the
lepgze term.

An operating lease s & lBase other than a e i_ease'. Operating lease paymﬂ aAre.
recpgnized as en opereling expense In the consolidated staternent of comprehansive
lncome on a straight-Ene basls over the legdse termh, _

Retated Party Transactions
A related party transaction s & tranisfer of resturces, services aruhhgaﬂars between the
Parent Company and a related party, regsrdiess of whether a price i5 charged,

Pariies are cofsidered refated if one party has confrol, joint controd, of signtficast influence.
over the other party in making financial and operating dedisions. An entity that hes a -
post-employment beneft plan for the employess ahd key management personnel of the.
Group sre also considersd to be refated parties.
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Functional Currency and Eorﬁign Carrency Transkation

Thue mnsalidated fimandial statements aré presested in Peso, which is aéﬁm the ﬁ.inr:ﬁml
cirrency of the Parert Company, The functonal comency of the Pareit Comperiy's
subsidiaries is olss fhe Pase. The Pesh iy the cumenty of the primary ecanon
enviranment in which the Parent Cotpary and ity subsidiaries operate. This # dfse the
ourency that rairly influsnces the mevenus from and cost of rendaring progucts and-
sarvices, Each ently in the Gmup determines s own fubtions! clirméncy and ftems

‘inciaded In the finandial statemants of wach putity - ang measured using that finchional

CUFPENCY.

Transsctions i foreign currericies. ars initfally recorded. in the furictioasl currency rate
prevating at the daie of the transaction. Monetary Hsaets and liabiiifies denaminated in

foreign currenchss are retransiated at the funodanal currenty dosting rate of &xchange

prevailing at the énd of the feporting periug. Al différences Sre tecignized in the
eonsglidated statement of Income exoapt for forelgh Bxchange differences that quality =5
capttalizable borrowing costs for quafifying assets. Nemmonetary fems that are mgasired
in terme of historical cost in a forelgn cyrrency are transiated using the exchange rate as
ot e date of the Initial transacticn.

Taxagion

Incium'e Tax expence réfiecents tﬁE s of thi diirrent tax and deferrad tay expensa,
Cuzrent tax

The turrent tax expense i5 based on taxable prafit for {fe year. Taxable profit differs

fromh met profit as reported in the statements of domprefiensive income bicause it

axcludes ftems of inCoME or &Xpense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it furthier exclsdas items that ape never texshie or deductible, The Grogp's. susrent
expense s calcufated Using 20% regular Corposate Indome bax tm:n} rabe o8
minirmum corporake income tax rate, whickever fs higher,

Defarred tax Is recognired on temporary diffresices between the carrying amoints of
zssetz and [abilities in the consolideted financlal statefnents &nd the corresponding

tax bases usad it the coamputstion of taxable profit. Deferred tau figbilities are
generalty recognizid for all taxable termporary differences. .

Defarrad tax assets are generally recdgnizied for all dedictibie tiampc:it"ar'_ir diﬁ&mnm
to the extent that it is probable that taxabis profits wilf be availabie agaivist which
those deductible temporary differences ¢an be utilized. Such deferred tax assets ard
Habllities ate not racognized i the temporary dfference arlses frorh the infis]
recognition {other than in 8 business combination) of sssets and liahilites in a-
transaction that affects nelther the taxable priofit nor the sooounting profit. In additlon,
daferred tax liabilities are not recognized i the temparary difference arises fron the
tnitial rechgnition of gocdwiil.

Deferrag tax liabilties are recognized for Faxable temporary differences mauate-d
with Invagtraehts in subsidiaries and associstes, and interests In jolnt venbsres,
axrcapt where the Groug is able to cortral the rewersai of the temporesy diffarsnoe ard
it & probable that the temporaty difference will not reverss i the fornseesbis fUbare,
Deferred tax assets arsing from deductible temperaty differences assockted with sich
invastments and interests arg ondy recogrized to the axient that ft is probabde that
there il be sufficient taxabia profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary difierances snd they are expected to reverse & the foreseeable future.

The carryirig amount of deferred tax assets 35 reviewed at the end of each repering
parivd and reduced to the extent that it is so longer probable that sufficient taxabie
profits will be availabie to allow zif or part of thie asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax llabilltios and assets are maastiied at the tax rates that sre expetied to
apply in the period in which the flability Is sattied or the asset reslized, based on tax
rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enactes by the end of

the reporting period.
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The measurement of deferred tax Habifities and adasts reflects the tex consequendes
that wauld follow from the mantier In which the Group expetts, 3t the end of the
Teporting perod, to recover or setile the cartying amount of its asseis angd lisbilities.

Cuprent: and deferréd bax dre recognizad & oroflt or hass, sxcent when they reiste bn
items that are recogrized in othar comprehensive incoene or dirsctly I equlty,
in which ¢ase, the current and deferred tay art alse recognized . in sther
comprehensive incaing of directly in equity respectively, Whers corrent tax or defeired
fax arises from the indtial accounting for 2 businéss combination, the fax effect i
includad in the accaunting for e business combination,

Edirtiings per Share o

The Group comiputes Its basié earnfngs per share by dividing proft or toas for the year
atiributeble th widinary sguity holders of the Group by tHhe weighted average numbey
of prdtnary shares cutstanding during the peridd.

For the purpose of caltufating diuted edrnings per share, profit or ioss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity halders of the Group and the weighited averagé number
of shates outstanding are a&justed T the effscts of all diiutive polentiat nrdinaw
ghites,

Events after the Reporting Period

The Groip identifies svents after the end of esch reporting perad as those events,
both: favorable and brifavarable, that vecur between the amd of the reporting period
“#@nd the dateé when the conisolidated fibancial staberments are. 2dthorizes for issie.
The consolidated finsncial statements of e Group are sdjusted to reflect thase events.
that provide svidence of conditions that existed at the eid of the repunlng petid..
Non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting peﬁud am disclosad in the nigtss fo
the ronsoiidatesd financiat statsmeants when materiuf )

Segment Reporting _

An eperating searent Is a componant of the Gigup that engages in business artivithes

fram which & may earn revenoes and iour expenses, Inchiding revenues anit-
expenses that relate o fransactions with any pf the GroupT other components,

All operating segments” operating results are reviewed regulsily by the Group’s Chigf?
fFinancial Officer 16 make decisions about resources o be alfocated 15 the segmaent and

assess its performance, and for which discrete financiel information Is available,

The Graiip reports separately, information about an uperating aegmnf that meets amr
of the following quantifative threshohds:

» the absolute amoeunt of its reported profit or ii:-ss is 1% or more of the greater,
in absolute amount, of the combined reported profit of ail operating segmefits that
dig not report 2 léss and the comblnad reportad Ins&: af all uperatlng segments thatr
reported | togs; arid

v 15 assets are 10% o more of the tombined assets of all operating segrments,

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thréshaids may Hie -
consitered reportable, and seperately disciosed, ¥ Management beflewes that
informatian about the segment would be usefil to users of the censalidated finatical
statemants.

For Management. purposes, the Group is currentiy ofganned into two business
seqmeants: dinkgr and cement ssamient apd other aterlals and constrochion
segments. These divisions are the basis of which the Gmup repm‘ts B primary
segment information.

Financlal infarmation oh segmient reporting is pmsentad ift Nntie 7.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JURGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of consofidated fAnancial statements in conformity with PFRS. requires
managerngnt to make judgments and estimates that affect the reportad amourits of
revenues, expanses, gssers and liabilities and discltisure of contingent Sabilities a¢ the
reporting date. The uncertainties inherent in these judgmients and astimates coubd
result n Gutcomies that could require a material adiustinent to the Garryfhg srmoiing of
the assets or lisbilities dffected in the future years.

Judgments”

In thé process of applyifig the Group's accounting policies, managsment has miade the
foliuwing significant Judgmants, apart from those involving stimations, which -have.
tha- most significant &ffect on the smounis remgnizeﬂ in the corsolidated Snancial
statements:

Determination of controf. The Parent Cuompany determings coritiol wher it s
axposed,nr has rights, tévanable returns from ks invelvement with sn entity sd hay
the abdiity to affect those réturns through its power gver the entity. The Farent
Company controls: 2m antity if and oply if the Barsnt Cﬂrrmanv has 2 ufthe foliowing:

a. Powerover the entity; _
o, Expasure, or rights, to variable returns fmm 1ts Trnddlvernant WIth ﬂm entity; and,

¢. The amﬁty to usze ks power over the entity to affect :he Amaunt of the Parent
Company's retums, -

The Pargnt Company reguiary resssesses whathss it controis an Invastee if facts and
croumsiances indicate that theré sre chianges to 0he.0F more of the three slements of
coptrol listed above. The Parent Compary determined that it exercises contral on all
of its subsidiaries as it has afl the alemednts of condrol listed above.

Deterhiration of significant influence. _

The Matiagement of the Parent Company sxerdses its judgment in dei:ermfning
whether the Parent Company has significant infibence over another antity by
evaluating the substance of relationship that indicates the significant influence over g -

assodates, The recégnition and measurement of the [nvestment over these entifies
wilf depand on the result of the judgment made.

As disclosed In Note 12, Holcim Minicg anid Develnpment Enrpnra{iuﬂ {(HMDT) -i$.an
gesaciate of the Parent Curnpany The Farent Compaity has 40% ownership fitberest in
HMDC giving the Parent Contpany & signfficant influenice over HMDC by virtle of its
contractual right fo appoint two out of elght direckors fo the bmrd of direciors of that
Cornpany. )

Lesum commitrnents - Group as lessee.

The Group has various lease agreements a5 o lasses. The Group hzs dotermined,
based or evalustion of the terms and conditfort of the lease egresments, that the
significant risks and revards of owriership of the leased properties were retained by
the lessor (e.q., no transfer of ownership at the end of the leas# term, lease tarm s
not for the majority of the ecoromic life of the =sset and the amaunt of the present
value of the minjmum lease payments ks not substantially the same as e falr value of
the leased asset). Actondingly, the Groop accounts. these leaces as nperatlng laasas;
a5 disclosed in Note 32.

Arratermeriis containing a lease

The Group has varous supply agreermants whers i purchases raw and othier materials.
The Group has determinad that these supply agreements do not cortain a tepse as the
selter 15 not required bo sell aff of its output to the Group and the ﬂwangement does
niat convey the right to use the 2sset, as disclozed in Nofe 32.




Datermining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations

In making their judgement, the Management considered the detaited criteria for the.
recogrition of revenue set out in PERS 15 and; In. particular, whether the Group .7}
transferred controf of the goods to the customgt. _
dusiness mhodel assessment . _ _
Classification dind measirenient of financid) assets s depénds on the seuite of the SEP1
and the buginess model test, The: iGroup getsrmines the businesy mede! at & level that
reftects how groups of Bnancial assets are managed tpgethar to Schisve 2 partlcular
biiglness obfective. This assessment Includes judgemtént reffacting &l relevant.
evidénce Incudlng how the petformance of the sssets is evalusted and their
parforance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and hew
these are managed and how the managers of the assety are compensated.
Monltaring ls part. of the Groyp's continuous asseEsment Uf whethey the Rusiness
model for which the. remaining ‘Anancial assets are held cohtpues to be appropriate
and if it is not appropriate whether there has meer & chiange in bisiness model and so
4 prospective change to the dassification of those assets.

Sigrificant fncrezse of credit risk _

. BC1. are measured as ar alipwarice oquad to 12-month £CL for stage & assels,
or \ifstimé ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3 assety. An asset rmoves o stoge. 2 when.
fts credit visk has increased Signihcantly sitce inltisl recoghitton, PFRS 9 dhes fiot

define what constitutes a significant Increass in credit risk, In.ssessing whether the
credit sisk of an assef has significankly incressed, the Group takes lito aceount
gualivative -ahd giantitative raasonable snd supportable forward ipokdng inforrriatien.

Functiprat Gurrerncy

Based bn the seonemic substance of the whdeflying ciraumstances relevant to the
Group, the functional currency of thie Group has determined to be the Philippine Pesy:
The Philippine Peso is the currency of the primary econohic evironmeant. tn which the
Group operates, It is the currency that msinky Infiueices the Graup In determiniing the
rosts and selfling price of its inyentariés, -

ﬁnﬁmatu

‘The key estimates coacerning the future =nd ather kéy sourcss of estimation
uncertainty as at balance shest date that have the rmost significant risk st cawsing 8
material adjustment to tha carrying amounts of aeérs ang Habilities within the next
reporting period are 8¢ follows: : : _

Usefulf lhves of property, plant and equipment. o _ .
The usefut lives of property, plant and equiprrient are estimated based on thiz peztind
gver which the property, plant and pyuipment are expected to bie gvailable for use antd
on the collective assessment pf industry practice, Internal technical evatiaticn  and
experience with similar assets, The estimated usefin Iivies of property, plant and
equipment sre reviewed at eath financist year-end, and updated if expectations differ
matgrially from previous astimates dize to physicat wear and tear; technical or
commercial obaplascence and tegal or gther limits &n the use of the property, plant
and enuipment. However, it s possible that Future results of speraticns opuid be
materially affected by changes in the setimates braught about by thanges in factors
mantioned shove, The amounts and timing of recording of depreciativn expshge for
shy period would be affected by changes in these factors and <itcumstances.
“here ware ho changes in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and eplipthent
w2013 and 2017, :

The Group recegnized depireciation expense refated to property, plant and equipment
amounting to P1.2 billkn and F1.4 bilien In 4018 ang 2017, respectivaly, a5 discioed
in Notes 13 and 26. The carrying value of depreciabie. projperty, plant and enulpHTery
amounted to PIB.6 biflion gnd P17.6 billion &5 at December 31, 2018 and 2017,

respectively, as disciosed in Note 13,




Impairmeant of noh-financial assets.

PFRS requires thal an fmipalrinent review be pecformed when cértain impairment
ndicators are present. T any such idicators extst, the Griup estimates e
recoverable amount of the relevant assat. _ -
Détermining thé recoverable amcunt of property;. plant and equipment, Investingnts in
assotiates, intangible assets and other nonfinanclal assets feguires the determination
of future cach Aows expected to be generated froin. the continiied use and uitimate
dispusal of such assets. Future events ‘could cause. management to conclude that
assets sesodiated with an acguired business are impateed,

Any Pésulting Tmpairhent ioss could have & mabénal. adverse fmipact on the Group’s
financial position and finadcial performance. The preparatioe of estimated fiture cash
flows involves significant estimations and assiimptions. Whils e Group believes thit
Is assumiptions are approprigke and reasonable, significant chiatges in the Group's
assumptions may miateriafly atfect the assessment of redoverable valuas snd may lead
t6 future additions} isnpafrment charges uhder PRRS.

The carrping values of investments In essotistes, proparty, plant and equipment;
and intangitle assets are disciosed in Notes 12, 13 and 14, Féspactively.

Impairment of gootwilf.

The Group performs impairment testing of its goodwiil en at annugl basis or more
frequently if events ar changes in circumstances dicate that the tarrying value mey
ba impaired. This réquires sn estimation of the value )7 use bf the cssh-generating
unit ts which the gogdwil s sllocatad, Value-n-use iz estimated by ‘making &
estitiate of the expected future ¢ash flows from the cash-genérating unif snd 10 apply
a sultabte discount rate in order to caloutate the prasent velue of those cash flows.
The recoverable amount of the goodwill fas been determined based bn a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based qn the three-yedr finandal plan aporoved
by the senicr management, The Group hes detérmined that the goodwdl js not
mpaied. The carmying amount of goodwill amwounited to P26 billion as At
December 31, 2018 and 2017, as disclosed in Nete 14, :

Estimating loss aliowsnica for expected credit igsses.

The Group measures eipacted credit losses of a financlal instrument in 2 way that
refiscts an unblased and probabifity-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating
a range of possible cutcomes, the time value of money and information abaut past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future econordc condibbne. When
messuring ECL, the Group uses rsasonable and supportable forwand-leoking
snformation, which is based on pssumptions for the future movement of diffetent
econcemic drivers and how these drivers will affiact éach other.

1 adtlifton to specific affowance sgeinst individually sknificant leans and recéivables,
the Group #lsa makes a Tollective impalrment afiowance against espusures which,
althougti not specifically Identified as requiring 2 spedfic aliownnce, have a greater
risk of default than whan eriginally grantad. This level of aliowance fs based on the:
gtatus of the accounts recelvable, past coltettion éxperience and other factors that
may affect collectability.

The allavianee for doubtful accounts dmourited te F232.5 villisn and F223.3 mifion as’
at Decernber 31, 2018 ahd 2017, respectively. Trade ahd other receivables, net of
allowence for doubtful acoounts, smounted to P40 bilon and P34 billlon &5 &t
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as disglosed In Note §,
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Ratirement benefit ¢osts,

The costs of defined benefit pension plan a5 weli as the présent walué of the peneion

abiifation are determined using actiarial valuitions. The artuarisl valustion involves
Iiaking varlous assumptions. These intlude the derarmination of the disturt rates,
fungre Salary Increases, mortality rates and fulure pension increases. Dug to the
compiexity of the valuation, the. underlying assumptions and its iong-term natirs,
defined henefit obligations are highly sensitive te changes in theze assumpptions. -
All sssurptions are. reviewed at each reporting date, Ferther details about the
assuimiptions used are provided jn Note 31, '

In determining the appropriate discount rate, fmanagemént considars. the intarsst rates
of government bonds. that are deneminated in the durrency in which the benefits whil
be pald, with extrapolated matutities corfresponding to the expected duration of the
defined benelit obligation, The mortality rats 3s based on publicly avellable rotiality
tables for the spacific country and. is modified acoordingly with estimates of miortality
irnpreverments. Fubure Ealafy intreases are based at-historical actual salary increases
of the Group. :

Totgl retiantent behefit asset amolrked to P25 Billon for Dacember 31, 2018 and
refirement henefit fabiity amountsd to PB452 millioh for December 31, 2017,
as discipsed in Note 31, :

Deferrad bax assets,

Tha Group reviews the cerrying ameunts of deferred Income-fax: assels at the &nd of

each reporting petiod and rediices these to tha-xtent that it 1 o fonger probable that
sufficient futire taxable incams wifl be aviiable to allow alf or pary of tha defeived -
incofe tax. assets to be tilized.. The Group's assesimignt off the recsfinitien of -
defarred income tax assets on deductibie temporary differerces Is based on the lavel
and tieing of forecasted tawabie invome of the subsequent reporting petiods,
This forecast is based on the past results and future expectations of revenues and
expenses as well 3s future tax planhing strategies. However, there Is no mEsurance
that the Group will generate sufficlent Ashure taxable income to allow all ur part of
deferred Income tax assets to be uilized. Management also reviews the level of
projected gross margin for the ase 6f Optlonsl Standard Deduction (05D} and -
sssesses the future tax consequerces for the recognition of defared incoma tax assets
and deferred incomé tax liabiltles. Based on the Groups projected margin,
management expects to usa the itemized deduction method For tha Parent Company
and mast of the subsidiaries, HPMC and Mabinl expect to Use the OSO for the next
three years and Bulkcem 2nd BPBSCE for the next four years. '

Total deferred tax assets recognized In the Group's consclidated finanrlal position
amounted to nll and P F455.2 milior as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, recpectivety.
The amaounts of temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credies
and unused tax losses, for which no deferred incime tax assets oz &t
Gecember 51, 2018 and 2017 ara disclosed tn Rote 30, .

et realfratle vetie of inventories. _ _ _

The Group writes dowr the cost of inventories whenever the net reafizable valig of
imvertaries becomies lower than cost due Lo damage, physleal deteroraticn,
otsolescance, change in price levels or other cauzes The lawer of cost el net
reatizabie velue of inventories Is reviewed on 3 perodie basis. Inventory iems
ifentified to he obsolete and uhusable acve writtsn-off and charged as expense in the
consolidated statement of income. The allowance for inventory. dbsolescencs
smounted to P219.2 milion and P201.7 milion 85 at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. The zarylng values of inventodes amounted o P51 billien and
P3._E Bilon as at December 31, 2018 snd 2017, respectively, as disclosed it Note 10,
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Provisions for ciaims, Wgations and assessmiants.

The Group & fufrently invphvad in varleds legal procesdings and tak assessments,
Management's estiinate of the probable costs for the resciution of these clalms. has
been developed based Opon -an anatysls of potential resuits. The Group. tuireniy
beliéves that these progeedings wHl not have d materal adverge effect on the
consolidated financlal staternents. It s possiblé however, that. fitiure Anancial
performance could be matertally affected by changes in the estimates’ or effecthréness
aof the strategles relating to these proceedings and assessments.

anertus contrack.

The Groug reviews contracts in whigh the Unfavorable costs of ivesting the cbllgations
under the centratt exceed the economic henefity. expecied to be recetved from: Ik
Thase unfavorsbls coste are recognized &% provisions and discountsd using the
apphcable welghited average cost of capital (WACE), As et December 31, 2018 and
2017, the Group's provision: amounted to P32 miilion amd PE1.3F million,
respactively, as disclosed in Nota 20.

SEGMENT REPCRTING

Oparating segmients are companents of the Group that engage In business activitias
from which they may earn revenues and fntur gxpenses (including raventes and
mxpensss retating to transactions with other componenis of Ehe Group) which
nperating resiits are regulay reviewed by the chief operating decision. maker tr make
deciglofis abibut how resources are to be affocsfed to eavh of the seqrmients end i
assess thisr performances, and for which discrete friamcial irfarmation is: avslishie,
Management teassesses o an annual besis whether therd have been any change in
the operating segments or In the reportable. operating segments in accordance -with
RFERS 8, Dperating Segiments,

For management purposes, the Group is organized ints actiities bueed- on their

products and has two segrients, as follows: _ _ _ . _

& Clinker and Cesient segment, which manifactires and séils clinker and cement for
both domestic and export customers; and _ :

= DOther Construction Materals and services segment, which intludes operations
from the HMX business, Relps-U-Build-Better {HUBB), Specialty Products and
Aggregates Trading, . o

Manzgerment monitors the dperating results of its business segments for the: pisrpose
of making decislons about résowrce allocation amd  performance asseEssieht.
Segmert performance 5 based on operating EBITDA and Is measured conslstently
. with cansolidated net income i the consolidated statement of profit or loss snd other
comprehensive lcome.  However, the Srgup’s finance income ang charges and
incommie tawes are managed on a group basis, and ére not aliocated to cperating
segments, Transfer prices betwesh apersting segments ang-4n an arm's length basis
slenilar $o transactiong with third parties. : -
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The Growp has deterniined the Clinker and cemet gegment Bs the only reppriablz
segment. Information on the other segmants that are nat reportable are tomhired and.
presented as "Others”. Segment revenies, EBITDA, assets, Habilties and other
inforemation for segments ag at Decembar 31, 2017 and 2018 and for eath of the iree
yéars ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are presented below:

-Adiustiants

apd Cembent  Otheye . Totel . Elaimations  Cowschidated
. Flin Thgisaids]
2610
Fawenue: . E - . . o
Eiternd cuEmmMEs PI3,222519 P 065584 FISAENLALY P = P3I%ER.11)
. Inter-segrient; . BAR1Y A58 DAB5G9 {2 609 -
. . IXATHLATZ 2 INEAG0  SwAvL ey {2a8600) ITEILIaF
Opssoting ERITDA GATEIEL  {LSME9T) AHSTEY - 4%§d4,780
Gegrent seseis 37,069,055 457,620 3454560% 9048553 196341
ggghﬁﬁtﬁbb{iltlur . -GS TR domoos 10071302 LLES1FFE ILS23050
Residts - '
D prechibion, ammtiation . ) : .
and depletion i 162,908 10,30% 117X A0 - 1,173,198
-githar disarsurag ~ . o : )
Congtrittod in-progréss £.300,51% __2A.__ 6I04NIY - - BEeASas
M7 '
drtit Tustomers PILEAS17 . PIOSHELe PRATH0FEL O OF 0 - P34, 780, FEL.
Yriter-me Tt . Fi1 828 30,466 42,008 (FarIn4y | -
- 32,397,945 BOHSNI0  F35483055 {9 742,294) MA740.761
Crperating ERITIA 7316223 (1,F6E848) P 5AN2I7E o= 5,442,325
Styrnent AESHLE 28,245 118 ass. 858 20,718,176 6HER308 3557572
Seg'rl:snt Fablitnes. 7,483,328 358,171 7,841,430 . 5381985 13,2367
Rasults -
Crepreciabion, ammtization ' _ g
_ anet daplekian 1,259,481 . 1iiga4 1,373405 - - LTI ALE
Oithet Fariomres - ' : T . e
o Consiruction in-progress 4,373,495 2a20 . daresad ... 4ITEAS
2018 ' : .
Exterriat oustormians P30,364,641  BLOFLAGE  PA0,J55.000 . P, 535506
Inker-segment PELERY . IB7F9 . DOLAR? . [SRLa6d) =
e . 30,327,355 L9o9oa5  4L477,970 (991, 467) 44,335 805
Cpeiating E6TTA 12,545,801  [L4M,036) 0,R13,885 - anBlNAeSE
Eegment maseis 26,100,036 797,108 I6,8F7,144 5,854 55 33,783, A%
s-emnt PatHbithes &, 025,027 449 136 AT I63 | L 037233 # 506 455
M -
Capreciation, amortization | ) . S ]
aned depletin 1,285,060 43,118 1,326,175 o 1,326,125
Gither fechaszns - . . . . .
Congtruction inprograss . 5353,05D Firey S4)eSE) - . - Li416.953

Inbai-segment revenuas, other than those cuiside thié Group, are eliminatad upon
consolidation and refiected in the “Adfustrnents sng efiminations” oolumn. Al cther
adjustrnents that are part of detailed recopifltations presented further below include
the foflowing: '

» Finance income and rharges, and foreign exchenge gains (losses) on financial
assets arid liabilities. are not allcested fo Individual segments a5 the urdleclying
Instruments are managed on & group basls, : )

o Deferred income taxes and certain financlal dssets and Habilities ave not alloceted
to those segmants a5 they are alsé managed on 8 group basis.
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Foliowing is the reconciliation of segment nperatmg prﬁrﬁ‘l‘ to consctidsted profif before

incatis ta
2018 2037 2018
_ {En Timsyngs) _ _

Opmrating EGITDA P4, 594,789 P5447,375  PIO®12855

Dreprediation, amaortizatinn dnd L . .
Hepletion (LA¥3,14%) (1,375,405  {L,326,175)

Irterest ahd financing charges {311,474) (7 A2} {41,754)

Inferest and other financiat _ : _

ineoms 33,128 (21,707 18,520

Others. - et 108,014 . 778,166 162,490

Profit before ingome tax P2 SS51, 258  P4¢66415  P5.526,935

nmember 31, December 31
2018 2012
] {Tr Thousznds) ]
Sagmeht assats P37,546, 88  P28,718,176
- Cagh and cash equivalents 5,309,883 1,945,757

Investragnts _ 4,249,699 4,468,357

Defarred incomie tad assets - pat | - 455,242

Consoligated assets 47,196, 241 35,567,572

segmm fiabitities 16,071,302 7,841,439

Loens payable 0,125,849 4,177,902

Trade and other payvabie 1,574,618 947,799

Thcome tax payasble 321,025 365,684

Defeirad tictine tax Habilitiss — et 530,288 - -

Consolidated ltabijities 4923080 _ 13.53% 824

Geagraphic Infarmation
. 2018 2017 2016
. {In Thovisarids}

Revenues from external customers o . S
Local '?35,5'23;113 P34,731,487  P40,301.385
Expott 8264 34,423

stlsu,na P34,740 761 PAD, 335 SOR

The Groug has no reyenue from transactions with 2 Hhﬁié axternal customer
accounting Fir 10% or more o7 the cohsoildated revenues, ﬁlt proparty, plasit snd
eqiipment of the Sroup are lodated In the PhRilippines,




CASH ANE: CASH EQUIVALENTS

207

2038
{In Thousands}
Cash pn hard and i bartks 1,716,133 P1,080,497
Short-term deposits . o 3,683,730 865,300
. pE,N%9.853  P1O45797

Cash: ln hasnks-earn interest: at prevailing bank deposit tates. Short-term depostts are
madé for varying periods of up to thrée Mofiths depending on the cash requitemeants:
of the Graup, and ¢arn intersst ranging from 0.34% §o 2. 0% short-term deposit rates.

ntetest inéome earned from ¢ash i banks and shori-term deposifs amounted to
P14.6; P21.4 mitlion and P18.3 miflion in 2018, 2017 aénd 2016 respactively.

TRADE AND OTHENR REGEIVABLES - net

Nute 7018 2017
(ke Thowsands}

Trage L o
Deaiers P iF7F5Z P 371873
Ritailers 07,155 454,672
Altermative fuet and r;w materiaks _

{AFER}ready mix (AMX) others 501,954 504,560
[rue from related parties Fa-! 1,754,254 LZZE 316
Others _404.908 - A06,735

4,237,969 9,662,313

Less; Alowance for doubtfid sctotints - 232,524 233,264

P4.G05, 445 Fg_ﬂﬂ,ﬂﬂ

Trade receivables are rioh-interest bearing and generally have credit terms of 30.¥0 B0
days. Due from related partles and other recedvabies ars mllectihl-e within thi next
financlal year.

Other receivables consist mainly of cotectibles From VBTOUS parﬁes for trarsactiuns
othir thiin sale of goods, and accrugd intdrest.

Moveraents in the alipwance far doubtid accﬁunts whlr.:h pertain to trar.ia any other
recalvables are as follows:

AFRIRHX}

Mote  Dealers Fetsilere: Institionsl  Qthers Ehhers o
{In Thiyzgands)
2018 s . s e L
Beginning of year _ FEL,SER PR GES | P 7aBE  SL.969 PRLAT4 PIRE 164
ProviEoris {reversale} 24 (xo,%500) o748 (2.384)  mead 5a%r Be0
End Gf year 21,339 SEAGY . 488k 138 RGH 2001 IITEI4
Indbridusly inpatred 21,739 CE s - *= B . - vt S
Crbecthvely (mpatred L1358} x4y . fIOE) 3557 = 33,259
2087 . . '
Bagirving of yasr ] PIE L0 Pos 530 F11. 860 P ALYTR EG24 PROSEAS
Provisians [reiereats) s 24575 - {36704} S FH 33950 - 1578
_End of yeer 51,659 Zrpes . W268 132083 AGWM | 323264
Lructiwidum by ScHipiied 49,535 a8 387 - LBk UL, IS8 3524 173 548
_Cofetively mpatred 1,724 2S5 A . - #1211 49,716,
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10.

il.

In dekermining the recoverability of trade recelvebles, the Group considers any thangs
it the credit quatity of the trade recelviable from the date rsdit weas Inttiaty granted
up to the end of the reporting period. The concentration of cradit Hsk is Imited due to
the custarmer base being large and unrefated. Accordingly, the BOD believes that there
is no further affowange for doubtful accounts requirsd in exicass of those that were .
already providad. Aging .Gf past due actounts but not impaired and credit cuality of
trade and other recelvable are disclosed In Note 18, .

in 2018 and 2017, recéivablas amounting to nfl and P39 millicn, respectively, et of
related rebates amounfing to nil and P49.0 mitilon, respectively, weee written off 25
disciosed in 24.

TNVENTORIES - nat -

2018 2017

{In Thousands}
AL cost: L
Finishisd gobds ¥ #1e.403 P 921,148
Goods In process $,717,958 450,339
Raw miaterials - 256,895 376589
Fiwel 1ITEA98 984,519
Spare: parts and sthers o . _ 1,278,603 1,057,034
5,345,502 4,000,504
Lews: Aflowance for inveéntory obsglescence 219,49 L A L
P27, [ 702

Total inventorlés charged to cost of sales amounted o $19.9 biflion P83 bithon angd
F18.5 nilion biller in 2018, 2017 and 2018, respectively, as discloded i Note Z24.
Allowanee for inventory obsolescence relates to aliowance for spare parts. '

Thie fatiowing table shows the movement of allowance for inventary obsolescence a5 at
Decenjtber 31; 2018 and 2017:

2008 . 017

{In Thousands) _
Balarce mt bagioning of year P20, 71E P11 762
Additinng _ 12,507 19,954 -
Balance at and of yoaf . . . P2i9. 738 . . F;D:lt?),&'_
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Motes 2018 . 2017
Adiantes {0 suppliers’ 32 P4% 531 P3I5;52%
Prepaid expenses 206,583 . 176,931
Tripist VAT _ BE.B7S 212,017
Refundehle deposit 15 &8 01D -
Curent portion of kxfug-term fAnancial ) . o
Teceivable 1%, 38 34,0643 32,340
Crecitable withholding taxes 32,041 10,367
Advances bo smiphpyess . ~ &O7 L ELL:
Lbhers . &350 71,268

Advances to suppliers represent advarices that are applied against subsequent
purchases and are outstanding for ess than one year fram initiet recogniticn.

Advances to employess are ron-interest bearing and genesatly have termis of 30 days:-

Prepaid expenses intlude rent, insurance aid taxes paid in advance that are amortized
within néxt year. o '
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HVESTHEHTE
investment-s s ot Dee:ember 3, ;!a:i:.& and 2&1? eunsist of the ﬁ:ihming*

: Iﬂi'.! _ 2017

o _ {in Thousands} _
In?ﬁsmmnts In associates Pa,245.759  PAAG4d1T
Finsncial asset at fair value through S o
profit of joss . R /1 L ) 2.940

P4,245,699 P4,468 357

The detalls of investment in associstés. 8¢ at Decembdr 34, 2018 #nd 2017 are ss
fothows:

2018 7

. (In Thousands}
HMBPC . P4,245,759 Pd 464 4317
Asia Coal .
Aichuisition cost - 29,152
Write-off of investrnent _ - (29 152)
P4,245,759 __ P4464,417
HMDC ~ £0%

HMDC was Incorporated in the Phiipploes. and registered with the sE{: L]

October 5, 1987. s registersd place of business is 5% Figor, Dme Campus Piage, .
Tower B, msa Campus Avenue, MoKinley Town Center, Taguig City. HMDC s Involved

in mining, processing and sale of guarry resourses of mineral rights.

Fursuant to the subscription by the RF to 60% of the issuse and cutstanding mpitai
stock of HMDC, HPE ang MPMC appointer and designated RF as thelr proxy for thelr
raspective 60% voting shares in HMDC, which proxy s irrevecable until 5EC approves
the [ncreass n copitat stock, Thereafter, three romisees of RF were eiecled to the
five-member Board of HMOC, As 2 resuit, RF has effectively taken over the control of
HMDC. Consequently, the Patent Cumpanv gcoounted for its remaining 40% Intensst in
HMDC as fnvestment in an assockate. At the date of the loss of control, the Paremt
Company's investment in HMDC was remeasured at #4.2 blilion based on the fair vsh.m
of its retained equity in BMDL.

Fotlowing are the summarized unaudied consclidated haliancs 5heet ﬁﬁancial
infermation of HMDC as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 )

2018 2017

. {In Thousaiids}
Current assets - _ ~ PLS3LA48 P2, 251,547
Neficurrant assets L 6,383,417 BE51494
Current Nakilifies . ) 1,803,543 ' 1,9-5'?,?3ﬁ _
Hontusrent Habliities . - - E 048 BRY 4,853 440

Net asscts - . o PL,A42.477 2,281 871




Foliowing are the summarized unaudited- consolidated statement of Incomé fiidniciat
iformation of HMDC far the yesrs endex December 31, 2018 and 2017

3018 2817

_ - {In Thousands)
Revenues  PLTRL,093  P2,483,963
Cost and expenses ' . {2,872,655)  {Z2,245087}
Griss profie . 108,438 238,876
Dther incoitie 555,057 191,591
Incame before incorne tax 653,495 430,867
Provision from: ihoome tax _ .. 194 549 _ {71830)
Kat income. L $ As8.%4%  ° 359,037

Movement of the investment 0 HMDC in 2018 and 2017 are as foilows:

 Notes 3018 2017
' {In Thowsands}
Cost: _ ' .
Balance, beginning snd end of yéar . P4,300,746 __P4,300,745,
Accumulated share i undistribugi
earnings: _ '
Batiince beginning of yeaar 163,671 86,761
Share in undistributed pamings 28 122,898 143,615
Share in dividends dedared by HMBC 28 . (322653  (66.703)

(54,987} 153,671
P4, 245,759  PAAGH AT

Sharé In undistributed eamings of HMDC inclides the share in net incoms T the
curnulstive preferred shares held by the Farent Company and excludes the Papent
Company’s share in any unrealized gross profit from HMODCs seies to the Parent
Company as disclosed in Note 29. S T o

Asia Coal Corporation (Asia Coat) ~ 28% . S o

The Parent Company has g 28% Interest in Asia Coal, which was incorporated n. the
Philippises, Asia Coal ceased operations on November 1, 2014, On March 19, 2005,
the directors and stockholders of Asiz Coal approved the shortening of the corporate. -
iife of Asie Coal to Ociober 31, 2009. Asia Coal shall be dissclved and Hquidated,
ihe date of which iz sutiject to the spproval of the SEC. The reporting date of Adla Coal

is October 31, Oh March 1, 2017, the board of directors unarimousky approved the
write-off of investrment to Asla Coal. | . : )

RUTHEEHANENEARE]



PREP’!RT\", PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - nat

' Eriscaeridear X1, Mdltlnm}' Dieposnbif Tranafers/  Deceminr 3%,
2017 . Teprechitios/ Rytrements Reclessification  F918,.

fia ﬂ"mmw
Bobidings srd (staifations F12O58.244  F - {F5L 552) fp 10,7390 F1:005; §81
Mechirery and egipment 23,900,265 12416 {15,983y /5,13y TAT55.657
Furnttyre, yehiciks and toals 535,071 - {21,5'? 24443 ELLR Y
Congtmelonin-progress . 4 376368 - Z3ER05d {38983 - 6304939
. .. 42,2538%8 2,244 410 _ﬁﬂ.ﬂ#] _ PR . ..
LREE St ram i
depretation: ]
Bilings #nd InptaiRtions 1845525 7% JhT o T WL <] - B 208,843
Hachinery and equipment LE 331307 749,425 {15,978 - 16,854 534
Formiture, vabiciss and Looks £87,34% 52.83: (3999 L 736,179
24,653 050, . LiFLIRT {26,200} - 25,795 852
Corrylng amaunk PI7.50%,335 ALGIZO00 (TELIWSE) P - PiRGO73TL
Gecember 31, Aodilonsf  Dispesaly Translers/  Deckmmber 31
_ ZOi6  Deprscimblon/ Retirernmnts  Recissifieatlon - 2007
' fte Thousand)
Lang and iand improvaments. P S8,288 R . {P53.2%) B '
Buildings st R1stalistinng sAoUr5es - (765463 127,635 12 m
Mechinery and sawpment “£3,555, 807 53,797 {41,108} 411,824 ﬂ’m nuﬁ
Furniture, velicies o tonls 1035833 1% LR 2483 34,168 $39,071
Congtruction in:prigrees 28146,55% 2,530,564 - I570,8493 4 3I7EAER.
9984341 2SB4.TE0 (FUNELIE... 3,568 47251858
Losg meoLvulated
depreciation:
L=nd Improvemants 45,347 = £a5,347) - -
Buibdinigs and lostaiiations 7 A58 ERD. A3, 354, 157,545} 1,568 . TENEERN
Mactresy and squipmant 15;25%.343 Ea5765 . (5,766 - 16,401 383
Eurriture, wetikches and tasls I . ReIGa . (102.574) . SR 1.}, -3
23,507,115 . 1,361,31 ZISHAE . . 568 1465,
Camying emgit PLEASTO26  PLIIIALY . {PEOsSSY B v BI7ESRE38

Constructon in progress Indudes on-goitg ibeimn mpim:ements end ex;uanﬁiaﬂ prajects
for the Group's operations,

The Group recagritred gatn {loss) from the dlsposal of pmpemr, pFant and eduipfoent.
amcunting to (P3.5) milllon, PL15.8 million and (P5,1) milflon in December 31, EDLB- _
2017 and 2016, res::re:tl"urelv, as disclosaid in Mote 2B,

Of the totat amount of adéibons ta property, plant aﬁd equipment, P317,7 million are-
stil! unpatd as of December 31, 2018,

The procaeds from the sale of propérty, plant and equipm&nt ammmted m
P61.3 million and P180.4 miilion In Decambeyr 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Manageinent believes that there is no Indicatisn that ai impainhent loss his ptogrrad:
durirg the year,

T
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS -

net

The movements of gandwill snd intangible B5sets-are-as follows:

o Additlons/ - e
Decamiber 31, Amortization/  December 31,
2017 Tréngfers . . 2018 .
Goodwi] .. P2,535,738 P+ .. P2Ea5738
Intanglide assets
Cost: :
Saftware oogts 102,688 - 102,085
Praject develdpment casts. :
and athers 38,256 : - S8 256
) 140,381 . - 140 341
Less accumuleted amortization: _
Softwars costs 095,956 1,172 47,158
Project develbpment costs o
and others 5681 - 158661
111,637 1.3172 i12,78%
28714 (1,1229 27543
Hatance P 664,452 [PL.172)  P2.64%280
hgditianaf
Decernbar 31, - Amortization] Decemiber 31,
2016 Transters(s} _Retirarignid 217
: L {In Tholusands) _
Goodwill P2.635,7348 p— P - PRG35 73R
Intangtbde assets
Cost: )
Software costs 122,384 - {20,253 102,085
Prafect develaprment _
__costs and others 38,256 -. - 38,756
. 160 540 - (20,2921 340 341
Less actumulabed :
amartizakicn: ) . . . N
Software costs 104,172 12,992 {20,299 95,566
Priject developiment :
and athers e 5 BEY - - = 15,663
115634 12,09 . [(20,399) 111,647
40,806 12,452 : - 28,715
Balante P2,675 Sdd ‘Pr2oez B - FZ h64.452
Goodwill .

Goodwill amounting to P2.E billion relates to the Parent Company's acuuisition of WEB

and MGMC on August 14, 2003,

The Group perforns its annual bnpalirment test every last guarter of the year
The recoverable amount of the CGU determined based on value-in-use, Is compared to-
15 careving amount.  An Impairment foss s only recognized if the Garrying amount of
the CGU excaads ts recoverabie amoiwit. Future tash flows are discounted using the

WACC.

Ty
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The cash flow prdjections are based on & five-year Bnancial 'ﬁiaﬁﬁingi perind Approved

by senior management. Cash fows beyond the five-yssr budget peMad are
 aottrapiolated based on vash Bows at zero growth. As = rasult of this analysis,

mansgement hias determined that there was no impairment 985 in 2018, 2017 and

. 2016 since the value-inr-use sxceeds the cerfylng valus of Hab?nt fplanfx mmenti.

operations.

Sensitivity to changes in aswmpﬂans

With régardl to the sspéssment of valuesinuge. of the LY, management belmue5 that:
@ change in te discount rate of § parcentage paint would not c:ause the carry[r@ walug
of goodwitl t excedad | [rts recuverable atmount, i

¥ay assumptions

L;:ing-'térm GDP Growth

Discount Rate _Rate
2618 8.4% 7 0%
2017 2. 7% 7.0%

2016 B39 Z 5.5%

Management believes that there is no indication that an-impsitment lass fias orcufred
on Hs ivtangible assefs with deflriite ysafil lives, The Groog has derermined; based oh
annyal impaicment testing that the darrying amodnits of frtargible -assets with
indéfinite usefill Itfe are niot in excess of thelr ngt récoverable amounts,

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
MNotes = 2018 2017
_ _ _ {En Thotrsands) _
Orher financial agsats #2153, 400 P 82,106
Guararntee deposits - _ 15, 32 - 412,561 . 133,548
Long-term financial receivable : 29 120,877 66,244
Deferred input value-added taxes . A%, 5pd B5.254
Refundable deposit L 48 465
Qthers . . : ... 979 2,453

P2,7351 443 P378.487

Dther finandal assets represent both deposits made for future obligations and

. minimum mine fehabilitation fund reguired by the DENR to oovér site restoration cost
. embunbing to P2.1 billloy and FE2.1 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2018,
- the Group [s atready working to dose the rehabilttation fund as DENR requirement =

to Innger apphicable consequent (o HMDC deconsolidetion.

Refundable deposit represents the cach bond deposited with the Sureau of Customs-
fBOCY in May 2001, reprasenting the safequand duty oF P20.6 per bag of gray Portiand
cement impaosed by the Department of Trade amd Industry {DTIY. In Noveinbar 2001,

the PHilippine Tadff Commission {PTC) subsegueantly ruled that no safeguard duties &re
required fof the Importation of gray Poitland cement, In 2005, the Supreme Court
fuled that PTC finding is binding on tha 011, In March 2006, ﬁm LTI isgued an grider
nuliifying the saif sofeguard duties. On October 12, 2087, the Group filed ah

- application with the Batangas Collection District No. IV in view OF the ROC's fathire to

refease the cash bonds despite the DTYs ZO06 order. On October 22, 2012, the
Group's application was favorabiy endorsed to the Legal Division. of the BOC's Revenus
shd Coliection MonRotng Growp. In Aupust 2015 and s reduired by BOC's Legal

" DMwision, the Group filed & position paper with suppurting documents, including the.

DTI's letter stating that there is sufficient basls For the release of the eash bonds.
On October 21, 2015, the Group wrote a lgtter to the office of the BOC commissicner
on the Legal Division's refusal to rule on the application. -
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In November 2015, the office of the BOC commissiondr endoised the Groupy
appiication to the BOCS Revenué and Coliedtion Moniterdng Group ard Birector of
legal Services for appropriate action, As at Decernber 31, 2018, the Grouips
application. is pending resbiution by the BOC, Subsequently, MGMC's cash bord v the
amourt. of P4B.0 milion way refeased by BOC ang . recefvéd on Felmiaty. 4, 2019,
thus, reclassified to pthet current assets, s didcloded in Nobe 13,

Guarantee deposits represent cash deposits miade o Supplers for raiwv rﬁat'mial.' supply
agraément and various securty deposits for rentals are disclosed inNote: 32.

Lurg-term financial receivables Tepresent the outstanding receivable from Holcim East
Asta Businesg Service Cenfre B.Y, {HEARS] relating to the “Assignment of Rngw-How"
contract: The Group has entered inta a long-term financing agreerment with HEABS to
amortize the unpaid balance of the tatier as of December 33, 2016 amouiting fo
Po6.3 millisn or $3.8 mifion plus any rovalustion, tver 3 years ae disclosed in
Kote 26. Iy 2018 and 2012, part of the fiiancial réceivable was clagsified as current
asset amounting to P34.1 rliflon and #32.4 milllon, Tespectively, as disclesed in
Note 11,

{bfig-tarm Firancial receiveble. #iso represerits the recelvabie from the Group’s: third
party service provider for sale of certaln heavy squlpment in 20088, which will be
settled on or before 2019. Interest income earned from long-term financial regefvabie
at an snnual nterest rate of 4.5% to 7.0% amounted to nli, PO.3 million and
PO.7 mitlion in 2018, 2017 and 2036, respectively. -

LOANS PAYABLE

— : Hots 2018  r087
Loans payabie - thitd party ) B5200,000 P B
Loans paysble - refated parties - 28 3,925,849 4,177,902

Py 135 8549  P3.177902

In 2018, the Group has avafled of various unsecured shart-term lvans for working
capital purposes from & bask with an sverage intermst rate of 4.66% 55 well as loans
from its related parties, . ' : .

In 2017, the Group avalled a shoct<terd Joan from & bank amounting to
P2.2 bilfion, beating interast of 2.8%. This was fully paid in 2017, The Company aiso
avalled varlaus short term loans from is relsted parties amounting ko P4,2 bitllon.as of
Reramber 31, 2017, 45 disclosed in Note 28, _ _
Total interest expense from igans payabie charged o profit of loss amuunted to
R279.5 milion, F78.8 millon and P17.4 millign in 2018, 2017 and 2016 raspectively;
as disclosed {h Note 27, - - e

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Note 018 = 2007

. {In Thecsand}

Trade payable P 1291917 P3,372,644
Advances and daposits fromy L S

. cushaimers .. -3, 784,328 1,142,865
. Dug to related parties g . L480.414 1,302,539
Accrued expensas C 1687744 1,804,578
. Ofher teies peyable o 165, 68% 285428
Noh-trade payable o 153,124 . R047
Output VAT - 71,536 83,849
Cther payables . : TR - 7 - I 18,058

P11,574,971 P? BE2 742

i
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61 days. ' . _
Other accrued expenses Inchide interest from interest-bearing tish bonds wrhigh are
refundabie anytiime upon derfiand by the customers. -~ - _ _
Non-irade payables represent sccounts with supplfers atfier than proguctivr-refated
axpenses, These sre noninterest-bearing and have an averags terny of three months
or legs, _ S

Advances and deposits from customers represent those that will be appiied: against
subsequent shipments. thus, are generally cutstanding for less than 20 days from
irittial recogiition.

Total amiofint Of intercompany revelvables ahd’ payables eliminated as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to P3 tilion sy PO.S billan, réspactively.

Details of thé Grotup's ancrued expenses are ag folfows:

2018 2017

{In Thoisarios)
Rebates P oyisxe% P V22433
Guts_Jﬂe snryices 320, fi? 331,284
Employea-related payable 276,101 - 284,103
Power 180,153 157,159
Interest payabie 21,997 32,117
Project expenses 133952 ]
Maintenanes [ X1 E5 725
Dthers . . #4400 123,663

P1.647,744 _ £1 804578

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND PDLICIES

The Group Is exposed to various finantiat risks, which lndiide the effect of changes in
debt. structure, eduity markat prices, forelgn currency excharge fates and Interest

© tates, The Group's overall sk management program focuses O the unpredicisbility

of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential and adverse effects on the
finangial performance of the Group. The Group does not enter into other dervative oF
finansial transactions which are unrelated to its opérating businesy as & risk-averse
approach s pursued. : .

Financiai risk management of the Group i govemed by polides approved by
managemeant, [t providss principles for overall risk management, as well 25 policles
covering specific risk sreas such as interest rate sk, forelgn exchangs risk,

counterparty risk, use of derivabive financial instruments and Investing mesete i -

excess of Hguidity requirerments, L )

The Group’s principal financial instrumerits, ther than derfvatives, conslst of casht and
cash eguivatents rnd notes payable. The main purpose of these fingncla! inshrumernts .
is to raise funds for the Group's bparations. The Group alze has various other financial
assets and llabfiities such as trade and other recelyables, advances o empioyees,
guarantee deposits, restricted cash and trade and other payables which arise direcily
frorm operations, g

The main vsks arising from the Group’s finsncial instrumems ard market risks
fwhich iaclude foreign curfency fsk and interest rate risk), credit risk and figuidity
Hsk. The BOD reviews and apprijves the polictes for managing each of these rsks and
they are summarized belaw. The Group’'s accounting policies in relation to financial

" instruments are sat ouf in Note 5 to the consaiidated financlat statements.

Trade payables are ﬁnnintémsf»bﬁaﬁng and ﬁnrﬁéﬂf have pwrneht terms of 30 e

A
BN

55



Market risks . _ :

The Group s exposed o market risks, such 38 fovelgn correnty and interest rate riske.
To mansge volatillty relating o these exposurés, the Group enters loto erivative
financial Instruments, when necessary. The Group's tbiective i 1o reduce,
where appropriate, fluctuations in earhings and cash flows associated with changes in.
Forelgh currency, inberest rate snd aquity price, : o :

Forelgh cuirency tisk .

Foreign currency risk is. the risk that the f8ir value ur future cash flaws of ¥ finaricisl
instrument will Burtate because of changes.in foreljn exchange rates.

e Group has foreign sxchange expusures, arising primerily from purchases: of goods

* gl seryices and debt sérvicng requirerents In curtencies other than tha Philippine
Peso that ieads to curtency trarslation effacts, Of the Group’s revenies, approxirnatefy
nil and 0:03% were denominated in corvericiés other thar the Phillppine Peser in 2018

. and 2017, regpectively.

Due to the iocal naturs of the cement busiresy, transactian risk & Hmied,
However, intomie may prmarfy bs in local currency whersay debt seivicing anid.
significant amount of chpital expenditures may be Jn foreign currendies. As a
consequence thered?, the Chrmpany rmay enter i9fg derivative, contracts -wheneer
necassary, which may be designated eifhsr as cach fow hagges or fair value hedges,
Bz appeapiiate, ) .

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had minimal assets and labliitios exposed to
Toreign currency Haks. R

The fable Betow summarizes. the Group's exposhre to foreign curmency sisk before
congidarirg the effect of hedging transactions, Inciuded in the tabie are the Group's
forélgn currency-denomingted assets and hablitiss at carrying smounts:

I 2017
INUSD . InPHP __ InUSD In PHP
_ : fin Thaussmds}
pssets; . S y
Cash ahd cash equivalents $111E FEn RS % 1,842 P 41,0953
Trade ant other raceivablag 7480 34,330 7.808 . 389,773
Financlal receivables - .= 1846 . G714
. BEUE 488,119 . 41596 . S78.870
LiabHitles: ) ) . . .
Trage and othver payalbies 13 I} Gi2 56 12,780
Nef sxposure $7882 PAISSOF . %1134  PS66,090

Convarted to Phppine Sers &t ISS1.00; P3Z.72 85 &% Decomtrer 31, 2008 #and USEI.00: P95 &5 it
Cuchmber 31, 2017 . L . ]

The following table demdnstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s income before income
tax (gue to changes in Fair value §F monetary assets and Gabliities after considering
the impact of hedging transactions) to a reasonably possible change in U.S, doltar
axchange rate, with all other variables held constant: -

us Doltar

Appreciates (Depraciates) . Effect on Income
by - - . . . Before Income Tax
 D=cember 31, 2018 : : T
Sensitivity 1 10% - P4L,EEL
Senaftivity 2 {5%) : £20,77%)
December 21, 2017 I '
Serisitivity 1° i ' P5&,50Y

Sensitivity 2 (583 L (28,305}




'in Mansgements opinton, the sensitivity analysis ia unreprasentative of the Irihsrent”
forelgn axchange tigk becausd the sxposure 2t the and of the reperting period does.
not reflect the expasure during the yasr. o o :

The impact of any change in foreign exchange faté on the embedded currency
forwards of the Group Is rumateris], o _ : : -

“Tptersst rate risk L
Interest rate risk is the pisk that future cash flows fror # Briancial instriment
fcadh fow Inkerest rave risk) of its fal value (fair value Interest rate fisk) will fiictuste
bacause of changes {n market interest rates, : '

The Group is exposed to fuduations in finanging casts and market valye movements
of ity debt portfolic relgtad to changas in market intsrast rates. The Groups Interast
rate exposure 5 mainly addresded throtigh the steering of the fxed/floating Fatic of
nizt debt. To manage this mix; the Group may enter into-derivative transactions, 35
appropriate, As at December 31, 2018 snd 2017, the Group hag minimal exposure to
interast rats rigk,

Credit risk

 Credit rigk (5 the risk that sounterparties may not be able to seitie their obilgations as
agreed. To mangge this risk, the Group periodically assesses the #inancial relisbility of
customiers. '
The Group constantly ronitois its credit risk exposureés. Counterparties to Tnencial
instruntents consist of @ large number of major finanictat institurions. The:Group dozs
not expert any counterparties to fail in-meeting their cbligations, given thair high
credit ratings. In addition, the Group has no signfficant congentratibm of tredit Hsk
withi @iy singhe colintarparty or group of cousterparties,

The gross Taximom and net maximum exposurs 1o credit Hsk is repragentsis by the .
carrying smount of aach financisl aseet, except for the foliwing financial ascate:

Grots M qanrett! . Mt Maodirum )

Docember 31, Docamiber 21, Decambir ¥1,  December 31,
. 20138 ARET 2015 20rF :
Lo ara regelvables ] . ) ) C
Cash avwf cash oquivnleras®  FEINEASY PL A5 214 PE214,373 PLBPOILT
Trade recelvabies; . : . .
Deglears . 45,353 520,214 o - T4
RetaHery Eq0 098 426,918 12453 A55,56F
Toetthakkonat I52,031 S BB L - T HEA NS
e Financiat Agsabg e : TisT 400 - . S8 . Zssapg . . - gEice
P9, 041,935 F3.368 340 . POLPDILS F2TIEETT

4 Gross financisl assets before taking Into ¥ocount any ceifetersl hefd or other
credlie enhancemments or offselbing arrangements. |

#  Gross financial assets sRer taking Into account any colidbers! or other Credlt .

enhancernants ar offsefling arrdngerments or debosit Insurahce. '
*  Excluding cash o hand. _ L -

»¥  Includad under "Cther noncurrent esséns™ sccount In the consolidgted statements
of financial position. . : : .

The Group trades only with recoghized, credit-worthy-third parties, It (s the Groups

pollicy that afi third party custorners who wish b6 trade on cradit terms are sisbject 1o

cedit verification procedures, In addition, recelvabie balaheds are monitored oit af -

ongoing basis to reduce the Group's exposuée to bad debts to minimeam. : o

.With respect to eredit risk arising from the othei fimancial essets of the Group,

which tonsist of due from related partles, advahces to employess, AFS finsncial-

assets, and guarante and refundable deposits, the Group's exposures sfise from

default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposuré equad o the carrying amount

of these instrurmants,
) "




The following tables present ihe credit quality of the ﬁnam!,ui assetﬁ us 4t
December 31, 2018 anﬁ 2017 .

Phxt Dug

Pt Do
Haithar Fu’t durs ot Bnpuired . hertnaot- and
Class & Chicis B Eliur € Impeired  fopxied  Totsl -
fin Thoussmgsl = - .
2018
FInanUal SEsats AE FYTRL _ _ : . _
Quokad Bhares A . TR P - i S Fo- B A
Loduoted shares TR - - w - 3 re4
Losing and rereivables --'
Eavt ard rash sdofiaients o
“Liegh I banks L7LY, S50 - “ - - 3, 74E 550
_ Shore-tarm depostis RES, 304, - - - - e, 300
Traite and dther .
recehables
Pzaters 81,583 BBED - - 11,356 L34, ¥52
Retsliers i3, T1a ES, 0T A TL - B, ) o, LNE
Ingtitioral 117,390 18486 316417 bl NS, P05 .
. AFR/RMX/others 2,395 85,217 346,24 MaAs  Ganb88  SALPSS
G from relpted, partias 5,054,256 - - - L 754205
(HiEr recelvables - - -as_n..m: - 5 108 AD4;908
Advances 1D ernpliyees* oo - T - -
Crther Tinantial agatas e 2,483,350 - - - - 1,153,490
Guarantee deposis*ii 36,718 - EL 2 - - 412 56
Bhort-term fnancial 1,064 - - - - 34,
recafvahie ’
Lorg-berm loean fnapcdst o . .
feceivabtex*> .. . = » 130:377 - - AXDAFT
PEIELINS  PA12.97)  PLi9 091  Plafand  bU¥INl4 . PR SE3 ST
2017
Firiancial asrels at FyTpL . . : o
Ctged shares P 76 P - F - P~ ®o- Y
"Lt s A, 764 - - Lo ' 764
Ladne and receivabled .
Cagh and cosh Aguividets . . .
Cash In banks 1079514 - - - - 1879814
Sharf-tern depastis 865,300 - - w . BET 300
Trade and offer -
meiwivables
Trace _ ] - .
Deaters 25,758 P 539 437 FF X ] 375,573
Retalers g2z W A2EZE2 - 0 - 27,744 R5LETZ
Tristitutional 1,540 1BB96T . AR 3VE o 260 S48, A48
AFR/RME jotiters . 239 A5 TF3 194,189 T8, ¥ 132,969 B0, 559
DUk Fror relRiEd gartes 1,326,318 . 3 . L2266
Otfar recefvkbles ) - - 403,111 - 4,824 a0, 735
Adhiameek £ Amphoydes® - - 14,772 - - 14,772
Ofhdr financial axsates e B ARG - L T - BE 106
Guarsnter tappsitge+ - - 173 Sus - DR - v T )
Short-erm Roanctal .
recabvable® . 32,360 - - - - JZ; 60
Leng-berm ppan fanckat L —_—
JrecelyableTe: . L rs I -~ . 158 - SRR - 5
PIAE3056 PEERIYS  PLMEWOS | PISRSOHY PIFLIGS | PORS06H7

*irciudod venfer "Ctiar CUTTSTTE asSalET 4T ine CRrsodatnd staimhents of Sasnctal postion

FHfnfuetiet wicar “Imvastreis® i b Soeeitiatd MmlenrEnts of fnaneal posttian.
muwwm

=4 dfhed imat i MOLIFT PATCDITEYE AT (1 BN conseiidated

The Group uses the foliowing critera to rete n‘&dit risk nn acnuunts mmlvahla a5 to

class;
Class Des-:ﬂotlon
Clags A Collateralized acoounts fmrn muniefpartms with; axr:senent p&v]ng hab?h: or
 pecounts from countemarties with ne history of default payment
flass &  Secured accounts From counterparties with gand paving habits but with:
) histary of defbult rayment
Class C  Untefured accounts

BEEEIRERURBATIRERANARY



With respect to decivatives, AFS financiel asssts and cash and cash etuivalents,
- the Group svatuates the counterparty’s extertial credit risk rating in establishing credit-

Guaiity, :

The Graup hag net provided an aliowance on past due but not inipaired Accounts since

Menageiment believes that there is- no change In the credit guabty of fnendial sssets

from the date credit was initially grafited up to the ¢nd of each reperting period.

‘tht tables below show the ading analysis of the Group’s Rinandiel assets. ag 2t
Decermnber 31; 2018 and 2017: :

Hakthar
PAstOus . . PastGusbutrotImpiomt = Fast
‘Nar <30 H- F1-90 BEi-120.  Dupand
it Iemipwiried Days Peys . . _ Oxye Days triipeired
{h THixa e )

‘2B )

Araticisl assete ab FTVR{*5 . . )

Gt shitres B 176 P 175 r - P P- P« B
_ Uninucted shares 3,764 176X - - -

Ciash and cenh saquivakarts:

Lash In banks 1715550 1,715,580 - - - - -
 Shurt-berm deposts 85300 A, 300 a - - . -
Tirade ar ather recilvablbes:

Trade raceivatries fromt: o .

Bealers AT 82 26,391 - - - - A
petelers f02, 588 B3, 545 > = - - BB AN
Intibitionel A%5, 985 552081 - L - na 4,884
EFRFEM¥ fotheré 501,951 rabpi:n 34T A, 6N o RS iadede
Dua  from  relsted o o N '

partiaE TSN EEE  L7EA,25% - - - - - -

Others ) #01,008. B99801 = - - - 2.185
AdveEnces o employess™ ] Ry O spy - - - o -
Rher Froapchal Assmute - 2T 490 283 ApT - - - - -
Guaranbae Sapastiy > * 412,581 #311.56% - - * - -
Shionet-term finectcinl . ) L . : ]

et 31,083 A, 06K - - - * - -
Lonig-teroh iosn Tinercial . ] . ] . ) ) .
TeratatineLE . _LI0IFY - FAGErF . - . = e -
2017 .
Finarcizl agzats at FyTELY: : . . Lo : ’
Thioted aheres P i76 7 176 Fo- . [ B - B - ¥ -
Urauated shares 3,764 B, 70 - I - - -
Lash and cash equbraients; . . . . . . :
Cash [ banks 1,079,414 1,075,554 - " - o - - -
Short-fermh deposts £55,300 BES, 300 o - - - -
Trade and other paehablos: . . ) . -
Trags pecelvabies from: . . a -
Degiers 3FLETY . Aapiaa . - - - 31,659
Retabers 454 572 #25,978 - .. - - THMER
Srogt A barel . 508, 14K R Do - o _F 268
AFR/RMY others ' 04, 5EF 242,201 o J 10 FEauy - BABs 1ELBGY 112965
Cuae  from ek L. S . . . Co

. parie . 1,228,316 1226318 - - - - -

Othesg 296,735 A013,111 - - - - LES

Avences o emphpees® 14,772 14,71 - . - - -
Otter Financtat Assetse™s 82,106 #2,106 - - - - -
Guarartes deposia**y 127,544 123,546 - - - - -

. Short-tmrm financhl . :

recaivable® ] 32,380 33,300 - - - L -
Lehgr-terte: kst financizl . o .

E@-‘_&En& . B 2 ) .. . Lo -

PLOEYY  peeioade | PIOORE . B2l 33y CPiGTARE  PREINES

Anciuded Lmrer T ATEE aisals® i the conmoitdeted sratemint o MHamce ot
"l citert wricher "Invastiavite” in e corrbovidatic’ statamantn of Mrob] porRiim. o
¥t uraE ERHRET Mot IS i BN ot grattmdnty of Al sz,




Liguidity risk o
Liquidity risk is the rigk that the Group will encounter difficulty In raising funds to mest
Hs contrachset obligations and wmniments. The seasohality -of revente gensraticn
exposes the Group to shortage of fundys during slack seassns gnd ntay resulf in payment’
defaults of Roanchal commibments, The Group monitors this risk using a recuming
ifquidity planifing tool. This toel considers the maturity of both #s finandal assets and
projected cash fiows from operationg, The Group’s objective Is to maintain & balance.
betiesn continufty of funding and fexibiity through the us= of bank credit facilitles,
finanoe leases and purchsse contrécts, I s responsible for its pwn cash surpluges and-
the raising of loans to cover cash defigits, subiect to policies and guidelines appraved by
maragement and, In certain cases, at the BOD levet,

The Group malntains sufficent reservas af cash- and cash egiivalents, ‘whicl an
short-tefm in nature Bnd unused. sredit Unes to meet s louitity reguiremaits at all
fithes. In additign, the strong credif worthiness of the Group allows it {o make efficent
use of the fnencial markets for fisancing purpuses. Asat December 31, 2018 and 2017,
the Group has usutilized credit facilities of P01 bilfior end P9.4 bililon, respectively.

The tables below summaize the maturlty proflie of the Group's finsncial assets used fgt
liquidity management as at December 31, 2048 and 2017

lessthan = Sho . _ .
On Dameend 3 Miomths - L7 Monihe ¥ E o b Yewre Foded
T tharumids)

i3 L] _ ’
Plrpmcial wigsts ot FYTRL=*: ) ) .

Clupotsd shares s Ire P - - ¥ -~ P - B 176

Lirmeryteid shsras. 3,764 - - Co- 7EL
Levare irnd cechratiles:

Cash B banks L7i% 550 - =, - _i,*z 19550

Shirt-term depiosits - 455 A00 - - AEE yon

Trade and other recbalies: ) '

Frade rerehyables Frowm . ) L
Deaiers A1,358 F8,393 - 117,752
Ratafars ) 5B AYR ‘BS54 - T AE
Tnatiutlone| - !!m,ns - 556,15
AFR/RME fothes 284,110 17 Iy A T 501,953

Cho frorm: rolated partiex - - 1,754,258 - 1,734, 2%

Other receivables 5,105 - 339,203 = 404,908

Advences io amployess® . - - sy . mar

Other Finandnd Apsets++* " - - FAREA0G 0 LINS400

Guarwites deposieies - " Com 411@!1 A2,

Shart-bern firancal recetvphbes - - da0gs - 34,054

Lonig-barre: lanm fMnandsl e . . .

TEcHvatie® " : - I Eo. . B0 | 330,377
: PLOBE 564 PLSBO,ETS 1883 & DIS  PORMETER
2017 _
AFS Nriptclal BEsets+: . . ) .
CJLHITAD Shpres P 178 poo- F - oo F 176
Unigorid shares 3,764 - o . ] 74
Loans snd rabeirabies: . :

Cash aned cash equivelents: o ) L
Cash in banks pael R - - = 10,0
Shar=term Jepasits - B8, 3 w0 r 63,300

Trade and oty cacanarac; '

Trade recabablzs from: o o
Deaters ALE59 | FE02i4 - - - 471 4873
Retatiers 27,744 476,526 - B . W54 E7T
Inetirurinnet 7 Hat S0, BA0 : - . SoE, 148
ATR/RMEfathers Lase A3 I0E - . -  EDMLEER

e from retated partes - - 1,225.318 - 3,236,115

Other racahaties 30624 - - ARE 111 .. 406,735

Advancas i employeess 1,335 - o BB AIT - . MgFIR

‘Otfer financial Agpafss > - - - B2 08 . Bz, 196

GuAraTicee deposseY - S s 123548 123,598

Short-tarm financds] neelvativ® 33 60 Ce 3z 60

Long-berm fnancal pepsivaties +- - - ..'.--. L x - . EBhiEs . - BS244

. p;,s:aﬁ,gsz P2 A4E] PLETS I8 PATZ 08 5,930,557 .

'-ﬂmhdedmdqr"ﬂﬂernmmm mmmmuwwm
W forelpched Uncer Trrvasiimimts” frr bre consmicatnd b of Tnarciel posibion,
et Lngher OO SoTiCUTTITE e s in M consiioted sERE RO ofﬂmnﬂ'ammﬁm

R
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The tables below summarize the maturity profiie of the Group's financiaf Tiabilities a6
af December 31, 2018 and 2017 hased on conbractual undisesunted payrmeriks:

i.mthﬂn zm '

Z0LE .
ofner Ananckl Ihbnkies:

Trade wnd ather payables: . _ ) : . o
Tride . 4,295,817 P - o= p - P&aﬁhil?-
Arrrued expenses pnd . '

nonirada payaiies 1,550 658 - - - 1,750,568
Cue to fetated pames Z488,454 - - - 1460414
AOVancEs o coakEners B45 484 - = - ks 04
mmemn SRS BAYADIED 219 - - - ——518
FiX 198 502 F - B - = FRASR T0T
Fi: by
Cither financial Nebitbes:

Trade and ethar payames: )

Trade PELI72 644 P - r - r - P ¥l B
Aecrued expenses and -

Panlradn Ry bhas 1812535 - - - 181,635
Cae o cetated parthes 1,207,581 - - - 1307533
Advances ffom customers 4k 454 - - . 645,483
Dehar payatiss 18,098 - - = 1800

P DEG I8 P+ P - P~ 7,055, 244

incioced (e “."rarn‘nana‘nﬂmrpmbm ammmmwﬂsu#dm Statrmarts of Srancial position.

The Gmup considers equity attributable ko the sty holders of the Parent Campanv
gx fts capital, The Group's obléctives when managing capftal are fo secure the Sroup’s
ongaing Bnancial nieeds to continue as & geing concam a6 Well as to cater for ite
growth targets in order to provide retums to shaieholders and benstits for cther
stakeholders snd to maintain a cost-efficent and risk-optimired capita! structure..

The Group marages the capifal structure ared mahes adiustments & it in light of the
changes In economic conditions, fs business adivitles, investment and sxgiassion
program nd the risk characteristics of the undeértying assets. In prder to raintain of
adiust the capital structure, the Group may adiust the amount of dividends pald to
shareholders, retum capital te shareholders, lsue héw shares, or s&H sssets to-reduce
debt.

The Grolp monitors capital, armong othiars, an the bass of geaﬂng ratiru trearing. ratic -
iz calotated as net financlal debt divided by totzl equity In tha mﬁdﬂtﬁﬁ balance:
sheats as shoiwn in the ksble below:

; -znis o 2037

Loans payable - third party - BSa00,000 P -
Loans payable - related parties 3,925 54% 4,177,802
Customers” deposits {Cash Bomd)* _ » _ £95 305 497435
Financial gebt _ . 8,621,154 4,674,957
Lags cosh and gash aquivalents : 5,300,853 1,545,797
Net fingncial debt 4,222,30t 2,729,140
Total equity . _— . . 25,273,161 22,354,748
Geating ratic . . . . S - 18.7% ¥y

*Inciteled as part of "Trade an# mier payabies”

The Group's target s to inaintain o gﬂar‘iﬂ-g rat]u it the runge of o more than 100
peresrit.

Total equity increasad by 3% in 2018 due 1+ net remeasuremeﬁt gain arising from -
retirerent benefits.




19,  EINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIASIEYTIES
Fair Value of Fi'nan'dli Instruments
he estimated fair Value of each class of tha erp's financlal irtstrummts. 5 egual e
their carrying amount as st December 31, 2018 and 2017, “The following methods and

assumptions pre-used i estimate the fair valug of sach odwg of financial instrusient
far whlch it Is practicable to estimate such vaiue:

.r:asb and Cash Eguivalents, Trode and. Other Reaefvabfes, Advances e Empioyees,
Restricted Cash, Long-term Finonciai Recelvabla, Loahs Payédble and Trade and Other
Favables. Due to the short-tesw nature: of the transactions, the fair values of these
instrumeents approximate the correspsnding camying valums a5 &t and of each
reporting perod.

Derivative Lisbliities. Tie fair values si:f_ the embedded currency farwards with riotional
amount of USS38 millon are calcuiated by reference. to current fervward excharige,

Fnandal Assets at FYTEL, The fair valved of pubilicly traded Inskruménts ars
determined by referémee to guoted market prims as at the end of each reporting
period. Investments in inguoted equity securities are carvied at mﬁt net of any
impairment i value,

Long-tern Financial Remmtafe and Gummse Deposits; Thege fra carried at cost,
less any impairment in vatpe, which approxirnates thelr fajir valves calcidated using thie
discounted cash flows methad.

Fair Valua Hlumn:h'f

A3 at Pepember 31, 2018 and 2617, the Gmup % finehcky! ingtrdments measdred at
falr value Indude only the qus:il:ecl aquity securitles, Hassied as Hnanclal agsais At
BVTPL (Level 1).

Ag at Décember 31 2818 and 2{}1? tha Emup does ne‘f have ﬂnandai fnstmmenls
whose falr values are determined using inputs that 2re not based oi pbservable -
rarket deta [Leve! 3}, There were no reclassifications made bemmn the differsnt faly
vaiue hierarchy ié"u"ElE in 2018 and 2017,

20. PROVISIONS

2088 . 2017
{in Thousaads}
Qther provisians C .. PO8AT FE1,342

Other Provisions _ .

Other provisions include provisiony for probebie Saime drsing from asséssrents and
ather Itigations and onerous wontracks involving the Group. The timing of the cash
outflows of these provigions & uncertain az [t depertds -upah the outcome of the
Group's negotiations and/for tegal proceedings, which ate currently Dﬁgoing with the
parties Invakved, as disdesed in Note 32,

In Decermber 21‘31?, the Grolp recognized 3 a‘ne-ﬂn'ia loas amm.inﬁn_g to -P‘?E.S.mﬁl!&ﬂ-
which can be found In Note 2§ - “Others” ret representing the net presert value of
stranded costs for the lease of fully mined-out assets of HMEHC, :

WiEEIIEIREERER BHRR R



21

EQUITY

z. Capftal Stock

The tomposition of the Parent Company’s capitat stock 15 a5 Fallows:
Huember of
: : Shares
futhorized - P1 par valie L
Freferred shares 20,000,000
Commcon shares _ : o580, 800,000
Issued, fully paid and sutstanding - Commgn shares; 6452,099,144

the: Parent: Cumvanv has prié cass of coenion share which ﬁﬁlﬁ% viting rights and
right o dividends but Rgne for fisxsd indome,

The preferred shares are cumnulative and nonparticipating and entitled to preferential
dividend rate whern dedfared by the ROD of the Parent Company, There wete no
preferred shares issued and outstanding @s at December 31, 2058 and 2017,

The Patent Company’s commuon shares w&m registered/Gsted on ne 17; 1596,
Totai shares reglstered and cutstanding as. at Decernber 31, 2038 angd 2017 is 6.5

‘billion, These . shares ere held by 5385 ‘end 5,407 stockhaiders 85 at

December 31, 2018 and 2617, respeciively, Thare have. beer o revent changes in the
numribér of shares régisteradl and- outstanding.

B, Other reserves raprespnt the Group's share iy the pemc\e mpen.mtton
schame of the Lafarge Molcim Group,

£. Retained earnings

The Parent Company’s retained earnings avatiatis for drviﬁund dediaration A5 at
December 31, 2018 amounted to P3.7 &ilion based on the guldelines sat irs S
Seturities chulaﬂun LCode Rule 58, As amended {2011}, : .

tash dividends declared by the Parant Companv are &5 follows:

2015 : o 201F . 2016

Cash dividend per share 06,43 . . PO.SB PeLE7
Amount dedared F2L.7 blilion - PEF Blillen PE.& blillor
Creclaration date May 18, 2018 . MaylE.2017  Mey 1B, 2016
Record date June 15 J01% }UHﬁL-r,ZELT . Jdune 18 016

On dufy 14, 2018, the BOD of HPMC declared cash dividends totating F3415 7 miltich
(P150 per share} far stockholders on record as at August 9, 2018, The shid amauﬂt it
st outstanding as of Decernber 31, 2018,

On lune 9, 2017, the BDD of HPMC declared cash di’wdem:ts tutahng P74 milimr:
{(P17D per share} fur stockholders on record as OF Juhe 18, 2017, The dividends were
subsequenty pald fast Jugy 31, 2017,




22, COST OF SALES

Netes 303 . 2017 2018

. . ‘{In Thoussngs)

" Raw, packaging and production T
~ materiats . Flmlrﬂﬁﬁ PLi221,15%6  FL2,450,876
Brver and fussl 32 m,zsz FA31.2%0 5,094 767
Transportation and o o
| copmwifiications 2431701 3095203 540,851
Ouitslile serioes N 3,480,278 2348645 2,538,500
Pargiiniel 25 1480752  13662M 1521162
Repairs and malntenante 1,328,722 1206306 1,373,269
Depreciation e @mrtization 2% 1,118,238 12772097 1,352,284
Tanes ardd litensns, 296,187 301,992 271,920
Rend ' ke el 155,551 256,107 288,540
Instrance 163, B4 115631 116,535
Others : . _ T48,396 280500, 15337

P2R450,208 PrE.404.420 P28 504 537

Others incigde inter-unit production frelght, provislon for write-offs of spare-parts and
other miscellaneous expenses.,

73,  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Notas ____zois. a7 2018

tin Thousmnos)
Fersonnel _ 25 P AZ0D83. P 440,009 P 484,113
Software implementation tosts a22.33% 128984 254,?91‘
Diutshie sarvioes T AT B 478,458 FeL94
C¥ce ExpEnses 412 .5&(41&_ G A7
Tawes and licenses . .  arasi 29.07F §5,65L
Drepreciation 13,28 Bi A4 - 73,947 65,588 .
Transportation amd Cormmnicatione LG8 . 19586 22,134
DHrectors’ fesds 13,800 12,.5%0 -
Enteriminment, ameisamient snd B .. : ) .
recreation - . 4 186
_Others S 37,683 . . ZoQeE 4673

PL,235 731 PLIsoa64 P I5SIIN5

Othiers inchide rent, training expenses, community servlfm and expansas reizted bo
the Group's ungoing internal projects.

24;  SELLING EXPENSES

_Motes - 30k . 3017 2015

{7 Thetasands)
Personns 78 . P321,928 . P26G04D #240,215
Adfvertiging 183385 - 155’,#93.
Outside sorvices SO ELN L0V 7154
Fransportation and cormoncation L3 R R 42, ABI
Taves A licenses Cizedy - 0000 B EEE
QIffce expenses T 2292 o ﬂ,ﬁﬁﬁ.
Rent i iv2ss - 8045
© Provision for doubtfil aCoocnts 5,9 DR " K- L 11 C ITAM 4.131-
Deprectation 2 S ¥ | S Ly R ?,303
Write-off of receivatie g = s3@o7 - -
_Others . . BB AN - 33495 12,434

PBLES ERY | P9I1 505 P59y 355

Dthers inciude rent, insarance, utifities and expenses relateﬂ tu the Group's sRgoing
infemal prnjec.ts




26,

2%

FERSONNEL EXPENSES

:.._gﬁﬂ..... .i. _

.- 2018
: ST (mThoussdsy
" Salgries, wiges and employee banefits PLHEIAET L ISRV PL 514,223
Retirerient banefit costs 88,990 117,668 130,761
ity . 2BA2E 27,556 45,441
Githars L EEEEDE . E239E 555,042
P2, 242,785 B2.067.315 . P2,245468

Retirement benefit costs above excludes net intevest cost, tiassified as. part of interest
and fihafcing charges, a5 disclosed n Nate 27.

DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND. TMPAIRMENT

Hotes

2Di6

2017

ZO1E -
i Thoussnds)
Praperty, plant and eguipment : ] L .
Ciost ol sales 22 P1.112.066 PL2G5115  P1,237,125
General - and  adminfstrative 21 . T o
axpenses 51,148 phciad 66,588
___Sedling expenses . . - » 1] E2, 251 7,303
1,172,027 1,361,313 1,311,085
intzngibie BEsets . .
Cost of saies 22 1173 12,007 . LEA5S
PLAT3ARY P1373,405 . PLI26475

INTEREST AMD FINANCING CHARGES

Detalls of interest 2nd Ananclng chiarges are as follows:

2018

Notes 017, . 2036
Interest on loans payaile 18,29 F2F9,557 F 7BEDZ | P17,447
Met interest cost on defined benefit . o ) : L
obligation a1 43,092 22,092 3,253
. Acrretion of pravisian for site ) : : )
ragtoration oost abd others _E19K . £5%) 1,054
. Pi97,804  pi07428 P41,754
OTHERS - nex _
Cetaits of Others - pat are as foliows: _
- . SR -.r 1) .27 215
{iry Thousarrds) .
Share in undistributed earmings of an o . T
pssociyts _ 13 PFaazedd - Pl43.615 P 86,761 .
{Loss) gein on sale of properties - net 13 (36207 - 115,760 {51300
{Loss) galn of sale of by products and - ) o .
other revenye (AT . BhA7d ¥B,580
Farelgn exchange gain — net . 2,97 . . . LA88 ]
Fully mined-out assets 20 - 3y . 0 -
Lows on remairtng obbgation for . ' .
exciuded propevtics - (2&,890) : -
. Write-0ir of Investment 12 2,182 - (619} -
Others A48y = 25682 - 1.53%
P134 344 PI78166 P162 490

T



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS )

Related party refationship exists when ene party has {he ability to control, directy or
indirectly, through one of more intermediaties, or ekercise. sonificant infuence over
the other parfy In raaking fhancial and operatiny decisions. Such refstionships also
exist between and/er amdng entities which are -under cemmbn control with the
reperting entity and its key management persénnel, direttors or stockhalders.
In tonsidering each possibie refated enrity relationship, sttention is directed to the
sutstance of the relationship and ot mrarsly the jegal Torth.

The. Grolip hias transactiofis with the foliowinig related partis:

‘Parent:

« Clinco Corporation

« Cemicu Holdings, Inc. (Cemon), & subsidiary of Clinco

s Union Cament Holdings Corparstion {UGHE), a subsidiary of Cemco

Subsidiaries of Camco, a stockholder of HPI:

+  taferge Holdings (Philippines Inc. {LHF) -

s Calimbopat Heldings, Inc: (CHI}

» Seacem Siles, Inc (SEI)

Subsidiaries. of Lafarge Halgim Linited

. Hoicim Trading Pia. Ltd., Singapdre {Holdim Tradiniy)

v Hoicim Yechnoiogy and Servicas {HT5X3

« Holclm Technology (Singapore} Ple. fd: fHTP[.-,}

« Hplelm Qroup Services i, {(HGS)

«  Holcim East Astd Business Service Centré B.V (HEABS)

«  Other Holcm SGroup affiliates _
Assoclate of HPT and its subsididrias as at Deceinber 3%, 20iB:
«  Holdm Mining and Davelopment Corporation (HMDL) '
* Holcih Resoureas snd Development Corporation (HRDE)

» lafargeHolcim Aggregates Ine, (LHAT)

+ Sigrha Cee Mining Carporation (SCMC)

v APC Properties, Inc. {APC)

» Cuimsan Umiestones, Ine. (QLT)

»  Liicky Dne Realty Vertures, Inc. (LORVIY
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The following fable summorizes the related pesty tramsactions -jmd outstandirig
batances as at and for the yaars ended Decamber 31, 2018 and 2017 :
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Badaced Trarissctiona  Recwivable  during tiee " )
—Emthes  Meture  duchp the Vs (Feyible) = . VYear Teirna Zondyions
. ] bedrﬂ'drq... eTRahing, o
Hiaxi P L A B
M““; “""é:i.‘.‘ni‘:”“‘ 137,334 (T0A51)  demaridalie LeguArATibeed
Nortiiterzst- )
. Esaring, offeetting,  Urssorsd,
. Adydroes EhEe 4561 - - due ard demnandsble  rdupranteed
Meny ndarect-
Expenses fron bearing, offsatting,  Urdecured,
Othars  wartous charfes [L7) = 17 Que ang gemandeble ungoaraditesd
Otfiar
Kalkdm
Aftijates Hihlntermt- g, .
Pipchiaass ardior ) s vt Lirpecained
Extiurice 253,681 (a4 4492 15,635 {4743} demandebie fngursiired
an1wm; u‘tﬂmﬂr{e&;
Vaitous Charges 9,690 sAE 1B 10,263 i ot wrpered
Notes 2018 £617
(5 Fhavsmss)
Due from related parbies ) F:,?HESE P26 316
Dige to ratated parties 17 2459 414 _ ;1,2n?,533)
Met Due from {t6) related partles . {59!115,-15”&}: P IEPES
Notas 2018 20172
. . ) : {In Thhsrds}
Loan receivable from relsted party iI5 . P 38LB4S P -
.than payable to related parties H {3,925.849) = (4,178.000)

Loans receivable [payabie) |

(P23, 544 004) (P4 178000}

Parant. )

UCHC.  In Aprll 2018, the company entered ints & shorf-term loan agreemant with
UCHC, lender, smounting to F200 miflion which wil be collected after three months
from the date of the agraemant. On Jung 28, 2018 this loan was axtended unth
June 30, 2019. The applicable intersst rate of the loan 5 eguel to the prevalling
interast rate of 2.86% per annum which shellt be due shd payable monthly In arrsars,
net of any applisble withholding faxes. Additional fcan wad exeoted last
September 1, 2018 arnounting to P1.64 billion with interest rate 4.86%. The said
loans are st cutstanding as of Decembear 31, 2018 and refatad interest expense for
the year amounted to P339 miliidh based i the teémis of the agresment;

Cemico,  On September 28, 2018, the Group entered a lorig-term foan o
Cemco arhounting F381.8B milllon with 5.30% per snntim intierast to be paid of pr
before September Z#, 2020, Interest earnsd as of December 31, 2018 ##nsunied to -
P18.5 miliion. Operating expenses pald on behall by the Parest C&mpanv far the year
2018 was amounting to P73.5 million.

Ciineo,  The Group paid the 2018 aydit Fees in behalf nf‘ tlincs amﬁunﬂnq to
PD.5 million during the year.




Enﬁtiu undar Cominmon Shareholder

MEABS. On January 1, 2015, ths campan'.r eritered into a servdce contract vﬁi:hr

HEAB for business pmoass mtmﬁrdng and other inforration téchnalogy eytahta:l

Siag,

ATSX. Effactive January 1 2013, a rew contract. with HTSX came intw farde
intreducing the 3pspllcat1c-n of rmw Industrial Franchiée Fee {IFFL The new
apreement i aligred. with the Organlzatian for Etohomic Co-gperation and
Devetopinent [OECTY prim:lpies and taleg mtu WECHIInE -arii's length transfer
gricing principles. -

The IFF shali cover sl intefactusl preperties and va!ue a&diﬁg solutions derived by
the Group. IFF s an annual charge payabie guatterly and is based on fair
assessment of economic valle of intellectual properties and value  adding
sishitlons,

HTSX also renders managerial and Broject support serviges 1o the Group:

Total expensés incurred in 2018 and 2017 amountad to PLS bilkioh and
#1.4 bitiorm,

Hoicm Trading. The Group imports clinkeér, cefhent amd raw materisls, sich as
gyp=w aid granulated biast furnace sjag.

HTPL. G Jamuary i, 2014, the Group éntered |nfo @ service agrerment with HTPL,.
For support strvices, The tew service agredment s complementary to the-axigting
Franctise Agresment, The servites shall be based on all casts and expanses.
Wourred by HTPL phos a certiin mark-up. Thfs agreement will be I effeit unless
and until superseded,

. LAFSA. The Comgpany has an cutstanding fabitity arrinuntlng woPize fiilien

pertaining to expat recharges gnd otntstanding receivable of P1.0 miition For expat
services charged to LAFSA for'the year 2018, : S

gither Hoict Groun Affliatas, The Group's ransactions with Chthef Holdm Group -
Affitiates Include intercompsny cherges for salaries ani wages of Inbound and
cuthotnd expatriates, and other expenses related te operations.

The Group had an outstanding payable fo LH Energy Solutions amounting o
P1a8.1 mition relating bo the purchase of fisl, pet coka and coal In 2038,

The Group had an outstamding payabie to LH Shipping amountir;gt{- m 7 il
relating o time-~charterad shipping in 2018,

HBR5, On January 1, 2017, the Group entered Into an agreement fur the
" Administrativa Suppart" which Include setivities in the fiekl of adminlstration a5
well a5 clerica! and operdtionat support, The administratlve support fee 15
caicitated based on the aflocated oosts pfus rriark -up ahd other indﬂ'&cf Costs in
ronnection of rendering such suppert. .

. LHPI. The Group '8 ofiginally amounttng to #2.4. blilion in 2017 Wis pmtial!sg
‘settled on February 28, 2018, Apdl 13, 2018, and July 2%, 2018 with 2.81%

interest, The ioan balancé currently amounts to PL.9 bil!h:m with S.38% pa
Interest to be peid on or beforé Segtember 13, 2019, Interest expense for ysar
20i8 and 2017 amounted to P77.6 million 3nd F20.Z miliion, respectively.

E5T. On Gctober 25, 2018, the Company availed & short term lean amibunting

P240.C mitlion with inberest of 6.4203% pa. 0 be pald oh or befors
Ottober 25, 2019, Inkerost expense I‘m‘ tiu-.i y&ar 2&18 was amuuﬂting ird
P2.8 miilizn.




Divact and Tndirect Assodlates |

@ For 2018 and 2012, e Sroup has an existing service agraement with HMDE for
the quamy operations, wharein HMOG provides quarry and related services for a
fee plus operating costs: charged back to the Gmup :

b. in 201i8; HMOC declared dividerds. for its Class A and E:lams B preferred share:s,
well as fa.'.-r Tt Tommon & a#nd Coimimion 8 shares, The Gmup received dividend
payrment amountisg th P322.7 million fom- HMDE.

¢ In January 2015, the Sroup has entered into leaﬂnus isace agreements with. BMOL
effective 2016 2nd its subsfdlares APC, HRDC, QLI and LORVI for ceviain plant
shtes and termitals from vareus locations. The téem of the [eases is for 8 perleyd
af 25 years.

d. The Group soidtransferred various assets to HMOC such as Warphouses,
mobsropols and software in 2017,

&.. LHAIL had & total purchase of aguregetes armournting to P1.2 blllisn 2nd P1.1 bilfisn.
for 2018 ang 2017, respeclively. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Sroup
Had a tofal payable of P315.4 milkon. sivd P419.2 milllion, dise and sutstanding ab
the arsd of sach yaar,

f. ‘The Group-grants non-interest baaring advances to HMDC, HHDT, LORVE and LHAT
for working cepital requirements. The Parent Company has ativances to HMDC as
of Decamber 31; 2018 and 2017, amounting to P32.9 miidfon, rvasp:’e.:thmlv

Retirement Benefit Hm:ls
As @t December. 31, 2018 and 2017, the Parent Company’s defined benefit.retiretent

fund has invustments i HMEC's shares with a falr value of PS96.3 milfion representing
&% af the total ownership, as disclosed in Note 12,

All of the funds' investing decisions ars- made by the Rebirefent Committes;
the. composition -of which Includes &ertain officers and ernployess of the  Parent
Carnpariy. The power fo exerciss the voting rdobts rests with-the Board of Trustess,

Terms ait Conditions of Transactions with Relatad PFarties .

Dutstanding balances et year-end are unsecured and settlement ‘oocurs I cash,
There have been no guarsntees provided or recelved for any Felated party recelvables
or payables. As at December 31, 2018 ang 2017, the Group has ngt retodnized any
impairment lesses oh receivables relating to amolnts dus Fom refated parbes.

This essessmient is Undertaken each financial year through & review of the financial.
position of the reiated party angd the market in which the relsted party operates.

Amounts’ due from refated parties Is Included in “Trade and other recelvables® and
amounts dus to related partiss Is included in "Trade and ﬂ‘ther payables* accnuﬁts in
the consolidated staternents of fnancial position.

Tutsl amount of intercompany receivabiés eliminated as at Decemiber 31, 018 snd
2017 amounted i P2.1 Billish and PO.5 billion, respectively,

Total amount of intercompany payabley alivtinated ag at Deaemhe.r 31, Im8 :ﬂml Zmy
armunted to P3.1 Biillon and PO.6 billton, respedthrely, : o
Koy H&nagemaﬁt Far;onnd - . .
The foliowing are the detalis of the compensation of Key management persoriiel;:

TOLE  F0AF 2016 -

_ (En Thoisands
Shoit-term employee bengfits rica 257 - p197 bh2 -P184, 753
- Pstirement benefity cost .. . 9538 126371 . 12,148

PL7L994 - P324.073 = 0165001
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3a. 'IHEDHE 'mx
EﬂfﬁpﬂﬁEﬁE of incme {ax expense :hargaci ko prﬁﬂt or 1@55 ar&as Toliws:

oB1% . 2017

. {In thousands}
Currerit tax expense P1,040,92% P1,564, 10
Deferred tax expense (henalit) . {35, 086) 123687

PLO0%865 FI,E?S,Ei?-

The rectricifiation between the statutary and effective income tax of the Group i a¥

Tolliows:
2048 e 2018
(In Thousands) '
Profit befors corme ka e . P3;553 358 PASGEALS  PR.636,945
Provisian fit incorni Ak At SEATUEGEY ) L )
IO BN rah © pi,06537F Fl, 279,524 B2, 248,083
{hange It urFacogrized deferred ) . .
trisbrog baix aansts F,HLT 105 {802}
Ihcome tax =fects of: . )
050 vi. ftarvzed deduition 12,702 343,353 48,353)
Morudeduciible gwponses 3375 . 321 ¥
Interest and obfier fndome subest to _
tzix pther than RCIT [4,107] {8410 £5474)
Intsarme: nok subfact Y noome {34,710) f48, 115} 183}
Reversa! of defarrad Incomie i _ o -
neset] Yiabiliny {73,405} {087) {3,722
Dnfarrad tares detred wion : : T
trafpfer : - & (30,5737
Expired NOLOD 16,11T ) 33
Others , _ = N {36 3
__Income tax st effective tavrate . Fl005 868 . plET6ELY PL.I7% 833

The comparniants of the Group’s net deferfed Incoma tax a4 at December 31, 2018 an-;!
Z017 are gs foflows:

2048 _ 2017

_ {In Thoiamss)
Deferred income tax dsaets: )
Charged to profit or loss far the year P §24,570 P4E6, 273
Charged to equity - 116,226
Liprealized foreign exchange losses . : ' - : 3
. . . ' - G24.870 603,202
Befarred incoime tax liabilithes
Charged to profit or joss For the year ' 13&,534 145,923
Charged to equity | L320,585 =
Wnresiized foreign exchange gains . 3,638 2,057
. .. 1454888 147,880
Net deferred tax asset (atiity} U ] 8230,288) . P455242

Deferfed income taxes f4r termporary d%r!erenm fw HPHE and HPBSCIT affecting gross
income wera recognized using the affective tax rate of 18% as they availed of OSP as
its method of deductlon for income fax, purposes, Maiagement forecasts Hhat HEMC
and Mabird viil ba using DSD in the next three years and HPBESCT and Bulkeem In the
next four years, -




31

Deferred income tex asyete for the following deductibile tembisrany  diferances ahd
carryforward benefits of unused tax losses snd udused tak credits, heve nigd been
recognized as they have srisen in sybsidiariss that have been incinming fosses for
same tima and may not be used to offset taxable profts or fax labilltias of any other
entliy other than that of the entity from where such deductible tamporary difference
arosa:

_20¥8 . 2017

{Fr ‘Thoussiits]
Carryforward benefit of NOLLO F64,322 P43
Excess MCIT over RCIT . _ aar 25
Untecogilzed defarred income tax assots FEAFYL . P16B

“The followihg NOLCS can be claimed &8 dedurtion against future taxebla hoome:

Diste Jocumed Expiry Date NGLEO
- . PP L Thousands)
Cecember 31, 2015 Decambar 31, 2019 15,355
December 31, 2017 Pecernber 21, 2020 79,647
_December 31, 2018 Degarther 31, 2021 419,360
p214,413

NOLCG incurred by ECLI in 2014 amounting o F*iﬁ mlﬁluﬁ afid. NOLCD Incursad by
CACT in 2014 amounting to P74 mitlicn. &x;sirmi in zﬂi}

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Befived Banefit Retirement Plans

HPI and HPMC have distact fungied, nnnmntnhutury deftned hengﬁt fetirernent plans
{the "Pigns”). The Plans cover all permanent employies, each atimjni'stamd by thielr
respective Retiramant Committees or Board of Trustees,

ECLI and HSSI, on the other hand, provide retirement tl-eneﬁt& in &mnrd&nde with
Republic Act 7641, “Retirément Pay Law®. Under the existing requlatory framewark, it
requires & provision for retiréritent pay to gualified private sector employess in the
absenice of any retiremant pfan in the entity, provided however that the empioyas’s
retirement benefits under eny collectivie bargainthg and other agraements shatt not be
tass than these provided under the law, The law does not Fequire minfruem funditg of
the plan. The Group also provides additiensl pest employment healthcard benefits to
cartain senlor amplovees in the Philippines. These benefits are Unfunded, :

The following tabies summarize the romponants of retirement henefit costs,
the funding status and the amounfs récognized 8 retirement. beneSt Hability of the -
Group: .

Details of retirernent benefit oosts are as follows:

Note _ 2018 - - . HRT . 0K

fIr Thousards)

Lurmant servhos cost P 106105 P 75,634 - PB7730
Net Intarest cost 7 S 2092 23,253
Curtpiment gatn . RO X ..
Fetirement baaefit tosts necogrized ) )

in gepdit or loss _ . 148,197 88,728 104, 560
Remeasurements retogrized InOCE . {4,401,953) 3BT AL (79.857)
Retirement beneRt {gair} cost . {Pa353 TEE)  Page 4T | P E708
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Remeasursment gam {loss} on retirement benefits consists of

s 2017 2016

] _ f.fr: ??musands} _
Actuarial gain (loss) arising from: ' .
Changes in assumplicns P 352}1!52- {stnfﬁ?aj P 75548
Experience adiustnents 33,673 {87 31d) (&l 328
Total Actusrial gain{loss) 335,335  (373,193) {23,67¢
Gelt {fogs) on plan ausets® . 4018437 f14.228) | 103 5I8
Totat gain{loss} recognized fh OCK P4 401,953 {P3BT421) P 79,852

*Excluding amounls recognized in net interast cast.

The reconciitetion of henefit {asset) labitty recogrized in the tensoiidated fnangal
position follows:

s e

2615 . 2017

. . {3 Thousamds}
Present valtie of baneRt obligation P OPERFO0  PL26GL3T)
Fair value of plan asséte {4:540,207} (5i5317)
Baiance at end of year . . IP3.SBLEOFY P 845154

The breakdown of tha refiremant plan-{asset) Hability per entity faliows:

2018 2017 -

¢In Thousands)
HPT : . P 266,227  P485,21%
HPHC {3,848,597) . 358,195
ECLI : . . {151) 1,307
HES3 . 614 . a33

_(P3,581,507) _ Pa45.154

Moveiments in the retirémient benefit {eset} Hability are a5 follows:

2018 N+ ¥4

) - {is Fhousdirds}

Balance at bagitning of year P 845,154 ES01dd
Aehirement benefit rosts 145,197 98,726
Contributions - (Te, 05 {t3ag 854)
Remeasurement gatn remgnized in GCI (4,401,952} = 387421
Effect of deconsolldation - © (101,897} . - -
~_Berefts said directly by theé Group - . - {1958 . - - {4083
Balance at end of year o (P3,5HLEOF)  PR4G1S4

The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation ere as ﬁ:ﬂnm':

2018 2017

_ ~ {Fa Thousands)
Balante at kaginning of year P1,360,371 P1,006,281
Actisarial lotses {gains) : . [3A5BF5) 375,183
Intepest cast &8, TH2 - 44957 -
Current service cost . 108,308 2 7R631
Benefiis pajd . . {IRRF2R (230,729}
Balance at end of yesr . - P esRI00 . FLAb0A7i
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The changes in the falr value of plan assets ere as follows:

Note 2018 2017

Eaiance 2t beginning of year B 515,21y P5S4, 337
Contributions . | 76,859 - 135,855
Gain {loss) ori plan assets” 4,058,417 {14,228}
Interest income on plar sscets .. 23,690 24,508
Effect of deconsolidation. 101897 R
._Benefits eald - , o {186,773} {126,547
Balance at-end of year , P4, 500,207 PH15,.219

*Excluding ambulits recogiized i et !nt&&t st

The fund is adminfstered by a tiusten. bank under the supervision aof the duly
Authorized Person ot Trustee of the Plan: The Authorized Parson or Trustee it
respongible: for investment of the assets. Based on the overall direction set by 3
Retirement Furid Conimitee, the Trustee proposes an investtrent strategy and =%
approved by the Retirement Fund Comnitter, executss suck stratégy. . The Trustee:
defines the Invastient strategy based -on the Investment instructions found in the
Trust Agreement, When definifig the investment strategy, the. Trnistes takés Intp
#ccount the Plan's objectives, benefit obligations and fisk capacity, The Investment
strategy fs defined in'the form.of a long-term target structure (investment policy), Thi
coitfel, dirsction, &nd management of the fung shafl reside # and be the sole
réspensibllicy of the Tristee. .

The parcentages of falr valua 6f total pian sssets sre as follows:

2018 ' _ '. b

HPL HPME HPI HPMEC
Cagh and réceivabing L 13.07% 1.85% _B7% 13.7%
Investmérnts in debt securities: ] C .
Ghvernment securitfes 0.72% 31_850% 2.9% 2555
Corporate debt securties 4569 29.50% L BT 23.8% .
. - 5.38% 61.39% o 5% 53,3%.,
Investmient in equity securities .
Construction, infrastructure, . L -
- property and minmg V8.84% R L TEO% 11.5%
Holding fems 1.38% 16.19% 1.5% 9.65%
Fower and ulifitias 0.35% 2.27% 1.3% #.8%%
Banksy 0. 40% 4.51% © GO 3.5% -
Teletomimurications 0.02% 1.26% 1% - 1.5%
o Others . . 0730 3.81% 0.9%: . . L.0%
: 81.55% 35.75% 82.7% . 33.0%
—. 100.00% . - JO000% . 108.0% . 109.0%

The cust of the defined beneft pensien plan apd the present valie of the pension
cbllpation are determined uslig achsarial valudtions. ' An actuarial valization invalves
imaklng verious assumptions that may differ from actuai developmsnts in the futere.
Thesé include the detetmination of the discount rate and future salary Increases.
Dug to the complexities fnvolved in the valiation and its forg-term nature, a deftned-
benefit obligation is highly sensitivi to changes. [n these. assumptions. Al assumptions
are reviewed at gach reporting date. o S .
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Tnvestrant Fiske

‘The présént viloe of the defined bensfit plan liabllity is calcalated &sir{g a discoint
rate determined by referance to high ‘quality carporate bénd vields; If the retum on.
plan ésset & below thiz rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currentiy the plan Has a
relatively balanced investment in equity securities, debit instruments and real estates,
Duz to the long<erm mature of the plan iiahi!tm the board of the popsion fand
cansiders it appropriate that 2 reasanable purﬂnn of the plan assets should -be
ireested in Bquity securities and in resl estate to leverage the retum genesated by the
fund,

 Interest rate risk

A decredsge in the govemment bong intamst rate will increase the plan, fiabifity;
however, this will ke partlalty offsat by an intréase in the return on the plans debt
vestments,

Longavity risk o
The présent valiue of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated By reference to the
hest estimate of the mortafity of plan parficipants both dusing and efter their

employment. An ificrease in the life expectancy of the plan partivipants will increase
he plans lability,

Salary risk

The. presant velug of the defined benefit plan liability- ja cefculated by referance to thi
Cfutre swaries. of plan particpanis. 'As such, =n Incraese IS the salary of the plan
particigants will increase the. plan‘s ttabllity.

The most recent actuarial valustlon of the p&n asse!as and the présent vaiue. oF the.
defined benwfit obligation were caitjed out 8t December 31, 2018 ¥ sn
independent actuary. The present vatue of the defined Benefit obligation, and the:
- related current service cost and past service: ct:s:t wem measured uslhg the profectad
it cregit method, .

Distount rate s determined by calculating the singlé effecﬁve discournt nite-
determined by discounting the projected behefit payments using - different
tarm-dependent zerc-coupon ratés at the end of the reporting percd.

The principat assurhptions used in determining the rel:imment benafit iiahility of tht
" Group as at December 31 are a5 filows; _ _

2018 27 2016

Discourt rates 7.1%% 4 B% -5.0%  4.5% -4.8% -

Futire salary rate Increases L 60% . 5.00% . 5.0%
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The. sensitfvity, analysis below has been determined baged on reasonably possible
ehanges of each significant assumption &n the defined benafit obligation as af the end
of the reporting perbnd_. asEumEng 2l other assurnptinm were heid coristant:

fdecrense) HPT HPI~.1§ . ECLE H551
_ {3 Thoirahos)
08
Blscoont, rate o o ] )
Eengibivity 1 0.5% PEDS,121 9357,444. P P
Senstiviky 2 0.5%) S57¥.020 339,193 - "
Futore salary rate
jACTERgRE N o N
Bensitivity 1 0.5% 536460 338,991 - -
Sersiivily 1 o [0:5%) 608,276 367538 .- *
2017
Discoint rake o o _
Sexisithvity 1 19 {PUU,500) (PSE148)  (PLBL) P79y
‘Sensitivity 2 {iwm) 108008 B250 195 5]
Future salary rate
frCrEaLes _ o
Sensitivity 1. 1% 104,81 ‘60,993 197 4y
Seifsitlviby 1 : {19}  [HS,733Y . {51,701} {165y {E1}-

The Management and its trustee bank reviews the perfgrmance of the Flans on a
requiar basis snd agsess whather the Plans whif achisve an investrment retum which,
togather with -::nntﬁbutic-hs, wilf be sufficlent t6 pay retirament benefits as they il
due, The Group also Feviews its solvercy position on an annual basis and estimates,
through the actuary, the expectad dontributlsn te the Plans in the subseqiient vear,

The funding requiremsnts -are apréed between the Plan Trusises and Group,
in consideration of the contrbution edvice from the Plen Actusry. o
The tables beiow show the maturlty analysis of the undiscounted beneSt paymeits as
af December 31:

horrr s e

HPI HFMLC ECLI HSSI

{In Thoysands)

2018 o .
Within one yezr : 51,483 P 19,046 P~ [ L
Maore than one year o ) . o

five years 210,830 104,100 - C .
More than five yéars S03 048 40,951 = =
2017 - -
Withirn ane year 37432 F15314 . . F - o F -
Meore than one year fo _ T S _

five years 202 969 157,674 . 343 -
Maie than five vesrs | . 406,128 £45, 745 __Lar -

) ) : g



Deflned Contribution Retirement Plan . .

HR! has a defined contribution pian wherein the cbligation is fimited to the specifted
contritution in the defined contribution plan. Total retireiment behefite cost refsted to
the defined contribublon plans amounted i P42.1 miillon; P41.0 milifion and
5.5 mitleh for the years snded December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. -
Tetal ennsolidated retirement benefit costs recognized iy the aonsolidated statements
of theome are as Follows:

2018 W7 2016

{in Thousiinds)
Expense recogridzed for: o . _
Defined benefit plans P 149,197 F 94,776 LA SaG
Defined contribution plan 42,098 #1032 . 45476
Retirement benelit costs 191,208 Pi30,.758 P154.036

32.  COMMITMENTS ARD CONTINGENCIES

8.

Leases

The Group hes -8 numbar of {fease agreements covering plant sites, office spasds,
warehouses, bulk terminals and warlous eguipinent that are scoginted for as
operating lease with paiods ranging from ong year to twenty-five yoars, Bl of
the commgments pertaing o |gase of vessels being wsed fo franspart cemeiit afid
fand -agreaments. The Group records rental expense an a-strafpbit-line Lasi over
the base, non-cancsilabie lease ferms: Ay difference bebtwean the caloodabed
expanse and amount actually pald is recoynized either as prepaid otacchied rent.

Prepaid of actrued reit is reflected &g current br houndurrent dsset and liabillty,
respectively, depending on its sxpected revarsal dete. Operating lease 'experse
recognized In the consplifdated stafements of proflt or ioss and other
comprehensive  Incomie  amounted to P171.4 mihon, P263.3  million . and
£132.2 miltion in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectivély, ss disclosed in Notes 22, 23
and 24.

Future minimum jesse payabie under nor- cant:EIInhf& napefating jpagis as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 are a5 follows;

2018 2017

{In Thausands)
Within onie year P1,046907 P 794,574
Aftsr one year but ot mofe than five years - 1,553,156 1,416,38%

Maiz than fve years . L. . 2134438 - 2EI6.B44
: P4, 734 581 P5,037.667

Lawsuits.

the Group is either & defendent or plalfthT in severdl legal cases primarily
tnvolving colfection and claims for damages. - Based on the assessment of
managerent and the opinkon of the Group’s extérnal legat counsels, the resolufion -
&f such cases will net result to amy significant Hishility.

The disciosurz of additfenal detalis beyond the present disclosures may serioushy
prejudice the Groups position and negotlating strategy. Thus, a5 allowed by
BAS 3¥, Frovisfons, Contingent Ua.ﬁﬂ.’ﬁn!ﬁ ard Cunun;mnr Azsmts, only gun&ral
destnptmns Wers prmrtded .




€. cunstrur:tmn agraettients with Thed! Canstrucﬁﬂn tnrp {Ti::{:}

O ﬁugust 1, 2018, the Group entered info bwo nonstriction agreerients it TCS
for La. Unlun Pﬂm ‘Post. Prajects to support. gur -gri-gefnig. capltsl expéﬁdimre
projects, Detalls and terms of the agremnems are as follows; _

i, Dredging Works iject

TCC shiail conduct the dredging Works &5 . well 25 supply manpﬂwsr, tools,
equipment, machinery, permits, tlearancss ahd sugervisiin necessary for the
completion of the project, The project s estimatéc to h& fompleted i
Janiary 20615,

it Jatty Rehabilitation Froject

TEC shall deliver structural steel and bullding materals and rehabilRation works
At thae jetty wiitch incdludes répair of five (53 heavy darmaged comroded piles.
The praject is to be completed by March 1, 2019, -

d. Electricifty Supply ﬁgreement (ESA)

OUn December 26, 2013, Bulpean ang La inion plants entered into a IS-vear
- elattricly supply agreement. with Phinma Energy Corporation {FECY. PEC. afso
suppiles ehectricity to the Mabini- grinding plant under & 10-yesr powsr sipply
-agreamant wiich fommenced June 25, 2014 The reiated expense under this
contract is recounizet as part of “Rower and Fuei*’ atoount in the Cost of Gales,
as-discicsed in Note 22,

e. Saiss Agresment with Petron Corporafion {Petron} and S0 Harbor Bulk Tsimilnal
Corporation [SLUHD

HPI has awarded the contract for the supply of auttmotive’ diessl olf to Petfon and
supply of bunker fuel 6 SLH. The agreements cover the period Movemnber 1, 2017
to October 31, 2026, The related expenss undar this cantract is recognized a8 part
‘of "Powar and Fuel” account In the Cost of Sakes, as discosed in Nute 22,

f. ‘Servics Agreement with Misamis Drientai - 1 Rural Electric Serwca taﬂperamu,
Inc. {MORESCD-1)

" On Novembar 26, 2012, the Grovip enteret infd a Snb Tmn;mlﬁinn Lirie Whueiing )
Service Agreemignt with MGRESCO-1 for supply of electiic. power exclusively for the -
operstion and requiremedt of Lugalt plant, The reisted expense under this contract .
Is recognized a5 part of "Bower and Fuel™ accourt in the Cost of Sales, as disciosed
In Note 22,

¢.. Davao Light Service Contract

The Group alsh entdred info a contset w:m Davars Lp;ht and Fower Cornpany
{DLPZ) for electric setvice to the Group’s plant in Davao eommencing on Nevembar™
14, 2013 and thereafter until the conteact is termineted, The related expense undéer
this contract is recognized as part of “Power and Fuel™ account in the Cost of Sales,
a5 discdpsed in Note 23,

h. Kalayaan - Davain Cerient Milf Project 01 —EP
Gn August 14, 2017, HPT éntered: iffte o supply agreement with Huswn Cemvint Co,
Lt for mechanical and efeictrical engineering and process oontvel equipment dnd

civil enginearing design required for the cement miff system o be put intu
eperatiosn in the existing Davag Plant, _ _

Foller Press Profect

© This colitract agreemant was enteréd into by the Gmup (v} Nwernhur:m pivd ¥ w%-

- Kisen International Construction Ci., Ing. for the tonstruction and imtallatim of the
new roller press system and ite au:dlia‘ri&s #t b3 bnion Plant. The Roller Press’
Project was completed in Janyary 2019 ahead of schedule.

T8
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33,

34,

. Gthers .
There are contingent iiabilities for tax assessmients ocourring in the ordinary course
of business. -On the basis of Information furnishad by the Group's legal counsels,

-shanidgement bellaves that none of these cortingenciss wil muterially sifect: the
Group’s financial position end finghctal performance,

 EARNINGS PER R COMBMON SAR (EPS}

Basic/dilited EPS 1s computed as foliows:

18 2017 2016
_ T Thiusands)

Lansohidates profit for the year

artribytabhe to common eguity oo . )

holders of the Fament Company AT ET R 22 EBS 455 P«E{_B-_!S,EEE.
Welghhed gvyeragé nurmber of commain . . .

shares - Iestied and dutstaading A8 50D BASZON | ASZN0G -
Basicfdilited EFE of grofit attribuiable

tir equity hofiders of the Parant _ _ N

Company ) ) . o35 ©aF . 1.08.

Basic BPS is. computed based on weighted average humber of issuad and cutstangding
comraon shares during each year. Dilutad EPE is romputed as if the pabentisl

commen share or nsthimient that may entitle the holder to comiion shafe wers:

giercised as ot the beginning of the year. Where the Parent Coimpany doas nat Hava
any potential common share er other Instruments that may ertifle the holder fo
comimeon shares, diuted EPS 1 the same &s basic EPS.

There are no diiutive fhandiat instrumerts fn 2018, 2u1? and 2016, hehce, dilited EFE
ig the same as basic EPS.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND n.r.ﬁuumﬁ? MATTERS

=, Clean Air Act

The Clean Al Act and the reiated IRR contain privisions that have an impuct on the
Industry as = whoie, and te the Group {n perticutar, that needs to be somplied with
within 44 months from the effectivity date or by July 2004. Based on the azsessmient
tnade on the Group's existing faclities, management believes it mmp&ins wlth the
provisions pf the Clean Alr Act and the related IRR.

b. Elean Waber Act

Water Act and the related I‘RR which tontaln pruwsinns__that have an mpact oh thae_
industry as & whole, and to the Groun in particutar. Based on the assessment makde on
the Group ‘s existing facilities; managemant beilsves it cemplles with the provisions of

" the Clean Water Act snd the related IRR,

& Eeological Solid Weste Mansgement Ack

O Decamber 12, 2000, the Senate and Rouse of Repmsentativﬁ passad
The Ecological Solid Waste Managémant Act which confaing provisions that have an
impact to the Group. As an attestation to Geocycle’s respotisible handing antf

‘management of hazardous Industrisd waste, the Group has Tmatment Shorage and -

Disposal {TSD) Certificete.

HPY's four plants continued to be recognizad by the I'eh!'?’ﬂn'.‘ national gwmmgnt:-
atiencies for its envirohmental progrems. .




A5,

26,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIGD S
A5 of February 13, 2015, ths Mabinl Plant temporarily coased it pperation in

comgliznce with the urdnrnf the Departeent of Ervirgniment snd nzturaf Resources -
Environmentat Management Bursay (DENR - EMB) directing the Parént Compiny ¥0
ceage opsration of the Mabin! Flant, The Parent Compeny will fitz with tie DENR-EMS
& Mition for Reconsiderabion with- prayér to Wit such order, The cessation of the
pperations of the Mabini Plant is expected to be ohly l;nmpamw s wm not tiave a
material impact on the bysiness of thé Parerit Caompany,

ABBROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were reviewed dnd recommendad fr spproval
b the Audit Cortimittee on February 18, 2019, The same were. apprﬂvad for issuance.

by the Board of Directors (8O0 on Fvl£'1.'u'i.|i!r5,l 22, 2019,
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additiohal shalysis and are ok a required port of the esie faonctal statements, Such i Hﬂﬂd oo
are {he respansibility of Manggement ang kravs besn sibdeckad tw the suditing proce t“ :
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RECONCILIATION OF RETAINMED EARNINGS
AVAIIARLE FOR DECLARATION
December 31, 20108

Holcim Phillpplnes, Inc.
Fih Tluer, Two World Sqoare, Mckintey Hibll, Fert Banifacly, Taguig City

Irems — Amourrt
[fn Tl aads]
Unapproprated fetained Eamings, Beginning 4.05%,.321
Adjustmants:
Ol red 1o asset " . [3Ed, 323%
Unappropiated Retained Famings, as Adjusted, Beginning 3,674,938
Net Incorme basad on the face of AFS 2,871,920

Less: Non-actual/ inrealized Incore Hat of Tax**
Urrealized faraigr exchange gain net {excepl ihoso abributable

ke Cash and Cash ecuivalent] [11.0014])
[aferred Lax axpense charged to prafAt or loss
85 @ resufl of cerlain transactions accoyunted far under the PIRS [144 8737 1155,543)
|Net Inceme Actuats Realizad — 2, F16,035
Less: Dividend Daclaratinn gunng the peticd [2,709.882]
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, ag Adjusted . Ending 3. 681 091




Company: Holcim Philippines inc. {HPI)

Hlustration of relationships between the company and its ultimate parent company, middle

parent, and it

's subsiciaries

As of December 31, 2018

Lafarge Helcim Lid,

CLINCO

Bl
L J
CEMCO BO%
18.11%
UCHC PUBLIC HOLDERFIN
7.08% §
&0.55% 14.26%
12%
HPI
k
l ¥ ¥ ¥ . L
WEB ECLI HSSE HPBSCI HPMC
100005 100.05% 1ML AN 5 10060 9965
¥
| MGMC
fa 28% ¥ ’ r
BPI CACI 11 ACCI
JLLTNT ) L2 LML TP
COMPANY NAME ] PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
CLINGD Cllace Carparatian Imvestiment holzing in CEMCO
CEMCD Cameo Hokitgs. T, Investment heldlng in USHS and HF
UCHE Unicn Cement Holdings Comaratun _| Imvestment hedding b HP
HPA .| Halcim Philippmes, [nG. _Manufecture and distribute camaont prodeds
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Helcim Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries

List of Effective Standards and Interpretations under the Philippine Flnancial Reporting Standards

[PFRS} a3 of December 31, 2018,

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
Conceptual Framewark Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics

PFR5s Practice Statement 1 Management Commentary

PERS= Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgments

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 First-tirme Adoption of Philiopine Fiaansial

(Revised) |feporting Standards

Entity or Associafe

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost ofan
fmvestrient in a Subsidiany, Jointly Controffed

for First-time Adapters

Amendments ta PFRS 1: Additional Examptions

]
.

Adopters

Amendment to PFRES 1: Limited Exempiion fror
[Camparative PRRS 7 Disclosures for First-time

Amendments to PERS 1 Severs Hyperinflation
and Rarmaval af Fixed Date for First-time Adepters

Ammendments to PFRS 1 Sovernment Loans

PFRS

Annual Improvements to FFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
- Ammendments to PFRS 1: First-Time Adoption of |

- Amendments to PFRS 1: Firsé-fime A

L Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

daption af

Internatianal Financial Reporting Standards

axemptions for first-Eme adapters

Annual Improvernents to PFRSs 2014-2014 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 1. Defetion of shor-tarm

PFRS 2 | Share-based Payment

Cancelifations

Armendments to PFRS 2 Vesting Conditions and

Share-hased Payrent Transactions

Amendments to PFRS 21 Group Cash-setilegd

Condition

Annual Improvements tn PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 2! Definitian of Vesting

‘Amendments to PFRS 2: (fassification

Transactions

and

rMessurament of Shara-based Fayment

PFRS 3 Business Combinations

(Revised)

Annual improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Amendiments to PFRS 3: Accowtting for
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[ Contingant Consideration in 3 business
cenribination
Annual Improvements ta PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
- Amendmenks ko PFRS 3: Scope of Excention for :
Jeint Ventures
Annuzl Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cyrle
- Amendmeants tn PFFRS 3! Previowsy held interest
in a joint eperation®
Admendments to PERS 3; Definition of 8 Busingss*
PFRE & Insurarnce Contracts v
amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4 Financial v
Gugrantee Contracts
Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 8, ;
Financial Instruments with PFRS &, Insyrance
; Contracts
PFRS 5 Var-current Assets Held for Sale ang Discontinued | -
[Operations ;
LAnnual Irmprovements to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
i- Amendments to PFRS 5: Changes in methods of v
| disposal
PFRS 6 Explaration for and Bwaluation of Minerad v
Rosources
PFRS 7 Fingncial Instruments: Diselosures
Arrendrments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7.
Reclassification of Finandial Assets
iAmendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date
and Transition
Amendments to PFRS 7! frmoroving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments
{ Amendmaeants ko PFRS 71 Disclasures - Transfers of - :
Financial Assets
amendments ta PFRS 7 Discfosures - Offsetting
Fingncial Azsets and Financial Liahilities
Amendments to PFRS 7! Mandatory Effective Date
of PFRE & and Transitian Disclostires
Amendments to PFRS 7. Hedge Accounting
Disclosures
I Annual Improvernents to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 7: Senvicing contracts and |
Applicability of the amendmaents to FFRS 7 ip
candensed interim finandal statements
PFRS B {0perating Segments
.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 201023112 Cycle !
- Amendments te PFRS 8 Aggregation of i
dperating Segments and Reconciliation of the
reportable segrments” assets to the entity’s assets ;
i
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PFR& 9

Financiaf Instruments (20714

Amendrmenks ko PFRS 9 Prepayment Faatures
with Negative Campensation ®

PFR5 10

Consofidfated Financial Statements

iAmeandments to PFRS 10: Consolivated Financial
i Statement: Transition Guidance

‘Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance and
JImvestment Entitias

| Amengments to BFRS 10: Sales or contributions
g af assets batween an investor and its
Lassociatedjoint venture®

f.ﬁ.mendments to BFES 10 Investment Entities:

Applying the Consolidatian Exception

PFRS 11

Loint Arvangements

Amendments to PFRS 1: Joint Arrangements!
Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for
Acouisitions of Interesés in Joint Oparations

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 11: Previausly held
interest in a joinl operation™

[PFRS 12

Amendments ta PFRS 12 scfosure af Tnterests
Hn Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 12 Transition Guidance and
Invastment Entities

Armendments to PFRS 12 Tnveshment Enkities:

Annual Improvemeants to PFRSS 2014-2016 Cycle
- Amendments to PERS 12 Clarificatian of the
scope of the standard

PFRS5 13

Fair aive Maasurement

- Amendments ko PFRS 13: Fair Value
Meogsurament fAmMendments to the Basis of
Conclusions only, with consequential amendments
to the Bases of Conclusions of other standards)

Annuat Improvements to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 13: Pertéolio Exception

'PFRS 14

Reguiatory Deferral Accourits

PFRS 15

PFRS 16

i5
ileasag®

Revenue fom Confracts with Cusfomers
Amendments to PFRS 15 Casfications to PERS

PFRS 17

i Insurance Contracts™
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Philippine Accounting Standards

L 2o

PAS 1
{Revigad)

PAS 2

EPresenta tionh of Financfal Statements

Eﬂ.mencﬁment to PAS 1 Capital Disclosuras

;E.ﬁ.menriments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
:Financiad Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Ligeidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presantation of ftems af
Jther Camprehensive fncome

1
i
B m—

- Amendments fo PAS 1 Compsarative
Information

Amendments to PAS 1: Dieciosure Itiative

'\

Amendments to PAS 1: Definition of Material*

fnventories

PAS 7

Staferment of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7 Disclasure Initative

PAS B

——

Aceounting Policles, Changas in Accaunting
Estimates and Errors

RN EN N

amendments ko PAS B: Definition of Material*

PAS 10

Events after the Regorting Perfodf

PAS 12

fncome Taxes

Amendment to PAS 121 Deforred Tax! Recovery of
Underiving Assets

Aamendment to PAS 12 Recogaition of Deferred
Tax Assets far Unrealized Losses

Annual Improvements o PFRS: 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 12: Income fax
congagquences af payments aon fingncia)
instrurnents dassified as equity™

PAS 16

: Property, Plant and Equipment

Annual Impronverstents to PFRSS 2009-20112 Cyole
- Amendments b PAS 1600 Servicing Equipment

Anrwal Impravements to AFRSs 2010-2812 Cyofe
- Amendments to PAS 16! Revaluation Mathead -
Propgortionate Restaternent of Accumuiated
Depreciation

Amendrments to PAS 16 Clarffication aof
Accentabie Methods of Depreciation

Amendments ko PAS 16 Agricciture: Bearar
Plants

PAS 17

Leases

PAS 19
{Amended)

| Ermpio weos Bepafits (2011)

Amendments ta PAS 19: Defined Bensfit Plans:
Emploves Contrfbutions
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aAnnuai Improvements to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 190 Discount rater regional
market issue

Amendments to PAS 19%: Afan Amendmernt,
Curtafiment or Sattfament™

PAS 20

Accgunting for Governient Grants and Disciosure
of Goversiment Assistance

PAS 21

PAS 23
{Revised)

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Foreign Qperation

Amendment to PAS 11: Wef favesiment in a

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cyele
- Amendments to PAS 23 Borrowing costs efigible
for capitafization*

PAS 24
(Revizad)

Refated Party Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cyele
- Amendgments to PAS 24, Key Managerment
Parsonnef

PAS 216

Accaunting and Reporting by Retirement Benefii
Pfans

iPAS 27
(Amendad)

Amendments ko PAS 27 Transition Guidanoe and
frvestment Entities i

;.ﬁ.mendments to PAS 27: Fguity Mathod in
[ Sapsrate Financial steiements

PAS 28
{Amended)

Investmenis in Associaies and Joind Fentures

amendments to PAS 28: [nvestment Entiffes:
Applving the Consslidation Exception

Amendments to PAS 28B: Safes or contributions of
assets bebwesn an fnvestar and ifs associates oint
wenture™

Annual Improvements ko PFRSs Z014-2016 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an assoriats
ar fofnt vertfure at f3ir value 1

amendments to PAS 28 Lomg-termn Inferests and
Joimt Veniures *

PAS 29

Financial Regorbing in Hypernflationarny
Eoonomies

PAS 32

L Financial Instruments: Disclostre and

Prasentation

Amandments to PAS 32 and FAS 1 Puttable
Fingneoial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
{ fguidation

Amendment bo PAS 32: Classification of Rights
Issues
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Annual Impravements to PFRSs 2009-2012 Cycla

-Amendments to PAS 32! Tax Effect of Equity
Distributions

Amendmenks to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial
Assats and Financial Liabifitias

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Annuaat Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 34: Interim Reporting of
Segment Assets

JAnnual Improvements o PFRSs 2012-2034 Cycle
- Amendements to PAS 34 Discfasura of
Hnformation ‘efsewhere in the interim financiat
report”

PAS 36

Impairment of Azsats

Amendments to PAS 36 Recoversbfe dmaount
Disclnsures for Nop-Fingneial Assets

PAS 37

Pravisions, Caontingent Liabilities and Contingant
Assets

PAS 38

mtangibfe dssets

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 20t0-2012 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
{Proportionate Restatermeant of Accumisated
Artortization

Aamendments to PAS 38 Clarification of
Arceptable Mathads of Amortization

PAS 40

Investmennt Property

Anrnuat Improvernents to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 44: Clarifving the
Interrelationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 When
Classifing Property as Imvestment Property ar
Owner-Cocupied Property

Amendments to PAS 40: Trarsfers of Invesfment
Property

!PAS 41

Agricolture

Amendments to PAS 41: Agricwture; Bearer
Plants

IFRIC 1

Philippine Interpretations

Changes in Existing Decommissigning, Restoration
and Simifar Ligbilities

IFRIC 2

Members” Bhare in Co-aperative Entities and
Similar Instruments

IFRIC 4

fratermining Whelfler an Arrangement Contains a
fesge

IFRIC 5

Funds

Rights o Interests arfsing from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Envirarnmenta! Rehabilitation

4
H
H
i
L
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{IFRIC & Liabilities arising from Participating in & Specific
' Market - Waste Electrical and Efectronic
Equipment i i
\‘IFRIC ? Apphving rhe REEtatemenr Approach under PAS 25
Finanecial Reporting in Hyperinfiationary
Ecunomaes
IFRIC B Scope of PFRS 2 ¥
{IFRIC 9 Reassessment rjf Embedded Derrvanvea v
iAmendments to Philippine Interpretatuan IFRIC-5 v
‘and PAS 3% Embedded Derrvar.rves
IFRIC 10 Interrm Financial Reporting and Impaxrment
IFRIC 12 _Servrr:e Concession Arrangarnems
IFRIC 14 - The Limit on 3 Defined Benefit Aszet, Minimwm -
Funding Requirements ard their Interacion
'Amendments ta Philippine Interpretations IFRIC-
(14 Prepayments of 2 Minfmum Funding v
| Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of 3 Met Imvastment in a Foredan
Gperatr’on
ER;I_:C 17 Distributions of Non-cash AESEES to Owners
{IFRIC 18 Extinguisiing Financia! {_.'ab:f.'rmE Wit Equity
instruments
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a :
i surface Ming
IFRIC 21  :levies .
IFRIC 22 Foraigrn Curnrency Transact:ons ard Advance v
Consideration
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments* v
ISIC-7 Introduction af the Eurp
SIC-1D Governrment Assistanee - No Specifc Refation to
ﬂpera tmg Activities
SIC-15 Eﬂperatmg teases - Incentives ¥
5IC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an
Entity or ift= Sharehofders :
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions -
invahving the Legal Forrm of 8 Lease
SIC-19 service Cancession Arrangaments, Disclosures
SIC-32 Intangibfe Assets - Web Site Costs
PIC QEA Clariffication of critera for exemption from r' ;
No. 2006~ |preseniing cansafidated fnancial staterments
a2 fArmended by PIC QRA No., 2013-02 and PIC Q8A
Mo, 2017-01]
PIC Q&A i Valuation of Bank Real and Other Properties
Mo. 2007- [ Acqguired (RORPA)
03

Page ¥ of 10



;EPIC QRA Rate used in discounting post-emplovment basafit |
:Mo. 2008- iobligations fAmended by PIC Q&A No, 2016-01] | -
113 ] i
[(Revised)
| PIC Q&A iFinancizl statements prepaied ¢n 8 basis ather
No. 2009- than going concern fAmended by PIC G&A No. v
01 1 2013-02 and PIC OQRA No. 2018-13]
PIC Q&A :Basiz of preparation of finandcial statements
No. 2010- [Aamended by PIC Q&A No. 2017-01 and PIC @A 4 4
02 Mo, 2018-13)
PIC Q&A fCurrentfnon—:urrenf Classification of a Caflable
No. 2010-  Term Laan v
a3 ;
PIC QA Corertont Control Businass Combinations
Mo. 2011- 4
02
PIC Q&EA Accavnting for Inter-company Loans fAmended By i
No, 20132- | P Q&4 Ao, 2015-01 and PIC QRA No. 2018-137 ¥ :
03
PIC QRA Costs of Public Offering of Shares [Amended by
No. 2011- | FPIC Q&A Ao, 2018-13) v
104
PIC GEA Fair Value ar Revaluation as Deamed Cast {
No. 2011- fAmended by PIC Q&4 No. 2Z016-01 ang PIC Q&4 v
a5 Mo, 2018-13]
PIC Q&A Avquigition of Investment froperties — Assat
Ma. 2012~ | Acguisition or Business Carmbination? . ¥
06 _
PIC Q8A Application of the Poafing of Interests Mathod for
No. 2312- | Business Cambinations of Entities under Common
153 Control in Canscfidated Fnancial Statements i v
fAmended by BIC Q&A No. 2015-01 and PIC Q&4
Mo, 2018-13] _
PIC Q&A Cast of 3 Mew Building Canstructed on Site of a
No, 2012~ | Previous Building v
0z
PIC Q&A Conforming Changeas to PIC QRAs - Cyole 2013 i
No. 2013~ ¥
D2
IPIC QA Accounting for Emplayee Benefits under a Defined
iNo. 2013- (Contribution Plan Subject b0 Requirement af "
03 Republic Act (RA} 7641: The Philinpire Retirermant
(Revised) |Lfaw ; :
PIC QBA Canforming Changes te PIC Q8As - Cvale 2015
Mo. 2015- ¥
ul h .
PIC O8A Canfarming changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2018 v
Hi6-02 _
PIC QEA Accournting Treatrment of Club Shares Helg by an ;
No. 2016~ |Eniity [Ameanded by FIC (384 No. 2018-13] ¥ ;
02 }
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==

PIC QR A JAccounting far Cammon Areas and the Related i
MNo. 2016- | Subsegquent Costs by Condeminium Corporations 3 v
03 famended by PIC QBA Mo, 2018-137 /
PIC Q8:A Application of PERS 18 "Revenue from Contracts
2016-04 with Custamers” on Sale of Residential Froperties v
wider Pre-completion Confract
PIC QRA Conforming Changes te FIC Q&As - Cycle 2017+
No, 2017-
01 ;
PIC QRA Capitalization of aperating leass cost a5 part of i
Mo, 2017- |construction costs of & buiding v
02
PIC D8A Eliminatian of profits and nsses resulting from
Na, 2017- |ftransactions batween dssociates anddor joinf
13 VERRIASS
PIC Q&A Refatad paity relationships between parents,
iNo. 2017~ | subsidiary, assaciate and nan-corbeeding v :
04 chareholder
PIC Q&A Frequently asked questions on the disclosure
No. 2017-  |reguirements of fnancial instrurnents under PFRS 7
as 7, Financiz! Instroments: Disclosuras fAmendes )
by PIC Q&A No. 2018-13]
PIC QREA Accounting for calfectars fterms
No. 20%7- |
06
PIC Q&A Accaunting for recipracal oldings in assocates
Mo, 2017- |a3nd joint verntures
o7
:PIC QRA Reguireameant ta prepare consolidated financial
MNo. 2017- |statements where an enlity disposas of its single
0B investment in 3 subsidiaty, associate or joint
ventune .
PIC QBA Avcountimg far payments between and among
Mo. 2017- :lessors and lesseas v
09 i
PEC C3:A Saparalion of praperty and cfazsification ag
Na. 2017- | investment property A
10
PIC Q&A Transachon costs incurred t0 acquire outstanding
No. 2017- |non-contraffing fnterest or to self non-contrafiing 4
11 interest without & lass of cantrod
PIC Q&A Subseguent Trestment of Equity Companent ) i
1Mo, 2017- | Arfsing from Infercompany Loans ¥ ;
12
PIC Q&A Valuntary changes in accounting poficy™
No. 2018- ;
01 i
PIC QBA PNan-contralling interests and goodwill impairment ,
No. 2018~ itest™ !
0z .
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PIC QBEA Fair value of property, plant and equipment and

Mo, 2018- depreciated replacement cost™ v

03 :

PIC Q&A [ Inabifity to measure fair value relisbly for

Mo. 2018- binlegical assets within the soopa of PAS 41, ¥

04 Agricifture*®

PIC Q& A '.r_fa.trr‘.fs'ry arfsing from maintenance requirement aof

No, 2018- a7 asset held undar 8 legse® v

05

BIC QEA Cost of invastment i subsidiaries in separate

Mo. 2018- | financial stalements when poofing /s applied in v

0b cansalidated financial statements™*

PIC Q%A Cost of an associate, joint venture, or subsidiary

No. 2018- |/t separate financial statements fAmended by PIC v ;
07 Q&A Na, 20IB-13%] :
PIC QRA Accounting far the acquisition of a non-wiholfy
No. 2018- |owned subsidiary that is npt & business™ 4 :
08

PIC QEA Classification of deposits and progress payvments

MNa. 2018- |35 monetary oF Romonetary ftems¥ ¥
¥

PIC Q&A Scope of discfosure of imventory write-gdowns ™=

Ko. 2015- 'y

10 i

PIC Q%A Classification of fand by reaf extate developer®

MNo. 2018- ¥

11

PIC Q&A PFR5 15 implementation fssues affecting the real

No. 2118~ |estate industry v
12

PIC Q&A Conferming Changes to FIC Q8As ~ Cyole 2018%

Ko, 20185~ v

13 '

PIC Q&A Accounting for Canceflation of Real Estate Sales®

No. 2018~ v

14

PIC Q&A Classificatian of Advances to Contractars in the

Mo, 2018- |AMature of Frepayments: Current vs. Noen-curyrent* v

15

* These are the new and revised sccounting standards and interpretations that are effective for
annual period heginning an or after the reporting period ended Decomber 21, 2018,
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Hodelm Phillppines, Ing. ang Subsidiares
Schedule of FAinancial Soundness indicators

For the Galendar Year

Financiat KPI Delinitlon ended December 31
218 2017
Corrett Ed [
. Current Aseets
Current Ratio 7 %
' Current Liabilties e B
Guick Rafio Curren! Assels _ inventory - Prepayments P T
Current Lighilities
Sobvency raticDabi-to-ed iy ratic
Debt to Ecuity Ratlo Total Liabilities 7% 59%
Enuity
Szzat o Equiky Ratos
Agsat to Equity Rafio! Total Assets
Equity Multplier Equity 126% 169%
Inlerasl Rate Coverage Fatio
Interast Covarage Ratie/EBITOA MNet Dpersting EBITOA 176
Intarest Cover Mat Inferest ' 833
Profitabllity Ratios
Mat Income .
Reaturn on Assats
Average Total Assets 6.1%  H
. ; Met Ingarne .
Retirm an Equit B
Aty Average Total Equity 10.7% -
Operating EBITOA Mergin Operating EBITOA 13.7% 15.7%
Met Salas : -
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